
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE
OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME
TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 11, 2018 - 10:00
A.M.

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Public recognition of two employees for September's
"Spotlight on Employees" Program, as follows: Andrea
Hamm and Debra Blevins.   (Erica Raymond)

 

B.   Presentation of the 2017 Annual Report for the Gila County
Sheriff's Office. (J. Adam Shepherd/Sarah White) 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Convene a public hearing to hear from citizens on the FFY
2018 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Application for CDBG Regional Account funding in the
amount of $165,517 that will be used for 3 proposed CDBG
housing rehabilitation projects in Gila County; authorize
the submittal of the Application to the State of Arizona
Department of Housing; and adopt related Resolution Nos.
18-09-02 and 18-09-03.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the correct total



A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the correct total
dollar amount of the License and Services Agreement with
Tyler Technologies, Inc. that was approved by the Board of
Supervisors on July 24, 2018, in the amount of $106,070
and should have been presented as $286,444.  (Mary
Springer/Joseph Williams)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to certify the collection
amounts for the Superior Court, Payson Regional Justice
Court, and Globe Regional Justice Court as presented.  
(Mary Springer)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
publication of a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous
Surplus Material in the Payson Roundup newspaper on
September 18, 2018.  (Mary Springer)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve language added
to Article III-Section 1(G) of the Bylaws of the Gila County
Community Action Plan Advisory Board and the
Amendment to the Bylaws which outlines the process for
new member orientation.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 080318
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education
Support Services.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Ratification of the Board of Supervisors' approval for the



A.   Ratification of the Board of Supervisors' approval for the
Health and Emergency Management Division to submit an
application to the Arizona Department of Health Services for
CDC-RFA-TP-1802 Cooperative Agreement for Emergency
Response:  Public Health Crisis Response funds in the
amount of $75,000 to provide emergency response to the
public with regard to the health opioid crisis for
the period September 1, 2018, through August 31, 2019. 

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 5 to Request for Qualified
Vendor Agreement No. DDD 710000 between the Arizona
Department of Economic Security, Division of
Developmental Disabilities (DDD), and Gila County d/b/a
Gila County Employment and Special Training Department
to allow for the continued provision of DDD services to
eligible residents of Gila County, and remain in compliance
with federal and state regulations and provisions of the
Qualified Vendor Agreement.

 

C.   Approval to reappoint or appoint the following individuals
to the Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board of
Directors:  Fred Jimenez and Twila
Cassador-reappointment for the term that began on
January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2019; and Ben
Dalmolin, Dorine Prine and Mike Henderson-appointment
to fill 3 vacancies for the term that ends on December 31,
2019.

 

D.   Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application
submitted by the Mogollon Valley Pit
Program for a fundraising event to be held on September
14-15, 2018, at the Mary Ellen Randall Horse Arena in Pine.

 

E.   Acknowledgement of the July 2018 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the July 2018 monthly activity report



F.   Acknowledgment of the July 2018 monthly activity report
submitted by the Recorder's Office.

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the July 2018 monthly activity report
submitted by Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the July 2018 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the July 2018 Monthly Activity Report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

J.   Approval of the August 20, 2018, and August 28, 2018,
Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the
weeks of August 7, 2018, August 14, 2018, August 21,
2018, and August 28, 2018. 

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the public is held for public
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 



 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-5070     Presentation     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
September 2018 "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the
following qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer
service and initiative. 

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
Public recognition by the Human Resources Department to publicly
recognize two employees for September 2018 through the County's
"Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of two employees for September's "Spotlight on
Employees" Program, as follows: Andrea Hamm and Debra
Blevins.  (Erica Raymond)

Attachments
Andrea Hamm
Debra Blevins



Employee Name 

SPOTLIGHT
on Employees

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 

Example: 

Supervisor Date 



Employee Name 

SPOTLIGHT
on Employees

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 

Example: 

Supervisor Date 



   
ARF-4827     Presentation     2. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation of the 2017 Gila County Sheriff's Office Annual Report.

Background Information
It is a goal of the current Sheriff's Office Administration to produce a
report of the activities annually to inform the public as to the actions
taken by the Sheriff's Office.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office Annual Report is a general overview of the
activities performed in 2017. The information contained in the annual
report can help inform the public as to the actions taken by the Sheriff;s
Office and help identify those areas where a majority of the effort is being
concentrated. By its very nature, criminal justice is a large portion of the
County's budget, and out of respect for the high cost to the citizens we
feel that it is our responsibility to produce an accounting of our activity.

Recommendation
Presentation of the Gila County Sheriff's Office 2017 Annual Report.

Suggested Motion
Presentation of the 2017 Annual Report for the Gila County Sheriff's
Office.  (J. Adam Shepherd/Sarah White) 

Attachments
2017 Annual Report













































   

ARF-5071   Public Hearing     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2018-2019 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY)
2018 Regional Account (RA) Funding.

Background Information
The CDBG program was started with the Housing and Community Development Act of
1974 where the Department of Housing and Urban Development was to distribute
funds to entitlement communities for projects that would develop viable communities,
provide decent housing, suitable living environments and expand economic
opportunities.  It wasn't until 1981 that each state received an allocation on behalf of
the non-entitlement communities and in 1982 funds were distributed and
administered from the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) to the four rural
Councils of Government within Arizona.

Each year an eligible application is submitted by communities to the ADOH for
projects that must meet at least one of the following national objectives; benefiting an
area that is 51% or more low to moderate income; prevent or eliminate slum and
blight; or address an urgent need due to a natural disaster or human health hazard.

Evaluation
This is an application to submit for CDBG RA funds. Federal funds are funneled
through the ADOH and the Central Arizona Association of Governments. This is a
yearly regional fund source allocated to cities, towns and counties within the State of
Arizona. Funding, if awarded, would be in the amount of $165,517.  

Per statutory requirement, two public hearings must be held; one public hearing is to
obtain input from citizens and one public hearing is to be held by the local governing
board, which in Gila County it is the Board of Supervisors.  The ADOH allows the two
public hearings to be combined when applying for RA funding and State Special
Projects (SSP) Account funding.  This particular application is just for RA funding. 
Another application requirement is that the Board of Supervisors needs to adopt



resolutions verifying that all of the application requirements have been met, and they
must be submitted with the application.  The Board of Supervisors is being asked to
adopt Resolution Numbers 18-09-02 and 18-09-03.  Once adopted, these resolutions
can also be used when it is time to submit an application for SSP funding.

Conclusion
If approval is granted and funding awarded, the Gila County Community Services
Division, Housing Services, will be able to provide services in the form of single family
home owner rehabilitation to three eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Community Services Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt
the two resolutions being presented and approve this application.

Suggested Motion
Convene a public hearing to hear from citizens on the FFY 2018 Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application for CDBG Regional Account funding in
the amount of $165,517 that will be used for 3 proposed CDBG housing rehabilitation
projects in Gila County; authorize the submittal of the Application to the State of
Arizona Department of Housing; and adopt related Resolution Nos. 18-09-02 and
18-09-03.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
FFY 2018 CDBG Application
Resolution No. 18-09-02
Resolution No. 18-09-03
Public Hearing Display Ad P-2
Affidavit of Publication P-2
Public Hearing Display Ad P-4
Affidavit of Publication for P-4





























 

Resolution18-09-02  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-09-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

ADOPTING A RESIDENTIAL ANTIDISPLACEMENT AND 

RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2019, AS 

REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 104(d) OF THE HOUSING AND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1974 AS AMENDED.  
 
 

WHEREAS, Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as 

amended, and implementing regulations require that each applicant for Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds must adopt, make public and certify that it is 

following a residential antidisplacement and relocation assistance plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, Gila County is submitting applications to the Arizona Department of 

Housing for HOME Partnership Project, and CDBG State Special Project Account funds; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

does hereby adopt a residential antidisplacement and relocation assistance plan as 

described below. 

 

RESIDENTIAL ANTIDISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN 

The County of Gila will replace all occupied and vacant occupy-able low- to moderate-

income (LMI) dwelling units demolished or converted to a use other than as LMI 

housing as a direct result of activities assisted with funds provided under the Housing 

and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended. 

 

All replacement housing will be provided within three years of the commencement of 

the demolition or rehabilitation relating to conversion. 

 

Before obligating or expending funds that will directly result in such demolition or 

conversion, the County of Gila will make public and submit to the Arizona Department 

of Housing the following information in writing:  

 

1. A description of the proposed activity; 



 

Resolution 18-09-02                                       Page 2 of 2 

 

2. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size 

(number of 

bedrooms) that will be demolished or converted to a use other than as LMI dwelling 

units as a direct result of the assisted activity; 

3. A time schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or 

conversion; 

4. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size 

(number of 

bedrooms) that will be provided as replacement dwelling units; 

5. The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of replacement dwelling 

units;  

6. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit will remain an LMI 

dwelling unit for at least 10 years from the date of initial occupancy; and  

7. Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of housing units with 

smaller dwelling units (e.g., a 2-bedroom unit with two 1-bedroom units), or any 

proposed replacement of efficiency or single-room occupancy units with units of a 

different size, is appropriate and consistent with the housing needs and priorities 

identified in the State of Arizona's approved Consolidated Plan. 

 

Gila County Housing Services will provide relocation assistance as described in the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended, and implementing 

regulations to each LMI household displaced by demolition of housing or by the 

conversion of an LMI dwelling unit to another use as a direct result of assisted 

activities. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of September 2018, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman    

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney,  

Civil Bureau Chief 



 

Resolution No.18-09-03  Page 1 of 2 

      

 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-09-03 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR 

FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2018-2019 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANT (CDBG) REGIONAL ACCOUNT AND A FUTURE 

APPLICATION OF THE STATE SPECIAL PROJECT (SSP) ACCOUNT 

FUNDS; CERTIFYING THAT SAID APPLICATIONS MEET THE 

COMMUNITY’S PREVIOUSLY IDENTIFIED HOUSING AND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS AND THE REQUIREMENTS 

OF THE CDBG PROGRAM; AND AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT AND COMPLETE THE ACTIVITIES 

OUTLINED IN THE APPLICATIONS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking community 

development activities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Arizona is administering the CDBG program; and   

 

WHEREAS, the activities outlined within this application address the community’s low- to 

moderate-income population housing needs; and 

 

WHEREAS, recipients of funds from the CDBG program are required to comply with the 

program guidelines, and state and federal statutes and regulations; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

authorizes an application to be made to the State of Arizona, Department of Housing for FY 

2018-2019 CDBG Regional Account program funds and a future application for CDBG SSP 

Account funds; authorizes its Chairman to sign the applications and contracts or grant documents 

for receipt and use of these funds for owner occupied housing rehabilitation; and 3) authorizes its 

Chairman to take all actions necessary to implement and complete the activities submitted in said 

applications; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will comply with all 

CDBG program guidelines; state and federal statutes and regulations applicable to the CDBG 

program; and the certifications contained in the applications. 

 



 

Resolution No. 18-09-03  Page 2 of 2 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of September 2018, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman    

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Jefferson R. Dalton 

Deputy Gila County Attorney,  

Civil Bureau Chief 











   
ARF-5078   Regular Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

12 months from
signature

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
License and Services Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc. for Eagle
Software Conversion - Correction to Total Dollar Amount.

Background Information
The Assessor's Office software is outdated and not compatible with
Treasurer's Office software, so the Assessor's Office is going to
convert from the existing Harris software to Tyler Eagle software.  To
accomplish this task, on July 24, 2018, the Board of Supervisors
approved a License and Services Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc.
for conversion of the Assessor's Office existing data to Tyler Eagle product
in the amount of $106,070.  

Upon receipt of the Purchase Order, Tyler Technologies notified Gila
County that the dollar amount was incorrect. The correct dollar amount,
as shown on page 14 of the agreement is $286,444.  The amount of
$106,070 was the total amount for professional services, not the total
amount of the contract.

Evaluation
This information needs to be presented to the Board of Supervisors so
that it can approve the correct amount of the License and Services
Agreement for the work to be performed by Tyler Technologies.

Conclusion
The Board's approval of the correct total dollar amount of the License and



The Board's approval of the correct total dollar amount of the License and
Services Agreement with Tyler Technologies will allow Tyler Technologies
to commence with the work as outlined in the Agreement.

Recommendation
The Finance Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the correct dollar amount of $286,444 for the License and Services
Agreement with Tyler Technologies.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the correct total dollar amount
of the License and Services Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc. that
was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 24, 2018, in the
amount of $106,070 and should have been presented as $286,444. 
(Mary Springer/Joseph Williams)

Attachments
Gila County AZ_License and Services Agreement















































































































































































   
ARF-5069   Regular Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Request the Board of Supervisors certify the collections for the Superior
Court for FY 2017-2018.

Background Information
Per A.R.S. 41-2421 (G), each year the Board of Supervisors must certify
the annual collections for the Superior Court, Payson Regional Justice
Court, and Globe Regional Justice Court for Fiscal Year 2017-2018.

Superior Court - Amount to be certified is $782,164.24.
Payson Regional Justice Court - Amount to be certified is $495,851.64.
Globe Regional Justice Court - Amount to be certified is $623,947.65.

Evaluation
The Gila County Treasurer's Office has prepared the collection report for
FY 2017-2018 for Board of Supervisors' certification.

Conclusion
Request the Board of Supervisors to certify the collection amounts for the
Superior Court, Payson Regional Justice Court, and Globe Regional
Justice Court as presented.

Recommendation
Staff recommends certification.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to certify the collection amounts for the
Superior Court, Payson Regional Justice Court, and Globe Regional
Justice Court as presented.  (Mary Springer)



Attachments
Court Collection







   
ARF-5067   Regular Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance

Information
Request/Subject
Authorization to Publish a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous
Surplus Material.

Background Information
The County has the following miscellaneous surplus items available for
public auction: miscellaneous file cabinets, folding table, misc. chairs,
laptop with case, shredder, fax machine, misc. printers, large toll cart,
misc. desk accessories, misc. bookcases, coffee table, side table, lamp
shades, cooler boxes, picture frames, video camera in case, small drawer
file cabinets, misc. storage boxes, desk, hanging file folder frames, binder,
floor mats, misc. office supplies, dry erase boards, cork boards, small
rolling stool, Christmas tree stands, misc. computers and accessories,
and older TVs.

Evaluation
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-251(9), the Gila County Board of Supervisors may
sell at public auction, after thirty days' previous notice given by
publication in a newspaper of the County, any property belonging to the
County that the Board deems unnecessary for use by the County. 

All interested parties are invited to bid on the Miscellaneous Surplus
Material.  Award will be conveyed to the highest bidder.

Conclusion
The public auction notice will be published in the Tuesday, September 18,
2018, edition of the Payson Roundup newspaper.

Recommendation
The Gila County Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors



The Gila County Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the publication of a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous
Surplus Material in the Payson Roundup newspaper.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication of a Notice
of Public Auction for Miscellaneous Surplus Material in the Payson
Roundup newspaper on September 18, 2018.  (Mary Springer)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   

ARF-5074   Regular Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of language added to Article III-Section 1(G) of the Bylaws of the Gila County Community
Action Program (CAP) Advisory Board and the Amendment to the Bylaws.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors established the Gila County CAP Advisory Board on January 20,
1998, and thereafter Bylaws for this Board were developed and implemented.  The CAP Advisory Board
underwent a complete review of its Bylaws in 2016-2017, and the Amended Bylaws were presented and
approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 18, 2017.

The Federal Office of Community Services (OCS) notified the CAP Advisory Board that its Bylaws don't
fully meet the requirements of the OCS's Organization Standards with regard to new member
orientation; therefore, an Amendment to the Bylaws is being added to outline the procedures for new
member orientation.  Language has been added to Article III-Advisory Board, Section 1 (G) of the
Bylaws, as follows:  Members are expected to assist each other in orientation and education related to
Advisory Board responsibilities.  Reference attached Amendment for new member orientation process.

An Amendment outlining the procedures for new member orientation will be added to the Bylaws.

Evaluation
On August 16, 2018, the CAP Advisory Board unanimously approved the language that was added to
Article III-Advisory Board, Section 1 (G) and the Amendment to the Bylaws contingent upon Board of
Supervisors' approval. 

Conclusion
The added language to the CAP Advisory Board Bylaws and Amendment need to be presented to the
Board of Supervisors for approval.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends the Board of Supervisors' approval
of the added language to Article III-Section 1(G) of the CAP Advisory Board Bylaws and the Amendment
to the Bylaws.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve language added to Article III-Section 1(G) of the Bylaws of the
Gila County Community Action Plan Advisory Board and the Amendment to the Bylaws which outlines
the process for new member orientation.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Proposed Amended CAP Advisory Board Bylaws
CAP Advisory Board Minutes 8/16/18





 

 

 

By-Laws  
of the 

 
GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM 

ADVISORY BOARD 

 

 

SFY 2018 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 1 
 

 

Table of Contents 
 

ARTICLE I ....................................................................................................................... 1 

INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 1  Name .................................................................................................................. 1 

Section 2  Description ....................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II ...................................................................................................................... 1 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE .................................................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE III ..................................................................................................................... 2 

ADVISORY BOARD ................................................................................................................... 2 

Section 1  Membership and Tripartite Sectors ............................................................. 2 

Section 2  Powers and Duties .......................................................................................... 2 

Section 3  Composition ..................................................................................................... 3 

Section 4  Petition Procedure .................................................................................................. 5 

Section 5  Residence ................................................................................................................. 5 

Section 6  Terms of Office ........................................................................................................ 5 

Section 7  Vacancies ................................................................................................................. 6 

Section 8  Resignation .............................................................................................................. 6 

Section 9  Removal for Cause ................................................................................................ 6 

Section 10  Conflict of Interest ..................................................................................................... 7 

Section 11  Member Compensation ............................................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE IV .................................................................................................................... 7 

OFFICERS .................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Section 1  Officers of the Board ...........................................................................................7 

Section 2  Election of Officers ..............................................................................................7 

Section 3  Duties of Officers .................................................................................................8 

ARTICLE V .......................................................................................................................... 8 

COMMITTEES .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Section 1  Ad Hoc Committees ............................................................................................8 

Section 2  Standing Committees .........................................................................................9 

Section 3  Appointment ..........................................................................................................9 

 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page II 
 

Section 4  Membership and Officers ..................................................................................9 

ARTICLE VI ......................................................................................................................... 9 

MEETINGS ................................................................................................................................................. 9 

Section 1  Types of Meetings................................................................................................9 

Section 2  Arizona Open Meeting Law ....................................................................................... 10 

Section 3  Notice of Meetings ......................................................................................................... 10 

Section 4  Minutes ................................................................................................................................ 10 

Section 5  Meeting Requirements ................................................................................................. 10 

ARTICLE VII ...................................................................................................................... 11 

AMENDMENT ......................................................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE VIII ..................................................................................................................... 11 

DISSOLUTION ........................................................................................................................................ 11 

ARTICLE IX ....................................................................................................................... 11 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO GRANTEE INFORMATION ............................................................... 11 

ARTICLE X ........................................................................................................................ 12 

FISCAL YEAR AND ANNUAL BUDGET .................................................................................... 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 1 
 

ARTICLE I 

INTRODUCTION 

Section 1  Name 

The name of the organization shall be the Gila County Community Action Program 

Advisory Board (Advisory Board). 

Section 2  Description 

The Advisory Board was established pursuant to action adopted by the Gila County Board 

of Supervisors on January 20, 1998.  The location of the Gila County Community Action 

Program (CAP) and the Advisory Board is 5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200, Globe, 

Arizona 85501. 

ARTICLE II 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

The purpose of the Advisory Board is to focus on the low-income population as follows: 

A. To provide a range of services and assistance with a measurable and potentially 

major impact on the causes of poverty in Gila County. 

 

B. To promote self-sufficiency by providing services designed to assist low income 

residents.   

 

C. To serve as an advocate for people in need. 

 

D. To assist program participants by providing utility assistance, eviction/homeless 

prevention, energy awareness, financial literacy, and employment seeking skills. 

 

E. To coordinate, communicate, refer, network and establish linkages between 

governmental, social services and private entities to assure the effective delivery of 

services to low income individuals.  

 

F. To provide oversight of the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) and other 

funding programs. 

 

G. To pursue and obtain grants and/or loans to acquire funding to provide the above 

mentioned services. 

  



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 2 
 

ARTICLE III 

ADVISORY BOARD 

Section 1  Membership and Tripartite Sectors 

A. The membership of the Advisory Board shall consist of a minimum of nine (9) 

members not to exceed a maximum of twelve (12) members.  At least one-third 

(1/3) of the members shall represent the Low-Income Sector and, the remaining 

members should equally represent the Public Sector and the Private Sector. 

B. All members of the Board must be 18 years of age or older and residents of Gila 

County.  

C. Each member of the Advisory Board is expected to attend at least four (4) Advisory 

Board meetings per year and may be requested by the Chairperson to serve on a 

committee.   

D. Members will complete tasks assigned by the Advisory Board Chairperson and will 

carry out assignments from committees to which they have been appointed. 

E. Members are expected to be knowledgeable about the essential matters 

confronting the Advisory Board. 

F. Members are able to participate actively in the development, planning, 

implementation, and evaluation of programs funded under the Community Services 

Block Grant (CSBG). 

G. Members are expected to assist each other in orientation and education related to 

Advisory Board responsibilities.  Reference attached Amendment for new member 

orientation process.   

H. Members will be required to sign a Loyalty Oath. 

I. Members must verify they have read the Arizona Open Meeting Law.   

Section 2  Powers and Duties 

1. To oversee the extent and quality of the participation of the low-income population 

in the programs of the CAP. 

 

2. To determine, subject to CSBG approval, rules and procedures for the Advisory 

Board. 

 

3. To elect the officers of the Advisory Board, Executive Committee, and assign 

members of all other committees of the Advisory Board. 

 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 3 
 

4. To deliberate and vote upon matters and submit written recommendations to the 

Board of Supervisors for the fiscal year. 

 

5. To ensure that all CSBG program plans and priorities are in conjunction with the 

Community Services Needs Assessment that must be completed every three 

years. 

 

6. To review all program proposals and budgets ongoing and based on the 

Community Action Plan in order to submit to the State of Arizona CSBG office. 

This will be done on a yearly basis so the annual CAP Plan may be submitted for 

the start of the fiscal year. 

 

7. To approve all evaluation, assessment studies, and reports that pertain to the 

locations of CAP offices that best serves Gila County.  

 

8. To provide direction and oversight to all programs carried out under Federal anti-

poverty grants in accordance with the terms of the grants, providing such 

programs are not contrary to said laws. 

 

9. To participate and approve, on an ongoing basis, plans and assessments 

including trainings for CAP. 

Section 3  Composition 

The Advisory Board shall be approved by the Gila County Board of Supervisors following 

recommendation of the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 as amended by the Community 

Services Act of 1974 and regulations publicized there under.  In accordance with 42 U.S. 

Code § 9910(b), Gila County shall administer the CSBG program through a tripartite board. 

A. Public Sector: 

One-third (1/3) of the members or equal to the Private Sector representation 

shall represent the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

Selection Procedures: An application for membership on the Advisory Board shall be 
presented to the Community Services Division Staff Liaison (as defined in Board of 
Supervisor’s Policy No. BOS-COB-002 – Boards, Commissions and Committees) to 
determine eligibility to serve on the Advisory Board.  The Staff Liaison will then forward a 
recommendation for appointment to the Board of Supervisors.  The Board of Supervisors 
appoints all members that represent the Public Sector of which the incumbent’s term of 
office will begin after the Board of Supervisors’ approval.  If a vacancy occurs otherwise 
than by expiration of term, the vacancy shall be filled by appointment by the Board of 
Supervisors for the unexpired portion of the term.     

B. Low-Income Sector: 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 4 
 

Not fewer than one-third (1/3) of the members shall represent Low-Income 

individuals as defined by the current Federal Poverty Level Index.  To qualify 

as a candidate for membership on the Advisory Board in the low-income 

category, a person must have had an annual individual income that was at or 

below 200% of the current federal poverty guidelines for the preceding tax 

year, or, alternatively, that person have resided in a family whose annual family 

income was at or below 200% of the current federal poverty guidelines for 

families of that size for the preceding tax year.  A potential candidate must 

submit a sworn and notarized statement of their (or family) annual income for 

the twelve (12) months preceding the application for candidacy.  This 

statement will be retained with their application.  A person seeking to be on 

the Advisory Board in the capacity of a representative of the low-income 

community, who does not qualify as a person who has low-income, must have 

worked for a public agency, a private enterprise, or a charitable society that 

provides services to person who are at or below 200% of the current federal 

poverty guidelines for the six (6) months immediately preceding the application 

for candidacy, and that person must have worked at least ten (10) hours per 

month in that work for the immediately preceding six (6) months.    

Selection Procedures:  Low-Income members are determined by and selected in 

accordance with democratic selection procedures.  The CAP staff will maintain 

information on the democratic selection process.  The candidate must reside in the 

geographic area for which an election will be held. Low-Income representatives shall be 

sought out by advertising in local newspapers and posting notices.  A candidate may 

obtain an application at the local CAP office or on the Gila County website at 

www.gilacountyaz.gov.  The application must be provided to the local CAP office that 

shall date stamp the application.    A ballot shall be compiled of the eligible candidates.  

Ballots shall be made available through the CAP office(s), Advisory Board member(s), or 

candidates.  The general public shall be allowed to cast one vote per adult person.  A 

ballot shall be submitted to the CAP office in person by the voter with their picture 

identification by a specified date.  Ballots from the public are tabulated.  Candidate 

information and ballots shall be presented to the Advisory Board.  After the election results 

have been declared official by the Advisory Board, the results shall be officially 

acknowledged by the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  Candidate applications and 

ballots shall remain on file at the CAP office for five (5) years. 

C. Private Sector: 

The remainder of the members, or equal to the Public Sector representation, 

shall represent business, industry, labor, religious, law enforcement, welfare, 

education, nonprofit, or other major groups and interests in the community.  

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/


By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 5 
 

Selection Procedures: A candidate for the Private Sector must complete an application 

that can be obtained from the local CAP office or on the Gila County website at 

www.gilacountyaz.gov.  All applications will be reviewed by the Advisory Board.  Private 

Sector representatives shall be appointed during a Regular Meeting of the Advisory Board 

by a majority vote of the Public Sector and Low-Income Sector representatives on the 

Advisory Board.  The name of the new member shall be presented to the Gila County 

Board of Supervisors on a Board of Supervisors’ meeting agenda whereby the Board will 

acknowledge the member. 

Section 4  Petition Procedure 

Any individual representing a group or agency that believes it is not adequately 

represented on the Advisory Board may petition for a seat on the Advisory Board for such 

representation.  A formal written request (petition) for representation shall be submitted 

to the President of the Board.  The petition must contain valid signatures of fifty-one 

percent (51%) of the governing body or signed by a minimum of twenty (20) adult Gila 

County residents in the area of the group seeking representation.  The petition will be 

considered and voted upon at a Regular Meeting of the Advisory Board.  A written 

statement of the Advisory Board’s recommendation and reasons for the decision will be 

provided within ten (10) days after the Regular Meeting to the petitioning group or 

individual and to the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   

 

The Gila County Board of Supervisors will be requested to act on the Advisory Board’s 

recommendations within one (1) month at a regularly announced public meeting and 

render a final decision on the petition.  If the petition is approved by the Board of 

Supervisors, the Advisory Board shall adjust its size or composition to grant a seat on the 

Advisory Board or otherwise comply with the Board of Supervisors’ directive.   

 

In the event the petition is denied, the organization may resubmit its petition to the 

Advisory Board and Board of Supervisors.  Community Services Block Grant 

Administration shall be notified after a decision has been reached. 

 

Section 5  Residence 

All members of the Advisory Board shall be residents of Gila County, Arizona, excluding 
American Indian reservation areas.   

Section 6  Terms of Office 

The terms of office for the Advisory Board members shall be for four (4) years.  The term 

of office for the Public Sector representative will begin on the date the Board of 

Supervisors appoints the Public Sector representative and end on December 31st in the 

year of the four (4) year term.  The term of office for the Low-Income Sector 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/


By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 6 
 

representatives and Private Sector representatives will begin on the date the election 

results are made official by the Advisory Board and end on December 31st in the year of 

the four (4) year term.  The elected incumbent shall fill the vacated term of office and 

assume that appointed term.   

Section 7  Vacancies 

There is a vacancy on the Advisory Board when:   

A. A member notifies the Advisory Board in writing of his/her resignation. 

B. A member has been notified of his/her official removal by action of the Advisory 

Board for cause as stated in Section 8 of these By-Laws. 

C. When the Gila County Board of Supervisors removes a Public Sector 

representative. 

D. Death of the member. 

E. A member’s conviction of a felony or an offense involving a violation of the person’s 

duties. 

F. Failure to sign the Loyalty Oath. 

In the event a vacancy occurs in the Public Sector (Article III, Section 2, A), the Advisory 
Board shall ask the Board of Supervisors to elect another member within 90 days.  The 
position shall be filled in accordance with the selection procedures set forth in Article III, 
Section 2, A. to fill the unexpired term or vacated term. 
 
In the event a vacancy occurs in the Low-Income Sector (Article III, Section 2, B), it shall 
be filled within 90 days.  The vacancy shall be filled in accordance to the selection 
procedures set forth in Article III, Section 2, B. to fill the unexpired term or vacated term. 
 
In the event a vacancy occurs in the Private Sector (Article III, Section 2, C), the Advisory 
Board shall select a Private Sector member within 90 days in accordance to the selection 
procedures set forth in Article III, Section 2, C. to fill the unexpired term or vacated term.   

 
Section 8  Resignation 

Resignation by a member shall be submitted in writing to the Advisory Board Chairperson.  

An agenda item will be placed on the next Advisory Board meeting to acknowledge that 

member’s resignation.   

Section 9  Removal for Cause 

Advisory Board members may possibly be removed from office if any of the following 

occurs: 

A. Documented violation of conflict of interest. 

B. Failure to meet Advisory Board representation requirements as defined in these 

By-Laws and any other related state or federal guidelines.   



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 7 
 

C. Documented proof of malfeasance, fraud or abuse. 

D. A member who has one (1) unexcused absence. 

An Advisory Board member may possibly be removed from the Advisory Board for cause 

if two-thirds (2/3) majority of the Advisory Board approved such actions at a legally 

constituted meeting.   

Section 10  Conflict of Interest  

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues § 38-501 through § 38-511, every public officer or 
employee of Gila County who has a “substantial interest” in any contract, sale, purchase, 
service or decision involving any department or elected official of Gila County 
government, shall “make that interest known in the official records of Gila County” and 
shall refrain from voting upon or otherwise participating in any manner in such contract, 
sale, purchase, service or decision.  No person, who is an officer or employee of an 
organization subcontracted by the CAP to perform a component of the CSBG work 
program, may sit on the Advisory Board.  A member of the Advisory Board shall declare 
a conflict of interest of any item that would relate to the private financial interest of the 
member or the member’s relative.  A relative is defined as a spouse, child, grandchild, 
parent, grandparent, brother or sister of whole or half blood and their spouses and the 
parent, brother, sister or child of a spouse.  An Advisory Board member must sign a 
Conflict of Interest Statement.   

 
Section 11  Member Compensation 

All Advisory Board members shall serve without compensation, except for mileage 

reimbursement for travel to Advisory Board meetings of twenty-five (25) miles or more 

per round trip using Gila County’s standard mileage reimbursement rate.  

 

ARTICLE IV 

OFFICERS 

Section 1  Officers of the Board 

Officers of the Advisory Board shall consist of a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson, and a 

Secretary. 

Section 2  Election of Officers 

The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary shall be elected by a simple majority 

vote at the Annual Meeting by the Advisory Board and shall serve for a term of two (2) 

years. 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 8 
 

Section 3  Duties of Officers 

1. Chairperson - The Chairperson shall:  (A) preside at all meetings, establish 

standing or ad hoc committees with the concurrence of the Board; (B) serve as 

ex-officio member of all committees, appoint a committee chairperson; work 

closely with the Director of the Community Services Program and the 

Coordinator/Manager of CAP; (C) and function in such capacities as the Board 

may designate.  No one individual may hold this office for more than one 

consecutive term unless so voted by a majority of the Advisory Board.     

 

2. Vice-Chairperson - The Vice-Chairperson shall serve in the absence of the 

Chairperson.  No one individual may hold this office for more than one consecutive 

term unless so voted by a majority of the Advisory Board.   

 

3. Secretary - The Secretary shall: (A) be responsible for recording and preparing 

written minutes of each meeting; prepare and post the public notice and agenda 

of meetings pursuant to the “Disclosure Statement” and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02; 

(B) ensure that each member of the Advisory Board is provided within seven (7) 

days prior to the next called meeting a copy of the public notice/agenda and 

pertinent documents/information for all agenda items to be discussed and or voted 

upon at the meeting; (C) ensure that a copy of the minutes of each meeting is 

available at the Gila County CAP office for inspection by the general public within 

seven (7) days following the Advisory Board meeting in which the minutes were 

approved and provide a copy of the approved minutes to the Clerk of the Board 

of Supervisors within the same time frame in accordance with Board of 

Supervisors’ Policy No. BOS-COB-002; (D) presides over the meeting in the 

absence of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.  No one individual may hold 

this office for more than one consecutive term unless so voted by a majority of the 

Advisory Board.     

 

 

ARTICLE V 

COMMITTEES 

The Advisory Board Chairman has the authority to establish ad hoc or standing 

committees with the concurrence of the Advisory Board in order to carry out the business 

of the Advisory Board as the Chairman deems appropriate.   

Section 1  Ad Hoc Committees 

The Advisory Board has authority to establish ad hoc committees in order to address 

specific issues.  An ad hoc committee may be established for a specific purpose with a 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 9 
 

specific time frame.  Once the Committee has presented its findings/report to the Advisory 

Board, the Advisory Board shall take official action to disband the Committee. 

Section 2  Standing Committees 

The Advisory Board has authority to establish Standing Committees in order to carry 

out the business of the Advisory Board. 

Executive Committee - The Advisory Board Chairperson, with the concurrence of the 
Advisory Board, shall appoint an executive committee comprised of the elected officers.  
All meetings of the Advisory Board and any of its ad hoc, standing, or executive 
committees shall comply in form and manner as required by the Arizona Open Meeting 
Law (OML).  This Committee shall have the authority to transact routine business and 
emergency matters between meetings of the Advisory Board.  The minutes and all 
decisions made by the Executive Committee shall be ratified by the Advisory Board at the 
next Regular Meeting.   

Section 3  Appointment 

Members of a committee shall be appointed by the Chairperson, with the concurrence 

of the Advisory Board.   

Section 4  Membership and Officers 

 All committees with important policy-making or advisory function shall fairly reflect 

the composition of the Advisory Board.  Each standing committee shall consist of at least 

three (3) Advisory Board members; the membership of other committees may vary in size.  

Additional committee members from outside the Advisory Board may be appointed to the 

committee by the Advisory Board Chairperson for specific purposes on an ad hoc basis.  

Any such ad hoc members duly appointed by the Chairperson shall have a full and equal 

vote as regular members of that standing committee.   

 

ARTICLE VI 

MEETINGS 

Section 1  Types of Meetings 

A. Annual Meeting – The Annual Meeting of the Advisory Board shall be held in 
August.  The time and date for holding the Annual Meeting of the members of the 
Advisory Board may be altered by a majority vote of the members at any meeting 
thereof.  At the Annual Meeting, the By-Laws shall be reviewed.  Any proposed 
revisions will be presented for adoption at the following Regular Meeting of the 
Advisory Board.   

B. Regular Meeting – Regular Meetings of the Advisory Board shall be scheduled 
once quarterly to conduct the Advisory Board affairs at a time and location 
designated by the Chairperson. 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 10 
 

C. Special Meeting - Special meetings may be called by the Advisory Board 
Chairperson or by the Vice-Chairperson upon the written request of twenty percent 
(20%) of the Advisory Board members.  The purpose(s) of such a meeting shall be 
set forth in the notice thereof.  A three (3) days’ notice will be given to the Advisory 
Board members for a Special Board meeting.  All meetings of the Advisory Board 
shall comply in form and manner as required by the Arizona Open Meeting Law. 

 
Section 2  Arizona Open Meeting Law 

All meetings of the Advisory Board and any of its ad hoc or standing committees shall 
comply in form and manner as required by the Arizona Open Meeting Law (OML). 
 
Section 3  Notice of Meetings 

The OML requires at least 24 hours’ advance notice of all meetings to the public body 
(Advisory Board) and to the general public. 
 

A. Disclosure Statement – The OML requires the posting of a Disclosure 
Statement identifying the physical and electronic locations where public notices 
of meetings of the Advisory Board will be displayed.  The Disclosure Statement 
is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.   

B. Public Note and Agenda – The OML states that the public notice and agenda 
may be combined.  Also, per the OML, the Advisory Board meeting agenda 
shall contain the “specific matters to be discussed, considered or decided at 
the meeting”.  This requirement does not permit the use of generic agenda 
items such as “personal”, “new business”, “old business”, or “other matters” 
unless the specific matters or items to be discussed are separately identified.  

C. Notice to Advisory Board Members -- There shall be at least seven (7) days’ 
notice of all Regular Meetings and three (3) days’ notice for all Special Meetings 
to Advisory Board members.  The public notice/meeting agenda can be e-
mailed to all Advisory Board members who have electronic access.  For those 
that do not have electronic access, those members shall be contacted by 
telephone to decide upon picking up a copy of the agenda at the local CAP 
office or have the public notice/meeting agenda mailed.     

 
Section 4  Minutes 

Minutes must be taken at all public meetings.  Minutes may be taken in writing or may be 
recorded by tape recorder or video tape recorder.  The minutes or a recording of any 
Advisory Board meeting or any of its committees and ad hoc committees shall be 
available for public inspection within seven (7) working days after the meeting.  In addition, 
any recording and minutes are public records subject to record retention requirements.   
 
 
 
 
Section 5  Meeting Requirements 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 11 
 

A. Quorum – At least fifty-percent (50%) rounded up to the nearest whole number 
of the currently appointed or elected Advisory Board membership shall 
constitute a quorum.  Telephonic conference calls where all members may hear 
one another or web-based participation is permitted.  However, no proxies or 
alternates are permitted and do not count toward a quorum.   

B. Attendance – An Advisory Board member who has an unexcused absence from 
one (1) meeting shall forfeit his/her seat on the Advisory Board.  The member 
must provide notice to the Chairperson of an expected absence within 24 hours 
prior to a meeting.  All Advisory Board members may attend the meeting in 
person, telephonically, or by electronic media.  A telephone call to a member’s 
phone may be used in case the conference call line is not available for the 
meeting.    

C. Time and Place – All Advisory Board meetings must be reasonably convenient 
in time and place. 

D. Voting – Each appointed member of the Advisory Board shall have one vote.  
A simple majority vote of Advisory Board members present is needed to pass 
a motion, except where these By-Laws require a greater majority.  No proxy 
voting shall be allowed.  

 

ARTICLE VII 

AMENDMENT 

These By-Laws may be altered, amended, or repealed by affirmative vote of two-thirds 

(2/3) of the Advisory Board, subject to final approval of the Board of Supervisors.  Any 

proposed alteration, amendment or repeal shall be contained in a written notice to each 

member of the Advisory Board mailed at least ten (10) days prior to any meeting at which 

an amendment of these By-Laws is to be considered. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

DISSOLUTION 

In the event dissolution of the Advisory Board should become necessary, it shall be 

effected in accordance with pertinent directives of State and Federal law. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE IX 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO GRANTEE INFORMATION 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 12 
 

Gila County CAP shall make available for inspection and examination those documents 

and records which pertain to activities assisted by the CSBG.  An exception to this rule is 

the inspection of confidential individual client records. 

 

ARTICLE X 

FISCAL YEAR AND ANNUAL BUDGET  

The fiscal year of the agency shall be from July 1 through June 30 of the following year.  

Gila County CAP’s annual budget shall be presented to the Advisory Board for its review 

at least seven (7) days prior to a Regular Quarterly Meeting each year with approval at 

that same meeting.  

 

  



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 13 
 

GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM (CAP) 

ADVISORY BOARD 

BY-LAWS SFY 2018 

 

AMENDMENT 

 

ARTICLE III 

ADVISORY BOARD 

 

SECTION 1  Membership and Tripartite Sectors 

 G.  New Member Orientation 

  A new member on the CAP Advisory Board shall complete an 

orientation process within one month of being seated.  The orientation shall be 

facilitated by the CAP Advisory Board President or a mentor can be delegated by 

the President.  

 The new member orientation process shall consist of: 

1. Providing the CAP Advisory Board binder consisting of prior 

agendas, minutes, financial statements, meeting dates, contact list, By-

laws, CAP Plan and Community Needs Assessment.  

2. Explaining the roles, responsibilities, and expectations of each of the 

Advisory Board members.  Providing a roster and contact information 

of the Advisory Board members. Providing meeting dates for the 

current fiscal year.  Providing the Arizona Open Meeting Law 

information.   

3. Providing an overview of the programs and services of Community 

Action Program and Community Services.  Explaining staff roles and 

responsibilities (including the Executive Director and CAP 

Coordinator).  Explaining how the organization operates and 

functions.  Providing an organizational chart.  

4. Providing the Mission and Vision statements for CAP.  Explaining 

how the Mission is achieved and their role to support and ensure the 

success of CAP. 

5. Explaining CSBG (Community Services Block Grant), other Federal, 

State, local and private funding sources.  Reviewing a year of prior 

quarterly financial statements as provided to the CAP Advisory 

Board.  Providing an overview and the Advisory Board’s role in 

financial management policies and procedures.   

6. Providing a copy and reviewing the CSBG Information Memorandum 

(IM) #82 Tripartite Board document. 

7. Providing a year of prior CAP Advisory Board agendas and minutes. 



By-Laws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board SFY 2018 

Page 14 
 

8. Reviewing CAP Advisory Board By-laws, Community Needs 

Assessment, CAP Plan, and Strategic Plan. 

9. Ensuring the Whistleblower Policy, Conflict of Interest, Open 

Meeting Laws, and Loyalty Oath of Office documents are provided, 

explained, and signed by the new Board member.  
 



 

CAP Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 08/16/2018 

 Page 1 of 6 

 

Gila County Community Services Division 
5515 S. Apache Ave. Suite 200, Globe, AZ 85501 

Phone: (928) 425-7631 

"Unite low-income residents and community resources to overcome the challenges of poverty."  

 

Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board  

Meeting Minutes  

August 16, 2018 

 

I.     Call to Order/Welcome 

 
The Gila County Community Action Program (CAP) Advisory Board (herein referred to as 

“Board”) met in annual session at 10:00 a.m. at Mazatzal Casino Cedar Ridge Restaurant 

Conference Room, 30 Loop Street, Payson, AZ. 85541. Chairman Cody Newman called the 

meeting to order at 10:06 a.m.    

 

II.   Roll Call and Introductions 

 

Present:  Cody Newman (Chairman), Annie Hinojos (Secretary), Vicky Quesada, Margret Celix, 

Nolberto (Chuco) Waddell.   

 

Excused Absent: Mario Villegas, Audrey Opitz.  

 

Via teleconference: Michael Black (Vice-Chairman). 

 

Guests/Staff:  Malissa Buzan, Dorine Prine, Allison Torres, Elsa Bobier and Chuck Proudfoot. 

 

Ms. Prine introduced Chuck Proudfoot. Mr. Proudfoot is from Payson and will be the new Public 

Sector member on the Board who is a representative of the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

(BOS).  His approval is on the August 20, 2018 agenda for the BOS.  He has agreed to conduct the 

Community Assessment Needs Focus Group in Payson on August 21, 2018. Mr. Proudfoot retired 

April 1, 2018 as the Pastor of the Community Presbyterian Church in Payson.  Currently, he is on 

the board of First Things First for the Gila Region, Payson Area Food Drive coordinator, was 

chairman for three years with Habitat for Humanity, has worked with Inter-Agencies in Illinois 

and South Dakota (when the Inter-Agency was started with the Reagan Law), active in National 

Church, works primarily with communications, and his hobbies are trains. Ms. Prine informed the 

Board that the Inter-Agency meeting in Globe is called the Southern Gila County Network Team; 

in Payson, it’s called the Inter-Agency meeting.  Both meetings consist of organizations, agencies, 

businesses, and service people that come together to share ideas and resources.  Due to the joint 

effort with Mr. Proudfoot, the Inter-Agency meeting in Payson has grown tremendously. There 

were 28 agencies and 34 people at the last Payson Inter-Agency meeting on August 9, 2018.              

  

 



 

CAP Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 08/16/2018 

 Page 2 of 6 

III.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the CAP Advisory Board’s May 18, 2018 meeting 

minutes. 

 

Upon motion by Michael Black, seconded by Annie Hinojos, the Board unanimously approved the 

May 18, 2018 meeting minutes.     

 

IV. Information/Discussion/Action to approve the 4th quarter financial report.  

 

 Upon motion by Ms. Hinojos, seconded by Ms. Quesada, the Board unanimously approved the 4th 

quarter financial report for the period April 2018 through June 2018.  

 

 Ms. Prine informed the Board that CAP exhausted all funding for the last quarter, which was the 

end of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018.  Total households approved were 592. Ms. Prine described the 

allotment form handout, which shows the amounts from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. She 

explained the total award amounts are divided by 12 months, divided evenly between the Globe 

and Payson offices, and then recalculated each month. Since CAP has utility funding, we normally 

use Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and Department of Economic Security 

(DES) Voucher for rental assistance. TANF is used when there is a child in the home under the 

age of 18. Ms. Prine went over the funding guidelines for Arizona Public Service (APS) and Low 

Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP).  Gila County Other funding is only used for 

an emergency and must be approved by Malissa Buzan or Dorine Prine. Ms. Prine explained that, 

besides assisting the clients with rental or utility assistance, we inform clients about other 

resources in the community. Some of those resources are St. Vincent de Paul, Salvation Army, 

Dolly Parton Library, Women, Infant & Children (WIC), Food Box programs, and Kaitie’s Closet. 

We also have a list of the low-income apartments and mobile home RV trailer parks. We assist the 

clients to enroll for utility company discount programs, food stamps, and for the free government 

cell phone.     

  

V.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an amendment to the CAP Advisory Board By-Laws 

SFY 2018 to Article III, Section I G, New Member Orientation that is subject to final approval of 

the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  

  

 Ms. Prine explained that the Organization Standards are issued from the Federal Office of 

Community Services (OCS) and that we must be in compliance with them.  The current by-laws 

states in Article III, Section I G, “Members are expected to assist each other in orientation and 

education related to Advisory Board responsibilities”.  OCS stated this was inadequate and we 

needed to have a complete procedure.  Ms. Prine was able to develop a procedure for new member 

orientation, which she presented to the board.  Ms. Prine went over the Amendment Article III 

Advisory Board, Section 1 G, #1 through #9. Mr. Proudfoot suggested changing the wording from 

“a mentor may be chosen by the President” to “a mentor can be delegated by the President” and 

that #8,”Reviewinging” to be corrected to “Reviewing”.  Ms. Hinojos made a motion to accept the 

amendment to the Board by-laws with the change to “a mentor can be delegated by the President” 

and to correct “reviewinging” to “reviewing” and that the by-laws are subject to final approval of 

the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Celix.  The amended by-

laws were unanimously approved.     

 

 

 

                        



 

CAP Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 08/16/2018 

 Page 3 of 6 

 

VI. Acknowledgement of Energy Awareness PowerPoint presentation.  

  

 Ms. Prine thanked Allison Torres for the hard work of designing and updating the Energy 

Awareness PowerPoint presentation.  This presentation is part of the Seminar Attendance that our 

clients view during case management. Upon viewing the presentation, the client must sign the 

Seminar Attendance form.   

 

Ms. Torres provided the Energy Awareness PowerPoint and discussed each slide.  A brief 

conversation followed the presentation.  Ms. Buzan would like to possibly provide carbon 

monoxide detectors to our clients.  Ms. Prine will provide the number of clients we assisted last 

quarter.                             

 

VII. Acknowledgement of Financial Literacy PowerPoint presentation. 

 

Ms. Prine thanked Allison Torres for the hard work of designing and updating the Financial Literacy 

PowerPoint presentation.  This presentation is part of the Seminar Attendance that our clients view 

during case management. Upon viewing the presentation, the client must sign the Seminar 

Attendance form.   

 

Ms. Torres provided the Financial Literacy PowerPoint and discussed each slide.  A brief 

conversation followed the presentation. 

 

VIII. Reports/Updates 

A. Chair’s Report (Cody Newman)  

Mr. Newman thanked everyone that attended Arizona Community Action Association 

(ACAA) annual conference.  

B. Director’s Report (Malissa Buzan)   

Ms. Buzan introduced herself to Chuck Proudfoot and explained some of the services Gila 

County Community Action Program has to offer such as General Equivalency Diploma (GED) 

classes, Workforce Development, Weatherization, Gila Employment and Special Training 

(GEST), Section 8, rental and utility assistance. The main goal is to get people out of poverty 

and not just to fix their emergency crisis. At the Federal level, we have maintained our budget 

status and we are even.  At the state level, DES has a new Director, Michael Trailor, who came 

from the Arizona Department of Housing. In Globe, we have a new fiscal manager, Lisa 

Wilckens, who has 15 years of experience in the County Finance Department.                   

  

C. Coordinator’s Report (Dorine Prine)  

1. Customer Satisfaction Data Report (handout) 

Ms. Prine briefly discussed the customer satisfaction data report.  Ms. Prine stated the 

numbers were low because it was the end of the fiscal year; that caused a decrease in 

services provided to the residents.    

  

2. CAP Success Story (handout) 



 

CAP Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 08/16/2018 

 Page 4 of 6 

Ms. Torres read aloud the CAP success story from the Globe area.  The client had been 

laid off after 12 years with the same organization.  Her daughter and young granddaughter 

had moved in with her. She was the only source of income in the household.  Her 

unemployment insurance benefits had been exhausted. After much searching she was able 

to find a job that was training her to potentially be an office manager with a stable 

company. The CAP office was able to assist with rent and utility assistance. With our 

client’s determination, new employment, and support from the CAP program, she will be 

able to get back on track and recover from her financial crisis.   

 

Elsa Bobier read aloud the CAP success story from the Payson area. The client is a single 

mother living with her three young children. She was struggling financially after child 

support suddenly stopped.  Her son had a medical life-threatening emergency that forced 

her to resign her full-time job in town.  She was able to find a job working weekends out of 

town. By the time she came to CAP, her propane had been turned off for three months, she 

was facing eviction and her electricity was about to be disconnected. The CAP office was 

able to pay her rent, turn on her propane and prevent her electric from being disconnected. 

With her rent and utilities current, plus the child support that she just started to receive 

again, and with her weekend job, she will be able to support her family and be by her son’s 

side as he continues his recovery.     

 

3.  Community Needs Assessment progress  

Ms. Prine explained to the Board that the Community Needs Assessment is completed 

every three years and it is what drives CAP.  The Strategic Plan and CAP Plan are based 

on the outcomes from the Community Needs Assessment.  Ms. Prine thanked Annie 

Hinojos for conducting the Focus Group in the Hayden area. Ms. Hinojos stated the main 

concerns from their Focus Group were lack of medical care, transportation and police 

protection. We have a total of 284 completed surveys so far. The survey closes August 31, 

2018.          

 

4. Review of Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Information Memorandum (IM) #82  

Ms. Prine referred the Board to the CSBG IM #82 Tripartite Boards issued by OCS.  Ms. 

Prine explained that tripartite means three sections:  Low Income, Public and Private.  Ms. 

Prine explained the memorandum that details the Board’s duties, responsibilities and 

obligations and the Board members are representative for the residents of Gila County. 

 

5. Organizational Chart   

 Ms. Prine presented the Gila County Community Services Division organizational chart.  

She briefly discussed each department, person’s name, job duties and responsibilities.        

 

6. Mission and Vision statements           

 Mission Statement: Unite low-income residents and community resources to overcome the 

challenges of poverty.  

 Vision Statement: Empowering, encouraging and educating residents to achieve self-

sufficiency throughout Gila County.  

 Ms. Prine stated that every five years, per the Organization Standards, the Board must 

revisit the mission and vision statements. The mission and vision statements were 

approved by the Board in May 2015, and due again in May 2020.  If the board wants to 

make any changes or better define the mission statement before May 2020 please inform 

Ms. Prine.         



 

CAP Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 08/16/2018 

 Page 5 of 6 

 

7. CAP Plan State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019  

 Ms. Prine informed the Board that the CAP Plan is built off the Community Needs 

Assessment. The CAP Plan must provide direction on how we are able to conduct the 

services we deliver to the residents of Gila County based on the findings of the Community 

Needs Assessment.  Most of our reports are provided to the State (DES) who submit 

information to Federal entities.   

  

8.  Strategic Plan 2016-2020 

Ms. Prine stated the Strategic Plan is a four-year plan and will be completed again in 2020. 

This is based on the Community Needs Assessment that determines the needs and barriers 

in the County. Then, we develop a plan outlining the steps that will be taken to provide 

assistance for those needs and remove or reduce the barriers.  The CAP Plan shows how 

we will direct the services and assistance to overcome those needs and barrier.  The 

Strategic Plan provides a way to carry out the CAP Plan and develop long range goals to 

meet the needs and remove the barriers.   

 

9.  Open Meeting Laws 

 Ms. Prine distributed a form that each board member signed. By signing the form each 

member acknowledges they have received and read the Open Meeting Law 101 today. 

Each Board member can go on-line and read the entire document. Ms. Prine explained to 

the Board that only topics that are on the agenda are to be discussed in the meetings.  

Chuck Proudfoot advised that the State has a training on Open Meeting Law module and 

the State will issue you a certificate once you have completed the training.  Mr. Proudfoot 

will get more information on this. Michael Black stated the Arizona League City and 

Towns provides a class on Open Meeting Laws because, as a councilman, it is a 

requirement.        

 

10.  The department documents that each tripartite board/advisory body member has received a 

copy of the governing documents, within the past 2 years.  

 Ms. Prine informed the Board that each member has received the governing documents.  

The documents are located in each member’s binder.  Updated documents are provided to 

the Board members throughout the year.  It is their responsibility to maintain their binders.  

If anyone is missing or needs additional documents, please contact Ms. Prine.  There was 

no discussion on any of the documents.  

  

11.  The department’s tripartite board/advisory body receives programmatic reports at each 

regular board/advisory meeting. 

Ms. Prine informed the board that each member receives the various programmatic reports, 

financial statements, minutes, success stories, progress or setbacks of CAP.  Each Board 

member should be aware of all proceedings within the CAP organization.  There was no 

discussion on this topic.  

         

IX. Call to the Public: There were no comments from the public.  

  There were no comments from the public. 

 

X. Board members provide a brief summary of current events:  

Margaret Celix: She is working on doing a March of Dimes walk at one of the Miami school; 

working on holding a community walk, possibly in the Spring of next year; serves on the Miami 



 

CAP Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 08/16/2018 

 Page 6 of 6 

School Board; and involved with Court Appointment Special Advocate (CASA) for about 25 

years. 

 

Nolberto(Chuco) Waddell:  He is the Vice-Mayor of Winkelman; participating in the Little 

League Program in Hayden/Winkelman; an announcer for the school football team; and a 

scorekeeper and bookkeeper for the volleyball and basketball teams. 

Annie Hinojos: She has been on the town council for 24 years; Director for the Hayden Senior 

Center; on the Central Arizona Government (CAG); serves on the Regional Council for Pinal/Gila 

Resolution Committee; and an Arizona Senior Center Association member. 

 

Cody Newman: He is a missionary headman in charge for the Latter-Day Saints Church in 

Strawberry; on the Strawberry School Board; Secretary for the Arizona Propane Educational 

Research; on the Board for the Northern Gila County Fair; Vice-President for Arizona Propane 

Association; a liaison for the Governor’s office; and the franchise owner of Griffith’s Propane.   

 

Chuck Proudfoot: He is active with the Main Street Merchants Association; Payson Area Food 

Drive coordinator; a member of the Rim Country Classic Auto Club (he owns a 1955 Chevy); 

President of a 501c3 that is restoring a steam locomotive in Colorado; and is the Member-At-

Large on the First Things First Board.     

 

XI. Adjournment 

Chairman Mr. Newman adjourned the meeting at 2:24 p.m. 



   
ARF-5058   Regular Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

12 months from Award Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Authorization to Advertise Request for Proposals No.
080318-Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support
Services.

Background Information
Gila County is seeking consultation services to implement collaborative
and comprehensive public health approaches and public health
marketing supporting our Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Education (SNAP-Ed) and the Healthy People Healthy Communities
(HPHC) strategies for Healthy Arizona Policy Initiatives (HAPI).
 
Gila County will contract with one Arizona-based organization employing
a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN), Physical Activity Specialist, and
Marketing and Communications specialist to implement Policy, System,
and Environmental (PSE) food systems, active living, and school health
strategies; to provide nutrition education and physical activity promotion;
design and implement public health marketing and communications tools
including social media promotion; and, support the development of
partnerships and stakeholder engagement with a focus on  low-income
individuals and families and children and youth with special healthcare
needs. Additionally, consultant will complete consultation plan writing
and development services in addition to marketing and promotional
strategies of public health emergency preparedness services.  The overall
goal of the consultation and marketing support is to apply comprehensive
evidence-based strategies to improve health outcomes and wellbeing for
Gila County residents.



Gila County residents.

Evaluation
The purpose of this request is to implement collaborative and
comprehensive public health approaches and public health marketing
supporting Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education
(SNAP-Ed), the Healthy People Healthy Communities (HPHC) strategies,
and Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) marketing and
communications for Gila County. To comply with mandated grant
guidelines, Gila County must consult with a certified health professional,
registered dietitian, and an experienced social media, communications
expert. Without consulting these services Gila County would have to
employee multiple part-time employees that have these skills and without
a guarantee for long-term funding.

Conclusion
To meet grant requirements, Gila County is seeking contract support
services for the administration of food systems and active living services
in alignment with the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Education (SNAP-Ed)/, Arizona Nutrition Network (AzNN), and Policy
System and Environmental (PSE) strategies.  Gila County will contract
with one Arizona-based organization employing a Registered Dietitian
Nutritionist (RDN) to collaborate with Gila County to support the
implementation of farmers' market strategies, promote participation in
local physical activity resources and support the implementation of
wellness policies in schools and early childhood programs.

Upon approval from the Board of Supervisors, the advertisement for
Request for Proposals No. 080318 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program Education Support Services will run in the September 18, 2018,
and September 25, 2018, editions of the Payson Roundup newspaper with
a proposal due date of October 3, 2018.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Finance Director and the Health &
Emergency Services Division Director that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 080318
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services
to be published for two consecutive weeks in the Payson Roundup
newspaper.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request



Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request
for Proposals No. 080318 Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Education Support Services.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
RFP NO. 080318





RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 0 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 080318 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 
Woody Cline, Vice Chairman 
Tommie C. Martin, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 080318 

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to develop a 
program for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      3:00 PM, MST, Wednesday, October 03, 2018 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  
    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later than 
the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The 
prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 080318 package 
and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-4355 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this request for proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty Hurst, 
Contracts Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Payson Roundup:  September 18, 2018 and September 25, 2018 
 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
 for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
 
Notice of Solicitation.................................................................................................................................. 1 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................................ 4-5 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ......................................................................................................... 6-8 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid .......................................................................................................................... 6 
 Amendments ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
 Inquiries ..................................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Late Proposals ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................................. 7-8 

General Terms and Conditions .............................................................................................................. 9-11 

 Award of Contract ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Protests ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Laws & Ordinances .................................................................................................................................. 10 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................................. 11-15 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................................ 11 
 Authority to Contract .............................................................................................................................. 11 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................................ 11 
 Contract Default ...................................................................................................................................... 11 
 Right to Assurance ................................................................................................................................... 12 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement .................................................................................. 12 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................................ 12 
 Termination of Contract .......................................................................................................................... 12 

Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................................ 13 
Insurance Requirements .................................................................................................................... 13-15 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications and Information ........................................................................ 16-17 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose .................................................................................................................. 16 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ............................................................................................................... 16 
 Section 3.0; Negotiations ........................................................................................................................ 16 
  

Qualification and Certification Forms .................................................................................................. 18-19 

Price Sheet ............................................................................................................................................... 20 

Reference List .......................................................................................................................................... 21 

No Collusion Form.................................................................................................................................... 22 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………23 

Certification Regarding Debarment……………………………………………………………………………………………………….24 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ..................................................................................................... 25 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................................... 26 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 27 

Offer Page ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

Acceptance of Offer Page ......................................................................................................................... 29 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 3 
 

 

INTENT 
 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services 
 

INTENT: 
 

The purpose of this request is to implement the Gila County Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 
Education (SNAP-Ed) food systems, active living, school health, and early childhood strategies in 
collaboration with Gila County Health and Emergency Services. 
 
For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 4 
 

 
SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
The Contractor shall: 
 

• Implement the Gila County SNAP-Ed strategies in alignment with AzNN guidelines. 

• Implement the Gila County HAPI strategies in alignment with HPHC guidelines. 

• Provide technical assistance and subject-matter expertise in SNAP-Ed administration, including, but not 
limited to, implementation of PSE strategies consistent with state and federal regulations. 

• Work directly with Gila County stakeholders in all aspects of strategy and marketing implementation. 

• Maintain staffing requirements for a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN) and Physical Activity 
Specialist. 

• Attend and participate in any required Gila County and ADHS trainings and meetings. 

• Follow the current USDA Dietary Guidelines for Americans and the USDA Food Guidance System. 

• Follow the current Physical Activity Guidelines for Americans. 
 

DELIVERABLES: 
The Contractor shall submit: 
 

• Prepare and submit monthly reports utilizing the standard reporting forms. 

• Prepare and submit quarterly narrative reports utilizing the standard reporting forms. 

• Prepare and submit quarterly evaluation reports utilizing the standard reporting forms. 

• Prepare and submit fourth quarter narrative reports summarizing the year’s program activities, any 
results from both quantitative and qualitative evaluations conducted, and any other relevant program 
information utilizing the standard reporting forms. 
 

PROPOSAL RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: 
A concise proposal narrative based on the following weighted criteria: 
 

• Description of Organization 

• Key Staff Qualifications and Resume/CV outlining experience in the administration, implementation, and 
evaluation of SNAP-Ed programs, PSE experience, Public Health experience, marketing and 
communications experience, and experience working in Gila County. 

• Annual Cost 

SELECTION CRITERIA: 
 

• Experience successfully completing similar projects 40 points 

• Experience and capability of principal applicant and key personnel 30 points 

• The proposal indicates a clear understanding of the project and is appropriate to the charge 20 points 
• The budget is appropriate for the scope of work submitted 10 points 

 
Total  100 points 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 5 
 

1.0 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:    

 
Qualifying experience includes: 

• Arizona-based organization employing a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN) and Physical Activity 
Specialist. 

• Experience working with Gila County communities and children and youth with special health care 
needs. 

• A minimum of three years of experience in the administration of SNAP-Ed. 

• A minimum of three years of experience in food systems, active living, and school health policy, system, 
and environmental (PSE) approaches, and marketing and communications in public health programs. 

• A minimum of three years of experience completing public health reporting and evaluation. 
 

EXAMINATION INFORMATION:  

 
This examination utilizes an evaluation of Education and Experience (E&E) weighted 100%, and is based 
solely upon information provided within the application. Information provided with the application will 
be assessed in relation to the elements of the scope of work and linked to the knowledge, skills, and 
abilities required for the work.  
 
Special care should be taken to submitting a complete description of educational qualifications and 
experience relevant to the typical tasks, scope, and minimum qualifications stated on this 
announcement. Supplemental information will be accepted but competitors should read the 
announcement carefully to determine what kind of information will be useful to those individuals 
completing the evaluation.  
 
The County reserves the right to revise the examination plan to better meet the needs of the service if 
the circumstances under which this examination was planned change. Competitors shall be notified of 
such revisions.  
 
SCOPE: Rankings will be determined based on the depth and breadth of professional education and 
experience beyond what is minimally required.  

 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the Supplemental Nutrition 

Assistance Program Education Support Services.   

 

See page 23 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-4355,  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 6 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 

IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this request for sealed proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and qualifications forms provided in this request for proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid and made a part of this contract.  The county will use the proposal and 
qualifications form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the scope of services as set 
forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the price sheet and signature 
and offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the 
Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on the 
proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the 
county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 7 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this request for sealed proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 28. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a request for proposals should refer to the appropriate request for proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Thursday, September 27, 2018 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will 
be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies ( 3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
proposal and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 8 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 
 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES”, Proposal No., “080318”, Date “October 
03, 2018”, and time “3:00 PM” of proposal opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall 
assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the notice.  Spiral bound proposals 
are not permitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 9 
 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the RFP, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 10 
 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 11 
 

 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 21 through 
30. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement 
that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an 
official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency 
is a violation of the county procurement code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the county inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 12 
 

 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said active purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase 
supplies, equipment, and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of 
the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received 
by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to 
the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 13 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the county 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor may 
purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 14 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

3. Automobile Liability 
Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 15 
 

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified 
above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 16 
 

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this invitation for proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide 
SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of county needs and in no event shall the county be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The county does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall be 

submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 18-19) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 20) 
1.3.4 References List (page 21) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 22) 
1.3.6 Israel Boycott Certification (page 23) 
1.3.7 Certification of Debarment (page 24) 
1.3.8 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 25) 
1.3.9 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (page 26) 
1.3.10 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 27) 
1.3.11 Offer Page (page 28) 
1.3.12 Acceptance of Offer (page 29) 

 
SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

2.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all profit 
and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the 
contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 

 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 17 
 

 

Minimum Specifications continued…. 

 

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for one year from the 
date of award.  The county shall have the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional one (1) 
year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The finance director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the request for proposals.  The board of supervisors 
shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set forth 
in the request for proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting negotiations, the county shall determine what proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the county files.  If it is determined a proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its proposal. 
 

3.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 

▪ Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations.  Disclosure of a 
contractors’ price or any information derived from competing proposal prices or any information 
derived from competing proposals is prohibited.   

▪  
a.    Any response to a request for clarification of a proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
▪ For the purposes of conducting negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and or contract award.  

b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the director to enter into exclusive 
negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose proposal is determined in the selection 
process to be most advantageous to the county. 

 
▪ Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract award nor 
shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the county may 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to 
repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 
 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 18 
 

 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 080318 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 19 
 

 
 
 
 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 20 
 

 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 080318 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES.   

 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report shall be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 21 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and scope, 
as this request for proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further reference 
information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 

 

 

 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 22 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________  and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES, RFP NO. 080318 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2018. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 23 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in a boycott of Israel as required by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may 
result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 

 
 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 
        

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 24 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 
 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 .................................................... I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 25 
 

 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 080318 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as 
indicated below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,   it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 26 
 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 27 
 

 
BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this RFP.  
If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, the 
RFP may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2018 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 080318 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance 
Department Division in the Copper Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before October 03, 2018, by 3:00 PM. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 28 
 

 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  080318 SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT 
SERVICES 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 080318/SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM EDUCATION SUPPORT SERVICES Page 29 
 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                        is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 080318, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 080318 . The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________, 2018. 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman, Board of Supervisors  Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 

 

 



   
ARF-5060   Consent Agenda Item     5. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health
Department: Health & Emergency Management
Fiscal Year: 2019 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9/1/2018 - 8/31/19 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Ratification of the CDC-RFA-TP-1802 Cooperative Agreement for
Emergency Response:  Public Health Crisis Response Gila County
Division of Health and Emergency Services

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS)  sent an email to all
County Health Officers on July 24, 2018, requesting proposals for
one-time funding to help address the opioid crisis in each county.  The
proposals were due on July 26, 2018, to be included in the State
application for the Center for Disease Control Emergency response to the
public health opioid crisis.  With such a quick turnaround, Michael
O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Division Director, was
given permission by Gila County Manager James Menlove to submit the
application and then place this agenda item on the Board of Supervisors'
meeting agenda for ratification of the Board's approval.

Evaluation
The Gila County Health Department proposal was submitted to ADHS on
Thursday, July 26, 2018.

Conclusion
The Gila County Public Health Department currently has a grant to



The Gila County Public Health Department currently has a grant to
address some of the issues surrounding opioid use and misuse and this
additional funding will allow for a dedicated amount to focus on
marketing efforts. The Gila County proposal needs to be presented to the
Board of Supervisors for ratification of the approval for the submittal of
the application.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Management
Division Director that the Board of Supervisors ratify its approval for the
Health and Emergency Management Division to apply for CDC
cooperative agreement for emergency response to the public health opioid
crisis with ADHS in the amount of $75,000 for the period of September 1,
2018, through August 31, 2019.

Suggested Motion
Ratification of the Board of Supervisors' approval for the Health and
Emergency Management Division to submit an application to the Arizona
Department of Health Services for CDC-RFA-TP-1802 Cooperative
Agreement for Emergency Response:  Public Health Crisis Response
funds in the amount of $75,000 to provide emergency response to the
public with regard to the health opioid crisis for the period September 1,
2018, through August 31, 2019. 

Attachments
Proposal



CDC-RFA-TP18-1802 Cooperative Agreement for Emergency Response:         
Public Health Crisis Response 

Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services 
 

Proposed Work Plan 
 

Information Management Domain  
 

 Problem Statement 
In surveys conducted in 2017 and 2018, Gila County residents expressed opiate drugs 
(including heroin) to be the leading drug issues in our county, while at the same time they 
feel they have little to some knowledge on the dangers of misuse and abuse of these 
drugs.  These surveys also reveal the majority of Gila County residents utilize social media 
outlets (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, Pinterest, etc.) and visual marketing (billboards) as 
their primary forms of news and other information.  By developing a direct marketing 
campaign that addresses the current opioid epidemic and the dangers surrounding it, and 
utilizing these reported methods of delivery, we feel the message will be more 
widespread, thus being more effective.  

 

 Current Capacity 
Currently, Gila County partners with their only substance abuse coalition to help 
disseminate information around the opioid epidemic.  This coalition is comprised of 
volunteers that are not always able to push information consistently or in a timely 
manner.  Gila County was granted the Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention Grant that 
employs one Community Health Specialist.  This grant program is multifaceted and 
focuses working an all aspects of the opioid issue.  This grant does not have dedicated 
funding for a marketing campaign. 

 

 Planned Activity 
Upon receiving these funds, Gila County will collaborate and/or contract with a 
professional marketing firm to create a campaign (social media and visual marketing) that 
raises public awareness and informs residents about the dangers around misusing and 
abusing opiate drugs.  This information will be uniform and consistent with current work 
being done in our communities.  This campaign will utilize the most appropriate media 
outlet(s) to push information and education on a consistent basis. 

 

 Propose outcomes associated with planned activity 
Increase public knowledge regarding the dangers of misuse and abuse of opiate drugs. 

 

 Estimated timeframe for completion  
September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019 

 
 
 
 



CDC-RFA-TP18-1802 Cooperative Agreement for Emergency Response: Public 
Health Crisis Response 

Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services 
 

Proposed Project Budget: 
September 1, 2018 – August 31, 2019 

 
 

 FY 18 Proposed Budget 
Line Item Total 

A. Personnel  

 

 

22,000.00 

B. Fringe Benefits 

 

 

  8,800.00 

C. Travel  

 

 

  5,000.00 

D. Transportation of Things 

 

 

E. Supplies and Materials 

 

 

 1,632.00 

F. Equipment 

 

 

   750.00 

G. Contractual 

 

 

30,000.00 

H. Other-Indirect 

 

 

  6,818.00 

Total 75,000.00        

 
 



   
ARF-5063   Consent Agenda Item     5. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services Division: GEST Department

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 5 to Request for Qualified Vendor Agreement (RFQVA) No.
DDD 710000 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security,
Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD), and Gila County d/b/a Gila
Employment and Special Training (GEST).

Background Information
On September 16, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment
No. 1 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000.  Upon receipt of Amendment No. 1, the
Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES) notified the Gila County
GEST Department that the amendment needed to be corrected and
returned to ADES as soon as possible.  Former Chairman Pastor signed
the corrected Amendment No. 1 on October 6, 2014, and it was then
resubmitted to ADES. 

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 on
April 18, 2017.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 on May
9, 2017.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 4 on
October 10, 2017.

Evaluation
By signing Amendment No. 5, Gila County d/b/a GEST is acknowledging
a revision to Section 7 - Service Specifications, adding the "Habilitation
Vendor Supported Developmental Homes (Child and Adult)" Service and
Section 9 F - Developmental Home Third Party Agreement, an added
attachment.  The submittal of said document will allow the GEST
Department to maintain a Qualified Vendor Agreement with the DDD.



Conclusion
Amendment No. 5 to the RFQVA No. DDD 710000 will allow the GEST
Department to continue to provide DDD services to residents of Gila
County, and remain in compliance with federal and state regulations and
provisions of the RFQVA.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 5 to the RFQVA No. DDD 710000 in
order to acknowledge a new service and an added attachment so the
GEST Department can continue to provide services to eligible residents of
Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 5 to Request for Qualified Vendor Agreement
No. DDD 710000 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security,
Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD), and Gila County d/b/a Gila
County Employment and Special Training Department to allow for the
continued provision of DDD services to eligible residents of Gila County,
and remain in compliance with federal and state regulations and
provisions of the Qualified Vendor Agreement.

Attachments
Amendment No. 5 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
Amendment No. 4 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
Amendment No. 3 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
Amendment No. 2 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
Amendment No. 1 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
RFQVA No. DDD 710000































































































DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Contract #:

Vendor: Gila Employment and Special Training

05785

Vendor Contract Information

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

FEI# or SSN:

AHCCCS ID:

Principal Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Notice Contact Information 

Vendor Street Address

Executive/Owner 

Organization Type:

FAX:

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

Telephone:
FAX:

Vendor Mailing Address

Billing/Payment Information

FAX:

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Name:

Title:

Authorized Signatory

Gila County Gila County

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

Michael Pastor

Globe,  ARIZONA    85501 Globe,  ARIZONA    85501

Agency

925886

866000444

hlopez@co.gila.az.us

hlopez@co.gila.az.us

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200 5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

hlopez@co.gila.az.us

Chairman, Gila Cnty

(928)  4257631
(928)  4259468

(928)  4257631 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4259468

(928)  4257631
(928)  4259468

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

Globe,   ARIZONA    85501

2nd Authorized Signatory

Title:

Name:  

Section 2: Vendor Contract Information 8/26/2014Page 1 of 1



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

Helene Lopez

Helen Lopez

Helene Lopez

(928)  2001462 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4257631 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Globe, ARIZONA  85501

Gila Employment and Special Training

District East Site Code:

5515 S. Apache Ave. Suite 200 Globe, Az  85501

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

Office Type: SERVICE

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             ATTENDANT CARE 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 1 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Approved             EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE 01/01/2011

Approved             GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY 01/01/2011

Approved             INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 2 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

David Caddell

Leona Bowman

David Caddell

(928)  8123791 (928)  4259468

(928)  4028664

(928)  4741759 (928)  4688056

(928)  4741759

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Payson, ARIZONA  85541

Gila Employment and Special Training/Payson

District North Site Code:

107 West Frontier Street, Suite C

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Office Type: ADMINISTRATION

lbowman@co.gila.az.us

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             ATTENDANT CARE 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 3 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Approved             EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE 01/01/2011

Approved             GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY 01/01/2011

Approved             INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 4 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

David Caddell

Leona Bowman

David Caddell

(928)  8123791 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4741759 (928)  4688056

(928)  4741759

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Payson, ARIZONA  85541

Gila Employment and Special Training

DISTRICT 1 Site Code:

107 West Frontier Street, Suite C

dcaddell@cableone.net

Office Type: SERVICE

lbowman@co.gila.az.us

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 5 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

David Caddell

David Caddell

David Caddell

(928)  8123791 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4257631 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Globe, ARIZONA  85501

Gila Employment and Special Training

District East Site Code: GL

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Office Type: SERVICE

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 6 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

(928)  4028664 (928)  4259468

(928)  4028664

(928)  4028664 (928)  4259468

(928)  4258701

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Globe, ARIZONA  85501

GEST D.T.A. Globe

District ATPC Site Code:

250 East Cedar Street

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

Office Type: SERVICE

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 7 of 7



Service Status
Service Status

Start Date

MANAGEMENT APPROVED
866000444

Contract Status :
FEI #:

RFQVA

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training
DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract #:

Services

Contract Status Start Date: 01/01/2011 Contract Status Code:

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011ATTENDANT CARE - Agency with Choice

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING 

ARRANGEMENT - Agency with Choice

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY - Agency with 

Choice

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011TRANSPORTATION

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Section 7:  Services 8/26/2014Page 1 of 1



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 1 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 2 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 3 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 4 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan. The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP teams attention. 

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP tean and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed,documented and forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 5 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 6 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 7 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 8 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan. The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP teams attention. 

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP tean and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed,documented and forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 9 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 10 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 11 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 12 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 13 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 14 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 15 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Since GEST staff are all Gila County employees, the hiring and evaluation of direct service staff is done 

internally, however, all input from clients, families, representatives is considered by the Program Manager in 

the evaluation of direct service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 16 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 17 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 18 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 19 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 20 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 21 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 22 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 23 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 24 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 25 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 26 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 27 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff will review the documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and 

assign the appropriate staff person to meet the needs of the client.  GEST direct service staff will work with the 

ISP team in the formulation of the plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods 

of instruction.  Services will be provided based on the ISP plan, and staff will, when appropriate or as part of 

the plan, coordinate with other community services.  Ongoing assessment will be done by staff to ensure that 

any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team attention.  Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP 

team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP objectives will be reviewed, documented and 

forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  Staff will provide ongoing evaluation to provide the 

documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals and objectives.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program ha a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicle insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 28 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 29 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 30 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 31 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 32 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 33 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 34 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 35 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 36 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan. The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP teams attention. 

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP tean and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed,documented and forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 37 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 38 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 39 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 40 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated  Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have ben achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete check over prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services Department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 41 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record.  Criminal background 

checks are done every three yers when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.  Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the top driver manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting.  Staff have completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and staff 

participate in the annual inspection completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 42 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 43 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 44 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 45 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 46 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 47 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Since GEST staff are all Gila County employees, the hiring and evaluation of direct service staff is done 

internally, however, all input from clients, families, representatives is considered by the Program Manager in 

the evaluation of direct service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 48 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 49 of 49 8/26/2014



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

Recruitment and Training Policies  

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed to 

the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is posted.   

Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are reviewed.  When 

the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be seperated according to 

applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants to be considered for the 

position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The interviewing panel which consists of at 

least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a decision based on the the information, 

qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff are required to attend a Gila County 

"New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are displayed at the Courthouse location 

and are  published  in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends on 

the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, and 

work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions Policies and 

Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of service provision.  

All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct service staff person 

have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does not experience much 

trunover in staff.  GEST staff stay in compliance with the Division regarding required recertification in CPR, First 

Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff are 

available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled services.  All 

direct staff are cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service staff have 

weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a small rural 

service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff and clients, 

praticipate in client activities.  Direct staff are aware of all the clients individual behaviors, meds, and specific 

disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and formulate a "plan 

of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

8/26/2014Page 1 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

Who is the person within the vendor's organization for reviewing incident reports?

Who is the person within the vendor's organization for notifying a consumer's family/represenative of incidents?

David Caddell

Do you have written policies and procedures regarding the reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation?

Are reporting protocols shared with consumers/families/consumer representatives?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

David Caddell

YES

YES

GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the Division's 

policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  GEST staff 

utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurance.  The GEST Program Manager is 

notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  The Program Manager 

then ,within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manuel. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff are mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed to 

a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and what 

appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A discussion is 

facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Who is the person within the vendor's organization responsible for resolving the complaint/grievance?

Dave Fletcher

8/26/2014Page 2 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

Is there a complaint/grievance form?

Do you have written policies and procedures regarding the submission of complaints/grievances?

Are complaints/grievances shared with consumers/families/consumer representatives?

Who can file a complaint/grievance?

What is the complaint/grievance handling timeline?

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair and 

equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200., 

Globe, AZ 85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct 

service staff and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, 

another meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative(if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the second 

meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of Economic 

Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

YES

Varies according to the type of complaint, usually  not more that 10 working days.

Any client

YES

YES

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all intersted parties and input is 

always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an effort 

to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calender is posted on site and flyers are sent out 

periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent relationship 

with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also shared at all client 

staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/familly/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

8/26/2014Page 3 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on going" 

clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings to better 

and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff are very active in the community and they network on a continuing basis 

to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how are consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Since GEST staff are all Gila County employees, the hiring and evaluation of direct service staff is done internally, 

however, all input from clients, famalies, representatives is considered by the Program Manager in the evaluation 

of direct service staff.

Who is feedback forwarded to within the agency?

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

David Caddell

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumers 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a least 

quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be recorded daily 

and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. Progress will be 

documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

 Is past feedback available to consumers/families/consumer representatives when considering a vendor?

YES

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and input is 

aloways encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regualrly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an effort 

to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calender is posted on site and flyers are sent our 

periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent relationship 

with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also shared at all client 

staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

8/26/2014Page 4 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona Advisory 

Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and aprised of any changes in the program that 

may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department within our Division 

also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff hasl developed an evaluation form specific to the individual`s ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided based 

on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the ISP 

objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with the ISP, 

the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going evaluation to 

provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  Progress reports 

will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize a customer 

satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order to establish 

improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and that 

services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff are continually striving to improve methods and techniques 

of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and knowledge to 

assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate, on behalf of the client/client 

representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all needs are met.  

Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

8/26/2014Page 5 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-1                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

SECTION 6 

DES/DDD STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR QUALIFIED VENDORS 

 

 

6.1 Definition of Terms 

 

 As used in this Request for Qualified Vendor Applications (“RFQVA”) and any 

resulting Agreement, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 

 

6.1.1 “Agency” means an organization that has a Federal Employer Identification 

Number (“FEIN”) and employs one or more direct service staff other than the 

owner.   

 

6.1.2    “Agreement” means the Qualified Vendor Agreement which is a legally binding 

contract to provide community developmental disability services and includes the 

following: the Request for Qualified Vendor Applications (“Solicitation”) 

including all solicitation amendments and the Qualified Vendor’s approved 

application (“Application”).  The Request for Qualified Vendor Applications 

includes service requirements/scope of work, terms and conditions, and services 

specifications.  The approved Application includes vendor specific descriptions, 

policies, assurances, and financial information.   

 

6.1.3 “Agreement Amendment” means either a solicitation amendment or a Division- 

approved amendment to an application.  

 

6.1.4 “Agreement Services” means the services to be delivered by the Qualified Vendor 

under this Agreement. 

 

6.1.5 “AHCCCS” means the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System as 

established by Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) § 36-2901 et seq., and defined 

by Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.) R9-22-101.B. 

 

6.1.6 “AHCCCSA” or “Administration” means the Arizona Health Care Cost 

Containment System Administration.  

 

6.1.7 “AHCCCS Minimum Subcontract Provisions” means the AHCCCS minimum 

requirements for the Division’s contractors and subcontractors providing services 

to members eligible for DD/ALTCS and/or receiving Title XIX (ALTCS) funds.  

 

6.1.8 “ALTCS” means the Arizona Long Term Care System as defined by A.A.C. R9-

28-101.B.2.  

 

6.1.9 “Applicant” means a vendor who submits an application in response to the 

Request for Qualified Vendor Applications. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-2                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.10 “Application” means a completed copy of the Application and Qualified Vendor 

Agreement Award form submitted in hardcopy to the Division; the required 

information in the Qualified Vendor Application and Directory System submitted 

electronically to the Division via the Division’s website, and approved by the 

Division; a hardcopy of the required information entered into the Qualified 

Vendor Application and Directory System submitted to and approved by the 

Division; and all applicable submittals required in the Qualified Vendor 

Application Assurances and Submittals form submitted to and approved by the 

Division.  

 

6.1.11 “Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.)” means State regulations established 

pursuant to relevant statutes.   

 

6.1.12 “Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.)” means Laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

6.1.13 “Business Day” means between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Arizona time 

any day of the week other than Saturday, Sunday,  a legal holiday, or a day on 

which the Division is authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.     

 

6.1.14 “Clean Claim” means claims that may be processed without obtaining additional 

information from the provider of service or from a third party but does not include 

claims under investigation for fraud and abuse or claims under review for medical 

necessity (A.R.S. § 36-2904.G.1).  

 

6.1.15 “Client,” “Member,” “DD/ALTCS Member,” “Consumer,” or “Individual” means 

a person who is authorized to receive services through the Division.  

 

6.1.16 “Code of Federal Regulations or “C.R.F.” means the general and permanent rules 

published in the Federal Register by the departments and agencies of the Federal 

Government.  

 

6.1.17 “Community Developmental Disability Services” means any service or support 

the Division is authorized to purchase on behalf of individuals with 

developmental disabilities and their families or guardians. 

 

6.1.18 “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

 

6.1.19  “Department” or “ADES” means the Arizona Department of Economic Security, 

unless otherwise indicated.  

 

6.1.20 “Division” or “DDD” means the Division of Developmental Disabilities within 

the Department of Economic Security.  References to rules, policies, or 

procedures of the Division shall be deemed to include all rules, policies, and 

procedures of the Department. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-3                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.21 “Effective Date” means the date that the Procurement Officer signs the Qualified 

Vendor Agreement Award, unless another date is specifically stated in the 

Agreement. 

 

6.1.22 “Encounter” means the record of a service submitted to or by the Division and 

processed by AHCCCS that is rendered by a provider registered with AHCCCS to 

a member who is enrolled with the Division on the date of service for which the 

Division incurs a financial liability (A.A.C. R9-22-701). 

 

6.1.23  “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, 

services, or anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless 

consideration of substantially equal or greater value is received. 

 

6.1.24 “Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act “or “HIPAA” means the 

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act [Public Law (P. L.) 104-191]; 

also known as the Kennedy-Kassebaum Act, signed August 21, 1996 that 

addresses issues regarding the privacy and security of member confidential 

information. 

 

6.1.25 “Individual Independent Provider” as referenced in this document means a person 

who is qualified to provide the service, does not have any employees, has a 

provider identification number, and has an individual service agreement with the 

Division to provide one or more of the following services:  Attendant Care; 

Habilitation, Hourly Support; Homemaker; Respite; or Habilitation, Individually 

Designed Living Arrangement.    

 

6.1.26 “Individual Support Plan” or “ISP” means a written statement of services to be 

provided to a Division member with developmental disabilities including 

habilitation goals and objectives and a listing of the services, if any, the member is 

authorized to receive.  The ISP incorporates and replaces the Individual Program 

Plan, the placement evaluation, the individualized service program plan and the 

service program plan used in A.R.S. § 36-557 (as may be amended).  ISP 

incorporates the Individual Family Service Plan (“IFSP”) as defined in Section 

809.1 of the Division’s Policy and Procedures Manual as well as a Person 

Centered Plan, which describes the type, frequency, and duration of the services 

and supports needed to achieve the appropriate outcomes for a member.  The ISP 

or IFSP is also referred to as the “planning document”. 

 

6.1.27 “Individual Support Plan Team” or “ISP Team” means a group of persons 

including the member, the member’s representative, and other persons selected by 

the member, assembled by the Division and coordinated by the member’s Support 

Coordinator to develop the member’s planning document [e.g., Individual Support 

Plan (ISP)]. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-4                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.28 “Material Event”  is an event that could prevent or impede the vendor’s ability or 

legal authority to perform its duties under this Agreement, including but not 

limited to the duty to render services in a manner that protects the health and 

safety of DDD members. The following are deemed to be material events: (but the 

following are not intended to include every possible material event): (i) any 

regulatory enforcement action is brought against the vendor, including but not 

limited to actions relating to any license, permit, or certification held by the 

vendor; (ii) the vendor is the subject of a filing in bankruptcy (either by the vendor 

or another party); (iii) the vendor is a party to litigation  or other legal action 

where damages or other remedies are sought from the vendor, including but is not 

limited to actions alleging the vendor’s default on payment of wages, 

indebtedness, or taxes; (iv) the vendor’s assets are subject to a court-ordered 

restriction on transfer, including but not limited to attachment or garnishment 

(however, an order to garnish the wages of an employee of the vendor is not 

considered to be a restriction on the transfer of the vendor’s assets, for purposes of 

this Agreement); (v) any officer, director, or other management official of the 

vendor, or any person owning or controlling over 25% of any class of securities 

issued by the vendor, is the subject of regulatory enforcement action, criminal 

prosecution, or an action alleging dishonesty or fraud. 

 

6.1.29 “May” indicates something that is not mandatory but permissible. 

 

6.1.30 “Member/Member Representative” means with respect to the Client, either the 

Client or the Responsible Person, as appropriate. 

 

6.1.31 “Procurement Officer” means the person duly authorized to enter into and 

administer Agreements and make written determinations with respect to the 

Agreement or his/her designee.  

 

6.1.32 “Professional Independent Provider” means a person who is licensed or certified 

under Title 32, A.R.S., who provides services for members as a Qualified Vendor 

and is not an employee or a subcontractor of a provider agency. 

 

6.1.33 “Qualified Vendor” means any person or entity that has an Agreement with the 

Division of Developmental Disabilities. 

 

6.1.34 “Record” means any data in any form that is required to be created and/or 

maintained to document performance of the Agreement. 

 

6.1.35 "Responsible person" means the parent or guardian of a developmentally disabled 

minor, the guardian of a developmentally disabled adult or a developmentally 

disabled adult who is a member (client) for whom no guardian has been 

appointed. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-5                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.36 “Shall” or “Must” indicates a mandatory requirement.  Failure to meet these 

mandatory requirements may result in the rejection of an Application or 

termination of the Agreement, in whole or in part.  

 

6.1.37 “Should” indicates something that is recommended but not mandatory.  If the 

Applicant fails to provide recommended information, the State may, at its sole 

option, ask the Applicant to provide the information or evaluate the Application 

without the information.  

 

6.1.38 “Subcontract” means any arrangement, expressed or implied, between the 

Qualified Vendor and another party or between a subcontractor and another party 

delegating or assigning, in whole or in part, the making or furnishing of any 

material or any service required for the performance of this Agreement. 

 

6.1.39 “State” means the State of Arizona and the Department or Agency of the State 

that executes the Agreement. 

 

6.1.40 “Third Party Liability” means the resources available from a person or entity that 

is or may be, by Agreement, circumstances, or otherwise, liable to pay all or part 

of the medical expenses incurred by a Division client (A.A.C. R6-6-101.71 and 

A.A.C. Title 9, Chapter 22, Article 10). 

 

6.1.41 “Third Party Payor” means any individual, entity or program that is or may be 

liable to pay all or part of the medical cost of injury, disease or disability of a 

Division client (A.A.C. R6-6-101.72). 

 

6.1.42 “Vendor Call” means a notice from the Division inviting Qualified Vendors and 

individual independent providers to submit a response indicating their availability 

to provide services for a specific member or specific group of members, based on 

the requirements defined in the member’s planning document. 

 

6.2 Agreement Interpretation  

 

6.2.1 Arizona Law.  

 

 Arizona law applies to this Agreement.  

 

6.2.2 Implied Agreement Terms.  

 

 Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in this Agreement are a 

part of this Agreement as if fully stated in it. 

 

6.2.3 Agreement Order of Precedence.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-6                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Agreement, as accepted by the 

State and as they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set 

forth below:  

 

6.2.3.1 Qualified Vendor Award; 

 

6.2.3.2 DES/DDD Standard Terms and Conditions for Qualified Vendors; 

 

6.2.3.3 Service Requirements/Scope of Work; 

 

6.2.3.4 Service Specifications; 

 

6.2.3.5 Rates; 

 

6.2.3.6 Information entered into the Qualified Vendor Application and Directory System 

(“QVADS”) (most recently approved); and 

 

6.2.3.7 Attachments to information entered into QVADS (most recently approved). 

 

6.2.4 Relationship of Parties.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor under this Agreement is an independent contractor.  Neither 

party to this Agreement shall be deemed to be the employee or agent of the other 

party to the Agreement.  In the event that the Qualified Vendor or its personnel is 

sued or prosecuted for conduct arising from this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor 

or its personnel will not be represented by the Department or the Arizona Attorney 

General.  In addition, taxes or Social Security payments will not be withheld from 

a State payment issued hereunder and the Qualified Vendor shall make 

arrangements to directly pay such expenses. 

 

6.2.5 Severability.  

 

 The provisions of this Agreement and any amendments to the Agreement are 

severable.  Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid shall not affect any 

other term or condition of the Agreement or the amendment. 

 

6.2.6 No Parol Evidence. 

 

 This Agreement is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of 

their Agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of 

the trade shall supplement or explain any terms used in this document and no 

other understanding, either oral or in writing, shall be binding. 

 

6.2.7 No Waiver.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-7                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the 

Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the 

party accepting or acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the 

nature of the performance and fails to object to it. 

 

6.2.8 Headings.  

 

 The section headings used in the Agreement are for reference and convenience 

only and shall not enter into any interpretation of the Agreement. 

 

6.3 Agreement Administration and Operation 

 

6.3.1 Records.  

 

6.3.1.1 Under A.R.S. §§ 35-214 and 35-215, the Qualified Vendor shall retain and shall 

contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other records 

(“records”) relating to the acquisition and performance of the Agreement for a 

period of five (5) years after the date of final payment under the Agreement.  In 

compliance with A.R.S. § 12-2297, the Qualified Vendor shall retain records as 

follows: (i) if the member is an adult, for a period of six (6) years from the date of 

final payment; (ii) if the member is a child, either for at least three (3) years after 

the child’s eighteenth (18
th

) birthday or for at least six (6) years after the date of 

final payment, whichever occurs later.  All records shall be subject to inspection 

and audit by the State at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Qualified Vendor 

shall produce a legible copy of any or all such records. 

 

6.3.1.2 Records that relate to grievances, disputes, litigation or the settlement of claims 

arising out of the performance of this Agreement, or costs and expenses of this 

Agreement as to which exception has been taken by the State, shall be retained by 

the Qualified Vendor until such grievances, disputes, litigation, claims or 

exceptions have been resolved.  

 

6.3.1.3 The Qualified Vendor shall provide at no charge all records requested by the 

Department or its attorneys (which may include, but is not limited to, requests 

relating to Adult Protective Services, Child Support Enforcement, or Child 

Protective Services), and/or the AHCCCS and all information from its records 

relating to the performance of this Agreement that the Department or the 

AHCCCS may reasonably require.  The Qualified Vendor reporting requirements 

hereunder may include, but are not limited to, timely and detailed utilization 

statistics, information and reports.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Department, 

records requested by the Department or its attorneys are to be provided prior to or 

on the date set forth in the request. If the Qualified Vendor receives the request 

less than seven (7) business days prior to the response date specified, the 

Qualified Vendor shall make diligent efforts to comply with the request, and 

notify the Department of the status of its efforts to comply. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-8                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.3.1.4 The Qualified Vendor shall follow all policies and procedures of the Division for 

the acceptance, retention, disposition, and accounting for member (client) funds.  

The Qualified Vendor also shall develop and maintain internal policies and 

procedures for the administration of such funds.  All Division policies are posted 

on the Division’s website at www.azdes.gov/ddd. 

 

6.3.1.5 The Division is responsible for submission of accurate Encounters to AHCCCS 

for all Agreement services rendered to eligible members by the Qualified Vendor 

and any subcontractor.  Claims filed by the Qualified Vendor are the basis of the 

encounter submission by the Division.  Qualified Vendors shall work with the 

Division to ensure that Encounters effectively occur.  This shall include adhering 

to Division Billing Requirements.  Billing Requirements are posted on the 

Division website at www.azdes.gov/ddd.  

 

6.3.1.6 Agreement service records will be maintained in accordance with this Agreement.  

Records shall, as applicable, meet the following standards: 

 

6.3.1.6.1 Adequately identify the service provided; 

 

6.3.1.6.2 Include personnel records, which contain applications for employment, job titles 

and descriptions, hire and termination dates, copies of the fingerprint clearance 

cards, wage rates, and effective dates of personnel actions affecting any of these 

items; 

 

6.3.1.6.3 Include time and attendance records for individual employees to support all 

salaries and wages paid and claims for payment from the Division; 

 

6.3.1.6.4 Include records of the source of all receipts and the deposit of all funds received 

by the Qualified Vendor; 

 

6.3.1.6.5 Include original copies of billing or other records relating to disbursements 

including but not limited to invoices, statements, sales tickets, billings for 

services, deposit slips, etc., and a cash disbursement journal and cancelled checks 

to reflect all disbursements applicable to the Agreement; 

 

6.3.1.6.6 Include a complete general ledger with accounts for the collection of all costs 

and/or fees applicable to the Agreement; and 

 

6.3.1.6.7 Include copies of lease/rental contracts, mortgages and/or any other contracts, 

which in any way may affect Qualified Vendor expenditures.  

 

6.3.1.7 Any such records not maintained shall mandate an audit exception in the amount 

of the inadequately documented expenditures. 

 

http://www.azdes.gov/ddd
http://www.azdes.gov/ddd


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-9                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.3.1.8 If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the 

work terminated shall be preserved and made available for a period of five (5) 

years from the date of final payment under the Agreement.  In compliance with 

A.R.S. § 12-2297, the Qualified Vendor shall retain records as follows; (i) if the 

member is an adult, for a period of six (6) years from the date of final payment; 

(ii) if the member is a child, either for at least three (3) years after the child’s 

eighteenth (18
th

) birthday or for at least six (6) years after the date of final 

payment, whichever occurs later.  Records which related to disputes, litigation or 

the settlement of claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement, or costs 

and expenses of this Agreement to which exception has been taken by the state, 

shall be retained by the Qualified Vendor until such disputes, litigations, claims or 

exceptions are resolved by way of a binding agreement, the rendering of a final 

judgment, or the claims have otherwise been dismissed. 

 

6.3.2 Non-Discrimination. 

 

 In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1461 et seq. and Executive Order 2009-09, the 

Qualified Vendor shall provide equal employment opportunities for all persons, 

regardless of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, disability or 

political affiliation.   

 

6.3.2.1 Unless exempt under Federal law, the Qualified Vendor shall comply with Title 

VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in 

Employment Act, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Fair Labor Standards Act of 

1938, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Arizona Disability Act.  

 

6.3.2.2 If Qualified Vendor is an Indian Tribal Government, Qualified Vendor shall 

comply with the Indian Civil Rights Act of 1968.  It shall be permissible for an 

Indian Tribal Qualified Vendor to engage in Indian preference in hiring. 

 

6.3.2.3 Unless expressly waived by the Division, the following shall be included in all 

publications, forms, flyers, etc. that are distributed to recipients of Agreement 

services:    

  

 Under Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (respectively “Title VI” 

and “Title VII”) and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 

insert Qualified Vendor name here) prohibits discrimination in admissions, 

programs, services, activities or employment based on race, color, religion, sex, 

national origin, age, and disability.  The (insert Qualified Vendor name here) must 

make a reasonable accommodation to allow a person with a disability to take part 

in a program, service, or activity.  Auxiliary aids and services are available upon 

request to individuals with disabilities.  For example, this means that if necessary, 

the (insert Qualified Vendor name here) must provide sign language interpreters 

for people who are deaf, a wheelchair accessible location, or enlarged print 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-10                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

materials.  It also means that the (insert Qualified Vendor name here) will take 

any other reasonable action that allows you to take part in and understand a 

program or activity, including making reasonable changes to an activity.  If you 

believe that you will not be able to understand or take part in a program or activity 

because of your disability, please let us know of your disability needs in advance 

if at all possible.  To request this document in alternative format or for further 

information about this policy please contact: (insert Qualified Vendor contact 

person and phone number here) Para obtener este documento en otro formato u 

obtener información adicional sobre esta política, (insert Qualified Vendor contact 

person and phone number here)”. 

 

6.3.3  Audit.  

 

6.3.3.1  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-214, at any time during the term of this Agreement and 

five (5) years, or in compliance with A.R.S. § 12-2297, the Qualified Vendor shall 

retain records as follows; (i) if the member is an adult, for a period of six (6) years 

from the date of final payment; (ii) if the member is a child, either for at least 

three (3) years after the child’s eighteenth (18
th

) birthday or for at least six (6) 

years after the date of final payment, whichever occurs later, the Qualified 

Vendor’s and/or any subcontractor’s books and records shall be subject to audit by 

the State and, where applicable, the Federal Government, to the extent that the 

books and records relate to the performance of the Agreement or subcontract.  

 

6.3.3.2  All Qualified Vendors are subject to the programmatic and fiscal monitoring 

requirements of each Department program to ensure accountability of the delivery 

of all goods and services.  

 

6.3.3.2.1 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the AHCCCS financial viability 

standards.  AHCCCS’ current financial viability standards include: current assets 

divided by current liabilities must be equal to or greater than a ratio of 1.00.  

Current assets may include any long-term investments that can be converted to 

cash within twenty-four (24) hours without significant penalty [(i.e., greater than 

twenty (20) percent].  If current assets include a receivable from a parent 

company, the parent company must have liquid assets that support the amount of 

the inter-company loan.   

 

6.3.3.3  The Qualified Vendor must prepare financial reports in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”).  Annual financial audit reports must 

be conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

(“GAAS”) audited by an independent Certified Public Accountant.   The 

completed audited Financial Statement Report package must be submitted to the 

Division person designated to receive notices within thirty (30) days after 

completion of the audit unless a different time is requested and approved by the 

Division.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-11                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.3.3.3.1  Audits of non-profit corporations receiving Federal or State monies required 

pursuant to Federal or State law must be conducted as provided in 31 United 

States Code (“U.S.C.”) Section 7501 et seq. and A.R.S. §35-181.03 and any other 

applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and standards.  

 

6.3.3.4  A Qualified Vendor receiving five million dollars ($5,000,000) or more in 

payments from the Department for Qualified Vendor services in any state fiscal 

year shall provide the Department the following: (a) Quarterly financial 

statements no later than sixty (60) days following the end of the quarter, and (b) 

Annual audited financial statements no later than thirty (30) days after the 

completion of the audit unless a different time has been requested and approved 

by the Division.    

 

6.3.3.5  A Qualified Vendor receiving payments from the Department for Qualified 

Vendor services in any state fiscal year in the amount of at least two million 

dollars ($2,000,000) but less than five-million dollars ($5,000,000) shall provide 

the Department the following: (a) Semi-annual financial statements no later than 

sixty (60) days following the end of the second quarter; and (b) Annual financial 

statements that have been reviewed by an independent Certified Public 

Accountant.  Review report must consist of at least a Balance Sheet, Income 

Statement and Statement of Cash Flows.  Annual financial statements shall be 

submitted to the Division no later than thirty (30) days after the completion of the 

review unless a different time has been requested and approved by the Division.  

 

6.3.3.6   A Qualified Vendor receiving payments from the Department for Qualified 

Vendor services in any state fiscal year in the amount of at least one million 

dollars ($1,000,000) to less than two-million dollars ($2,000,000) shall provide 

the Department an annual financial compilation that has been compiled by an 

independent Certified Public Accountant.  A compilation must consist of at least a 

Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Statement of Cash Flows.  Annual financial 

statements shall be submitted to the Division no later than thirty (30) days after 

the completion of the compilation unless a different time has been requested and 

approved by the Division.  

 

6.3.3.7  A Qualified Vendor receiving payments from the Department for Qualified 

Vendor services in any state fiscal year less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) 

shall provide the Department an annual financial statement that consists of a 

Balance Sheet, Income Statement, and Statement of Cash Flows within one 

hundred twenty (120) days after fiscal year end.   

 

6.3.4 Notices. 

 

 All Notices from the Division to Qualified Vendors shall reference the 

Solicitation RFQVA.  Notices from Qualified Vendors to the Division shall 

reference the Agreement Number.  Notices to the Qualified Vendor required by 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-12                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

this Agreement may be made by the State via email to the email contact indicated 

on the Qualified Vendor Application form submitted by the Qualified Vendor.  

Notices to the Qualified Vendor by the State may be made solely via email.  

Therefore, the Qualified Vendor is required to keep their Qualified Vendor 

Agreement email contact and address updated at all times to ensure receipt of 

notices from the State.  Notices to the State required by the Agreement shall be 

mailed by the Qualified Vendor to the Division’s Contract Manager at the 

following address: 

                  

  Contract Management Unit 

                   Business Operations – Site Code 791A 

                   Arizona Department of Economic Security 

                   Division of Developmental Disabilities 

  P.O. Box 6123  

                   Phoenix, Arizona 85005-6123  

 

 or e-mailed to DDDContractsManager@azdes.gov unless a hardcopy signature or 

original document is required.  All notices or other documentation supplied to the 

Division by the Qualified Vendor shall contain the Qualified Vendor number, 

Agreement number, and name of the entity.     

 

6.3.5 Advertising and Promotion of Agreement. 

 

6.3.5.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not advertise or publish information for commercial 

benefit concerning this Agreement without the prior written approval of the 

Division. 

 

6.3.5.2 The Qualified Vendor shall provide to the Division for review and approval all 

reports or publications (written, visual, and/or audio) which are intended for  

Division members or applicants regarding services funded or partially funded 

under the Qualified Vendor Agreement a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days 

prior to delivery or publication.  The preceding sentence does not apply to 

communications directed to the general public.  The Qualified Vendor shall refer 

to the Division’s Provider Manual for guidance on submitting and processing 

materials pursuant to this subsection.   

 

6.3.5.2.1 All reports and publications, whether written, visual, and/or audio, shall contain 

the following statement:  “The program described in this publication is funded 

through a contract with the Arizona Department of Economic Security (the 

“Department”).  Points of view are those of the author and do not necessarily 

represent the official position or policies of the Department.” 

 

6.3.6 Property of the State. 

 

mailto:DDDContractsManager@azdes.gov


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-13                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.3.6.1 Any materials, including reports, computer programs and other deliverables, 

created under this Agreement are the sole property of the State.  The Qualified 

Vendor is not entitled to a patent or copyright on those materials and may not 

transfer the patent or copyright to anyone else.  The Qualified Vendor shall not 

use or release these materials without the prior written consent of the State. 

 

6.3.6.2 The Federal and State governments reserve a royalty-free, nonexclusive and 

irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use and to authorize others 

to use for Federal or State government purposes such materials, reports, data or 

information system, software, documentation and manuals. 

 

6.3.6.3 At the termination of the Agreement, in whole or in part, the Qualified Vendor 

shall make available all such relevant materials, reports, data and information to 

the Division within thirty (30) days following termination of the Agreement or 

such longer period as approved by the Division.  

 

6.3.7 Confidentiality. 

 

6.3.7.1 The Qualified Vendor shall observe and abide by all applicable State and Federal 

statutes, rules and regulations regarding the use or disclosure of information 

including, but not limited to, information concerning applicants for and recipients 

of Agreement services.  To the extent permitted by law, the Qualified Vendor 

shall release information to the Department and the Attorney General’s Office as 

required by the terms of this Agreement, by law or upon their request. 

 

6.3.7.2 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements of the Arizona Address 

Confidentiality Program, A.R.S. § 41-161 et seq.    

 

6.3.8 Agreement Term. 

  

 The term of this Agreement shall be the period of time from the date of signing by 

the Department to the Agreement termination date as awarded or extended, or 

such earlier date as provided under Section 6.10.  The Qualified Vendor will not 

be paid or reimbursed for Agreement services provided prior to the date services 

are authorized to begin.     

 

6.3.9               Agreement Extension. 

 

 The maximum term for this Agreement is six (6) years from January 1, 2011.  

This Agreement will expire no later than December 31, 2017.  The Agreement can 

be terminated as specified in Section 6.10 et seq. of these terms and conditions.  

The Procurement Officer may exercise the Division’s option to extend or renew 

the Agreement by unilateral Agreement amendment; a written amendment signed 

by both parties shall not be necessary.  The Division has no obligation to extend 

or renew this Agreement. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-14                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.3.10 Cooperation. 

 

6.3.10.1 The Department may undertake or award other Agreements or Contracts for 

additional work related to the work performed by the Qualified Vendor, and the 

Qualified Vendor must fully cooperate with such other Qualified Vendors, 

Contractors, and State employees, and carefully fit its own work to such other 

work.  The Qualified Vendor may not commit or permit any act that will interfere 

with the performance of work by any other Qualified Vendor, Contractor, or by 

State employees.  The Qualified Vendor shall cooperate with the State in the 

transfer of work, services, case records or files from the Qualified Vendor to any 

other Qualified Vendor(s), Contractor(s), or State employee(s) that the State 

deems appropriate for the other Qualified Vendor(s), Contractor(s), or State 

employee(s) to perform work under their Agreement, Contract, or duties as a State 

employee.  

 

6.3.11 Technical Assistance. 

 

 The Division may, but shall not be obligated to, provide technical assistance to the 

Qualified Vendor in the administration of Agreement services, or relating to the 

terms and conditions, policies and procedures governing this Agreement.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Qualified Vendor shall not be relieved of full 

responsibility and accountability for the provision of Agreement services in 

accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein.  

 

6.3.12 Enrollment; Disenrollment. 

 

 Procedures for enrollment of a member in Qualified Vendor services and 

termination of enrollment with the Qualified Vendor shall be in accordance with 

the Agreement and all applicable Division and/or AHCCCS rules and policies.  

AHCCCS rules and policies may be found at www.azahcccs.gov/default.aspx. 

 

6.3.13 Offshore Performance of Work Prohibited. 

 

 Due to security and identity protection concerns, direct services under this 

Agreement shall be performed within the borders of the United States.  Any 

services that are described in the specifications or scope of work that directly 

serve the State of Arizona or Members and may involve access to or transmission 

of secure or sensitive data or personal information or development or modification 

of software for the State shall be performed within the borders of the United 

States.  Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications or scope of work, 

this definition does not apply to indirect or “overhead” services, redundant back-

up services or services that are incidental to the performance of the Agreement.  

This provision applies to work performed by subcontractors at all tiers.  

 

file:///C:/Users/d047160/AppData/Common/1%20SHERRY%20AV/FINAL%20SOLICITATION/DRAFT%20TRK/www.azahcccs.gov/default.aspx


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-15                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4 Costs and Payments 

 

6.4.1 Payments.  

 

6.4.1.1 Upon delivery of goods or services, the Qualified Vendor shall submit a claim.  

Submission of the claim constitutes an affirmation by the Qualified Vendor that 

the claim is accurate.  Nothing in this Agreement requires the State to pay claims 

any sooner than thirty (30) days after receipt of an accurate claim.  

 

6.4.1.2 The Qualified Vendor is paid a specified amount for each unit of service or 

deliverable as designated in the service specification and RateBook or negotiated 

rate, not to exceed the maximum number of units indicated by the authorization 

for each Agreement service/deliverable. 

 

6.4.1.3 The Qualified Vendor shall report Agreement expenditures to the Division in the 

manner prescribed by the “Records,” “Audits,” and “Reporting Requirements” 

sections of these terms and conditions.  Upon receipt of applicable, accurate and 

complete reports, the Division shall authorize payment or reimbursement in 

accordance with the method(s) prescribed by this Agreement.  

 

6.4.1.4 If the Qualified Vendor is in any manner in default in the performance of any 

obligation under this Agreement, or if audit exceptions are identified, the Division 

may, at its option and in addition to other available remedies, either offset the 

amount of payment or withhold payment until satisfactory resolution of the 

default or exception. 

 

6.4.1.5 The Division will not pay the Qualified Vendor: 

 

6.4.1.5.1 For services that exceed the authorization.   

 

6.4.1.5.2 For services performed prior to or after the term of the Agreement.   

 

6.4.1.5.3 For services delivered prior to licensing if licensing is required.   

 

6.4.1.5.4 For services delivered prior to required certification including but not limited to 

certification as a Home and Community Based Service provider.   

 

6.4.1.5.5 For services delivered prior to AHCCCS registration. 

 

6.4.1.6 Claims by the Qualified Vendor shall be submitted to the Division on the 

Division’s approved Billing Documents and in the format required by the 

Division, AHCCCS or the Federal government under the electronic submission 

requirements of the HIPAA of 1996.    

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-16                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.1.7 The Division is not obligated to pay for services provided without prior 

authorization. Claims for services delivered must be initially received by the 

Division not later than nine (9) months after the last date of service shown on the 

claim.  A resubmitted claim shall not be considered for payment unless it is 

received by the Division as a clean claim not later than twelve (12) months after 

the last date of service shown originally on the claim.  

 

6.4.1.8 For the purpose of determining the date of receipt of a claim, the date of receipt is 

the date the Division receives the claim.  Only claims received by the Division in 

accordance with the provisions of this section will be considered for payment. 

 

6.4.1.9 The Qualified Vendor must obtain any necessary authorization from the Division 

or AHCCCS for services provided to members and shall comply with encounter 

reporting and claims submission requirements of the Division and AHCCCS.  

 

6.4.1.10 Corrections to claims submitted to the Division in which an underpayment was 

made due to either billing errors or an error on the part of the Division when 

paying must be made within a twelve (12) month period of time following 

delivery of service.  Underpayment billing corrections will not be considered 

beyond twelve (12) months from service delivery. 

 

6.4.2 Applicable Taxes. 

 

6.4.2.1 Payment of Taxes 

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes. 

 

6.4.2.2 State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes 

 

 The State of Arizona is subject to all applicable state and local transaction 

privilege taxes.  Transaction privilege taxes apply to the sale and are the 

responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to collect taxes from the buyer does 

not relieve the seller from its obligation to remit taxes. 

 

6.4.2.3 Tax Indemnification 

 

 The Qualified Vendor and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, State and local 

taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Qualified 

Vendor.  The Qualified Vendor shall, and require all subcontractors to, hold the 

State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if 

applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or State and local laws and 

regulations and any other costs including transaction privilege taxes, 

unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and Worker’s 

Compensation. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-17                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.2.4 Arizona Substitute W-9 Form 

 

 In order to receive payment under the Agreement, the Qualified Vendor shall have 

a current Arizona Substitute W-9 Form on file with the State of Arizona and shall 

submit an Arizona Substitute W-9 upon request by the Division.  An Arizona 

Substitute W-9 will need to be submitted if there are any changes to the Qualified 

Vendor’s address, name, telephone number or other information.  A copy of this 

Arizona Substitute W-9 form can be found at the Arizona Department of 

Administration’s General Accounting Office website at www.gao.az.gov.  

 

6.4.3 Availability of Funds. 

 
 The Department may adjust payment authorizations, adjust prior service 

authorizations, or terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, without further 

recourse, obligation, or penalty in the event that insufficient funds are 

appropriated or allocated.  The Director of the Department shall have the sole and 

unfettered discretion in determining the availability of funds.   

 

6.4.3.1 Reduction in Appropriations.   

 

 If the State Legislature reduces the appropriations to the Department or Division 

resulting directly or indirectly in a decrease in funding for goods and service that 

are subject to this Agreement the State may take any appropriate action, including 

but not limited to the following actions: 

 Post revised rates in the RateBook; 

 Cancel the Agreement; 

 Cancel the Agreement and re-solicit the requirements.  

 

 6.4.4            Certification of Cost or Pricing Data. 

 

 By signing the Qualified Vendor Application, Agreement, Agreement 

Amendment or other official form, the Qualified Vendor is certifying that, to the 

best of the Qualified Vendor’s knowledge and belief, any cost or pricing data 

submitted is accurate, complete and current as of the date submitted or other 

mutually agreed upon date.  Furthermore, the price to the State shall be adjusted to 

exclude any significant amounts by which the State finds the price was increased 

because the Qualified Vendor-furnished cost or pricing data was inaccurate, 

incomplete or not current as of the date of certification.  Such adjustment by the 

State may include overhead, profit or fees.  The certifying of cost or pricing data 

does not apply when Agreement rates are set by law or regulation.  

 

6.4.5 Fees and Program Income.  

 

6.4.5.1 The Qualified Vendor shall impose no fees or charges of any kind upon members 

for services authorized under this Agreement; this prohibition includes but is not 

http://www.gao.az.gov/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-18                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

limited to seeking indemnification, release, or other contract rights from the 

member.  

 

6.4.5.2 The Qualified Vendor shall not submit a claim, demand, or otherwise collect 

payment from a member for ALTCS services in excess of the amount paid to the 

Qualified Vendor by the AHCCCS or the Division.  The Qualified Vendor shall 

not bill or attempt to collect payment directly or through a collection agency from 

a member claiming to be ALTCS eligible without first receiving verification from 

the AHCCCS that the member was ineligible for ALTCS on the date of service or 

that services provided were not ALTCS covered services (A.A.C. R9-22-702).  

 

6.4.5.3 The Division shall collect Client Share of Cost as described in A.A.C. R6-6-1201 

et seq.  The Qualified Vendor may not collect this amount from members.  

 

6.4.5.4 Members may be assessed a cost sharing requirement in the form of a co-payment 

for certain medical services (A.A.C. R9-22-711).  Residential Qualified Vendors 

may need to facilitate payment of this charge from client trust fund accounts.  

 

6.4.6 Levels of Service.     

 

6.4.6.1 The Department makes no guarantee to purchase specific quantities of goods or 

services, or to refer members as may be identified or specified herein.  Further, it 

is understood and agreed that this Agreement is for the sole convenience of the 

Department and that the Department reserves the right to obtain like goods or 

services from other sources.  

 

6.4.6.2 Any administration within the Department may obtain services under this 

Agreement.   

 

6.4.6.3 The Division makes no guarantee to purchase all of the service capacity or to 

provide any number of referrals.  

 

6.4.6.4 Any change in member residential placement requires approval by the appropriate 

Division District Administration.  The Division reserves the authority to make any 

and all determinations regarding member need.  Except in an emergency need 

situation, changes in residential placement require sixty (60) day written prior 

notification by either the Qualified Vendor or the Division of Developmental 

Disabilities.  

 

6.4.7 Payment Recoupment. 

 

6.4.7.1 The Qualified Vendor shall reimburse the Division upon demand or the Division 

may deduct from future payments the following:  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-19                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.7.1.1 Any amounts received by the Qualified Vendor from the Division for Agreement 

services that have been inaccurately reported or fail to meet payment 

requirements;  

 

6.4.7.1.2 Any amounts paid by the Qualified Vendor to a subcontractor if the Qualified 

Vendor entered into the subcontract without advance notice to the Division;  

 

6.4.7.1.3 Any amount or benefit paid directly or indirectly to an individual or organization 

not in accordance with the “Substantial Interest Disclosure” section of these terms 

and conditions;  

 

6.4.7.1.4 Any amounts paid by the Division for services that duplicate services covered or 

reimbursed by other specific grants, contracts, or payments;  

 

6.4.7.1.5 Any amounts paid to the Qualified Vendor or reimbursed in excess of the 

Agreement or service reimbursement ceiling;  

 

6.4.7.1.6 Any amounts paid to the Qualified Vendor that are subsequently determined to be 

defective pursuant to the “Certification of Cost or Pricing Data” section of these 

terms and conditions; 

 

6.4.7.1.7 Any payments made for services rendered before the Agreement date or after the 

Agreement termination date (whether in whole or in part); and 

 

6.4.7.1.8 Any amount paid to the Qualified Vendor by the Division that is identified as a 

financial audit exception.  

 

6.4.8 Reporting Requirements. 

 

6.4.8.1 Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, reporting shall adhere to the 

following schedule: no later than the thirtieth (30
th

) day following the end of each 

month during the Agreement term, the Qualified Vendor shall submit required 

programmatic and financial reports to the Division in the form set forth in the 

Agreement or as required by the Division.  Failure to submit accurate and 

complete reports by the thirtieth (30
th

) day following the end of a month may 

result, at the option of the Division, in delay of payment.  Failure to provide such 

report within forty-five (45) days following the end of a month may result, at the 

option of the Division, in a termination of the Agreement. 

 

6.4.8.2 No later than the forty-fifth (45
th

) day following the termination of this 

Agreement, in whole or in part, the Qualified Vendor shall submit to the Division 

a final program and fiscal report.  Failure to submit the final program and fiscal 

report within the above time period may result, at the option of the Division, in 

forfeiture of final payment.  Following the end of each Agreement term, the 

Qualified Vendor shall submit programmatic and financial reports to the Division 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-20                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

in the form set forth in the contract no later than the forty-fifth (45
th

) day 

following the end of the each Agreement term.  The final fiscal report for the 

Agreement term shall include all adjustment to prior financial reports submitted 

for the Agreement term. 

 

6.4.8.3 All records or other documentation supplied to the Division by the Qualified 

Vendor shall contain the Qualified Vendor number, Agreement number, name of 

the entity, and be submitted to the person designated by the Division.  

 

6.4.8.4 Earned income reports for employment-related services shall be submitted to the 

Division by the Qualified Vendor no later than the fifteen (15
th

) day of each 

month following the service.  This also applies to Qualified Vendors who contract 

with another division to provide employment-related services to the Division’s 

members.  

 

6.4.8.5 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with any other reporting requirements as 

specified in the Agreement or as required by the Division.  

 

6.4.9 Substantial Interest Disclosure. 

 

6.4.9.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not make any payments, either directly or indirectly, 

to any person, partnership, corporation, trust, or any other organization that has a 

substantial interest in the Qualified Vendor’s organization or with which the 

Qualified Vendor (or one of its directors, officers, owners, trust certificate holders 

or a relative thereof) has a substantial interest, unless the Qualified Vendor has 

made a full written disclosure of the proposed payments, including amounts, to 

the Division.  

 

6.4.9.2 Leases or rental contracts or purchase of real property that would be covered by 

item 6.4.9.1 of this section shall be in writing and accompanied by an independent 

commercial appraisal of fair market rental, lease, or purchase value, as 

appropriate.  

 

6.4.9.3 For the purpose of this section, “relative” shall have the same meaning as in 

A.R.S. § 38-502, including the definition therein as it may be amended. 

 

6.4.10 Coordination of Benefits; Third Party Liability Determination. 

 

6.4.10.1 When applicable, the Qualified Vendor shall establish and maintain a third party 

payor identification process.   

 

6.4.10.1.1 The Qualified Vendor shall report to the Division any updates to the member-

specific third party liability information within ten (10) business days of learning 

of the new information.   

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-21                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.10.2 When applicable, the Qualified Vendor shall seek payment from the third party 

utilizing the AHCCCS-approved Current Procedural Terminology codes (CPT) or 

Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (“HCPCS”) for the service 

provider’s category of service, up to the amount of liability before submitting a 

claim to the Division.   

 

6.4.10.3 When submitting a claim to the Division, the Qualified Vendor shall also provide 

information acceptable to the Division showing the rejection or nonpayment of the 

claim by the third party.  Acceptable information includes, but is not limited to, an 

“explanation of benefits” form when the third party is an insurance company 

whose potential liability for the claim arises out of a contract of insurance.   

 

6.4.10.4 In the event the Qualified Vendor receives payment from a third party payor in an 

amount that meets or exceeds the published rate, the Qualified Vendor shall report 

the provision of service on the claim document showing no amount due from the 

Division.    

 

6.4.10.5 To the extent the Division pays all or a portion of a claim of the Qualified Vendor, 

the Qualified Vendor hereby assigns to the Division all rights it would otherwise 

have had from the third party or from any other source. 

 

6.4.10.6 AHCCCS rules apply to the coordination of benefits under this Agreement.  

 

6.5 Accountability  

 

6.5.1 Professional Standards. 

  

 The Qualified Vendor shall deliver services in a humane and respectful manner 

and in accordance with any and all applicable professional accreditation standards.  

Levels of staff qualifications, professionalism, numbers of staff and individuals 

identified by name must be maintained as presented in the Agreement.  

 

6.5.2 Qualified Vendor Code of Conduct. 

 

6.5.2.1 The Qualified Vendor shall subcontract with or utilize only those individuals or 

organizations that are culturally sensitive, who meet accessibility standards for the 

disabled, and who do not discriminate based on ethnicity, gender, age, race, 

religion, marital status, sexual orientation or socioeconomic status.  

Subcontractors and their credentials shall meet all the requirements that apply to 

the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.5.2.2 The Qualified Vendor must ensure that its personnel, subcontractors and any other 

individual utilized by the Qualified Vendor for this Agreement: 

 Represent themselves, their credentials, and their relationship to Qualified 

Vendor accurately to members and others in the community. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-22                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 Participate as appropriate in the planning (e.g., ISP) process, including the 

implementation of plan objectives. 

 Maintain consumer privacy and confidential information in conformity with 

federal and state law, rule, and policy. 

 Ensure that all individuals who participate in this Agreement have been 

trained and have affirmed their understanding of federal and state law, rule, 

and policy regarding confidential information. 

 Ensure that members receiving service are safely supervised and accounted 

for. 

 Act in a professional manner, honor commitments, and treat members and 

families with dignity and respect. 

 Display a positive attitude. 

 Absolute zero tolerance for the following:  sexual activity with members and 

family members; employ authority or influence with members and families for 

the benefit of a third party; exploit the member’s trust in the Contractor; or 

accept any commission, rebates, or any other form of remuneration except for 

payment by the Contractor. 

 

6.5.2.3 The Qualified Vendor shall avoid any action that might create or result in the 

appearance of: 

 

6.5.2.3.1 Inappropriate use or divulging of information gathered or discovered pursuant to 

the performance of its duties under the Agreement; 

 

6.5.2.3.2 Acting on behalf of the State without appropriate authorization; 

 

6.5.2.3.3 Providing favorable or unfavorable treatment to anyone; 

 

6.5.2.3.4 Making a decision on behalf of the State that exceeded its authority, could result 

in partiality, or have a political consequence for the State; 

 

6.5.2.3.5 Misrepresenting or otherwise impeding the efficiency, authority, actions, policies, 

or adversely affecting the confidence of the public or integrity of the State; or, 

 

6.5.2.3.6 Loss of impartiality when advising the State. 

 

6.5.3 Personnel. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor’s personnel must satisfy all qualifications, carry out all 

duties, work the hours and receive the compensation set forth in this Agreement.  

 

6.5.4 Fingerprinting.    

 

6.5.4.1 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with, and shall ensure that all of the Qualified 

Vendor’s employees, independent contractors, subcontractors, volunteers and 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-23                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

other agents comply with, all applicable (current and future) legal requirements 

relating to fingerprinting, fingerprint clearance cards, certifications regarding 

pending or past criminal matters, and criminal records checks that relate to 

Agreement performance. 

 

6.5.4.2 Applicable legal requirements relating to fingerprinting, certification, and criminal 

background checks may include, but are not limited to the following:  A.R.S. §§ 

36-594.01, 36-3008, 41-1964, and 46-141.  All applicable legal requirements 

relating to fingerprinting, fingerprint clearance cards, certifications regarding 

pending or past criminal matters, and criminal records checks are hereby 

incorporated in their entirety as provisions of this Agreement.  The Qualified 

Vendor is responsible for knowing which legal requirements relating to 

fingerprinting, fingerprint clearance cards, certifications regarding pending or past 

criminal matters, and criminal records checks relate to Agreement performance.  

The reference to “juvenile” in A.R.S. § 46-141 shall include “vulnerable adult” as 

defined in A.R.S. § 13-3623.  

  

6.5.4.3 Personnel who are employed by the Qualified Vendor, whether paid or not, and 

who are required or allowed to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable 

adults shall submit a full set of fingerprints to the Department of Public Safety for 

the purposes of obtaining a state and federal criminal records check pursuant to 

A.R.S. § 41-1750 and P. L. 92-544 or shall apply for fingerprint clearance card 

within seven (7) working days of employment.  

 

6.5.4.4 The Qualified Vendor shall assume the costs of fingerprint checks and may charge 

these costs to its fingerprinted personnel.  The Department may allow all or part of 

the costs of fingerprint checks to be included as an allowable cost in the 

Agreement.  

 

6.5.4.5       The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the Division’s Criminal Acts/ 

Fingerprinting Standards. 

 

6.5.4.6 Except as provided in A.R.S. § 46-141, this Agreement may be cancelled or 

terminated immediately if a person employed by the Qualified Vendor and who 

has contact with juveniles or vulnerable adults certifies pursuant to the provisions 

of A.R.S. § 46-141 (as may be amended) that the person is awaiting trial or has 

been convicted of any of the offenses listed therein in this State, or of acts 

committed in another state that would be offenses in this State, or if the person 

does not possess or is denied issuance of a valid fingerprint clearance card.  

 

6.5.4.7 Personnel who are employed by any Qualified Vendor, whether paid or not, and 

who are required or allowed to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable 

adults shall certify on forms provided by the Department and notarized whether 

they are awaiting trial on or have ever been convicted of any of the offenses 

described in A.R.S. § 46-141 (F) (as may be amended).  



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-24                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.5.4.8 Personnel who are employed by any Qualified Vendor, whether paid or not, and 

who are required or allowed to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable 

adults shall certify on forms provided by the Department and notarized whether 

they have ever committed any act of sexual abuse of a child, including sexual 

exploitation and commercial sexual exploitation, or any act of child abuse or any 

act of abuse against a vulnerable adult as defined in A.R.S. § 13-3623.  

 

6.5.5                Federally Recognized Native American Tribes or Military Bases Certifications.    

 

                      Federally recognized Native American tribes or military bases may submit and the 

Department shall accept certifications that state that no personnel who are 

employed or who will be employed during the Agreement term have been 

convicted of, have admitted committing or are awaiting trial on any offense as 

described in A.R.S. § 46-141 (F) (as may be amended). 

 

6.5.6 Background Checks for Employment through the ADES Central Registry.   

 

If providing direct services to children or vulnerable adults, the following shall 

apply: 

 

6.5.6.1 The provisions of A.R.S. § 8-804 (as may be amended) are hereby incorporated in 

its entirety as provisions of this Agreement.   

 

6.5.6.2 The Department will conduct Central Registry Background Checks and will use 

the information contained in the Central Registry as a factor to determine 

qualifications for positions that provide direct service to children or vulnerable 

adults for:        

1. Any person who applies for a contract with this State and that person’s 

employees; 

2. All employees of a contractor; 

3. A subcontractor  (subcontracting to provide member direct services) of a 

contractor and the subcontractor’s employees; and 

4. Prospective employees of the contractor or subcontractor at the request of the 

prospective employer. 

 

6.5.6.3  Volunteers who provide direct services to children or vulnerable adults shall have 

a Central Registry Background Check which is to be used as a factor to determine 

qualifications for volunteer positions. 

 

6.5.6.4 1.   A person who is disqualified because of a Central Registry Background Check 

may apply to the Board of Fingerprinting for a Central Registry exception 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-619.57.  A person who is granted a Central Registry 

exception pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-619.57 is not entitled to a contract, 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-25                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

employment, licensure, certification or other benefit because the person has 

been granted a Central Registry exception.  

 

2. Before being employed or volunteering in a position that provides direct 

services to children or vulnerable adults, persons shall certify on forms that are 

provided by the Department whether an allegation of abuse or neglect was 

made against them and was substantiated.  The completed forms are to be 

maintained as confidential.  

 

6.5.6.5 A person awaiting receipt of the Central Registry Background Check may provide 

direct services to ADES members (clients) after completion and submittal of the 

Direct Service Position certification if: 

 

1. The person is not currently the subject of an investigation of child abuse or 

neglect in Arizona or another state or jurisdiction; and 

 

2. The person has not been the subject of an investigation of child abuse or 

neglect in Arizona, or another state or jurisdiction, which resulted in a 

substantiated finding. 

 

             The Certification for Direct Service Position is located at:  

http://www.azdes.gov/InternetFiles/InternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-

1287AFORFF.doc. 

 

6.5.6.6 If the Central Registry Background Check specifies any disqualifying act and the 

person does not have a Central Registry exception, the person shall be prohibited 

from providing direct services to ADES members (clients).  

 

6.5.6.7             The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the provisions of A.R.S. § 8-804 (as may 

be amended) and submit the names of each employee, subcontractor, and 

subcontractor employee, including volunteers, providing direct service to Division 

members for the Central Registry Background Check.  The form for submitting 

the request is in Section 9, Attachment G of this Agreement located 

https://www.azdes.gov/main.aspx?menu=96&id=4792  .   

 

6.5.6.7.1 The Qualified Vendor shall maintain the Central Registry Background Check 

results and any related forms or documents in a confidential file for five (5) years 

after termination of the Agreement.  

 

6.5.6.7.2 For purposes of this Agreement, references to “juvenile” in A.R.S. § 8-804 shall 

also include “vulnerable adult” as defined in A.R.S. § 13-3623.  

 

6.5.7 Evaluation. 

 

http://www.azdes.gov/InternetFiles/InternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-1287AFORFF.doc
http://www.azdes.gov/InternetFiles/InternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-1287AFORFF.doc
https://www.azdes.gov/main.aspx?menu=96&id=4792


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-26                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 The Department or third parties may evaluate, and the Qualified Vendor shall 

cooperate in the evaluation of, Agreement services.  Evaluation may assess the 

quality and impact of services, either in isolation or in comparison with other 

similar services, and assess the Qualified Vendor’s progress and/or success in 

achieving the goals, objectives and deliverables set forth in this Agreement. 

 

6.5.8 Visitation, Inspection and Copying. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor’s or any subcontractor’s facilities, services, members 

served, books and records pertaining to the Agreement shall be available for 

visitation, inspection and copying by the Division and any other appropriate agent 

of the State or Federal Government.  At the discretion of the Division, visitation, 

inspection and copying may be at any time during regular business hours, 

announced or unannounced.  If the Division deems it to be an emergency 

situation, it may at any time visit and inspect the Qualified Vendor’s or any 

subcontractor’s facilities, services, and members served, as well as inspect and 

copy their Agreement-related books and records.  

 

6.5.9 Supporting Documents and Information. 

 

 In addition to any documents, reports or information required by any other section 

of this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor shall furnish the Division with any 

further documents and information deemed necessary by the Division in the form 

requested by the Division to demonstrate that the Qualified Vendor is in 

compliance with programmatic and Agreement requirements.  Upon receipt of a 

request for information from the Department, the Qualified Vendor shall provide 

complete and accurate information no later than fifteen (15) days after the receipt 

of the request. 

 

6.5.10 Monitoring. 

 

6.5.10.1 The Department may monitor the Qualified Vendor or any subcontractor and each 

shall cooperate in the monitoring of services delivered, facilities and records 

maintained and fiscal practices.  

 

6.5.10.2 The Division will monitor the Qualified Vendor’s compliance with the Agreement 

as deemed necessary by the Division.  Monitoring may also be conducted, at 

reasonable times, by members, parents, member representatives,  representatives 

of the Developmental Disabilities Advisory Council, and  other recognized, on-

going advocacy groups for persons with developmental disabilities.  The Qualified 

Vendor shall adhere to all related policies and procedures the Division deems 

appropriate to adequately evaluate the quality and impact of services and to 

establish on-going monitoring of service performance.  The Division reserves the 

right to monitor the actual provision of services for compliance with the Division 

Programmatic Standards and to conduct investigations in accordance with the 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-27                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

Division Investigation Standards and to verify staffing levels as authorized by the 

Division District Administration. 

 

6.5.10.3 If the Division requires the Qualified Vendor to implement a corrective action 

plan, and the approved plan requires it, the Qualified Vendor shall notify all 

current and prospective members that they are operating under a corrective action 

plan.      

 

6.5.11 Utilization Control/Quality Assurance.  

 

6.5.11.1 The Qualified Vendor shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, 

maintain an internal quality assurance system in accordance with current 

applicable AHCCCS rules and policies and Federal rules as specified in the 

current 42 C.F.R. Part 456, as implemented by AHCCCS and the Division.  

Qualified Vendor requirements shall include, but are not limited to:  

 

6.5.11.1.1 Completing statistical or program reports as requested by the Division; 

 

6.5.11.1.2 Complying with any recommendations made by the Division’s Statewide Quality 

Management Committee; 

 

6.5.11.1.3 Making records available upon request; 

 

6.5.11.1.4 Allowing persons authorized by the Division access to program areas at any hours 

of the day or night as deemed appropriate by the Division; and 

 

6.5.11.1.5 Providing program information, upon request, to the Division. 

 

6.5.11.2 The Qualified Vendor shall cooperate with the Division and AHCCCS quality 

assurance programs and reviews. 

 

6.5.12 Sanctions Against the Division as a Result of Qualified Vendor Action or 

Inaction. 

 

6.5.12.1 Sanctions imposed against the Division by AHCCCS for noncompliance with 

requirements for encounter data reporting, referenced in “Records” of these Terms 

and Conditions, that would not have been imposed but for the action or inaction of 

one or more Qualified Vendors, will be assessed against the Qualified Vendor 

based on the percentage of the Qualified Vendor’s contribution to the sanction 

imposed against the Division. 

 

6.5.12.2 Any other sanctions imposed against the Division by AHCCCS in accordance 

with applicable AHCCCS rules, policies, and procedures that would not have 

been imposed but for the action or inaction of one or more Qualified Vendors will 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-28                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

be assessed against the Qualified Vendor based on the percentage of the Qualified 

Vendor’s contribution to the sanction imposed against the Division. 

 

6.5.12.3 Sanctions imposed against the Division by AHCCCS for failure of one or more 

Qualified Vendors or any subcontractor to submit requested disclosure statements 

will be assessed against the Qualified Vendor based on the percentage of the 

Qualified Vendor’s contribution to the sanction imposed against the Division. 

 

6.5.13 Fair Hearings and Members’ Grievances. 

 

6.5.13.1 The Qualified Vendor shall advise all members who receive services of their right, 

at any time and for any reason, to present to the Qualified Vendor and to the 

Division any grievances arising from the delivery of services, including, but not 

limited to, ineligibility determination, reduction of services, suspension or 

termination of services, or quality of services.  The Division may assert its 

jurisdiction to hear the grievance or refer the matter to the appropriate authority. 

 

6.5.13.2 If required by the Division, the Qualified Vendor shall maintain a system, subject 

to review upon request by the Division, for reviewing and adjudicating grievances 

by members or subcontractors concerning the actual provision of services and 

payment for same by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor.  This system shall 

follow the grievance procedure agreed to by AHCCCS and the Division in the 

current AHCCCS/Division intergovernmental Agreement and the Division rules 

and policies. 

 

6.5.14 Merger or Acquisition. 

 

6.5.14.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not change ownership and/or taxpayer identification 

number without the prior written consent of the Division during the term of this 

Agreement.  Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

6.5.14.2 A proposed merger, reorganization, affiliation, or change in ownership of the 

Qualified Vendor shall require prior approval of the Division.  In some cases, a 

new Application may be required. 

 

6.5.15 Disclosure of Bankruptcy Filing and other Material Event. 

 

 Qualified Vendors shall immediately notify the Division of any and all filings 

made under the bankruptcy laws and regulations and promptly provide a copy of 

the court filing and any subsequent non-procedural Court orders to the Division, 

including the final order disposing of the bankruptcy.  In addition, the Qualified 

Vendor shall immediately submit an amended Assurances and Submittals, to the 

Division’s Contract Management Unit. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-29                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.5.15.1 The Qualified Vendor shall notify the Division within twenty-four (24) hours, in 

writing, if the Qualified Vendor: (i) fails to so maintain any representation, 

comply with any covenant, or perform any duty as provided in this Agreement; (ii) 

receives notice or becomes aware of a claim or cause of action that would, if valid 

and enforceable against the Qualified Vendor, violate any provision in this 

Agreement; or (iii) becomes aware of any Material Event. The notice to the 

Division shall describe the event or facts that triggered the delivery of the notice.  

 

6.5.16 Federal Database Checks. 

 

6.5.16.1 The Division will not and the Qualified Vendor shall not employ or contract with 

any individual who has been debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully prohibited 

from participating in any public procurement activity or from participating in non-

procurement activities under regulations issued under Executive Order 12549 or 

under guidelines implementing Executive Order 12549 [42 Code of Federal 

Regulations (“C.F.R.”) § 438.610(a) and (b), 42 C.F.R. § 1001. 1901(b), 42 

C.F.R. § 1003. 102(a)(2)]. The Division is obligated under 42 C.F.R. § 455.436 to 

screen all Qualified Vendors and the Qualified Vendor is obligated to screen all 

employees, contractors, and/or subcontractor employees providing Agreement 

services to determine whether any of them have been excluded from participation 

in Federal health care programs by checking the following Federal databases: 

 

1. The List of Excluded Individuals/Entities (“LEIE”) no less frequently than 

monthly (http://oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/)  

 

2. The System for Award Management (“SAM”) no less frequently than monthly 

(https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/), 

 

3. And any other such databases that may be prescribed. 

 

6.5.16.2 The Qualified Vendor shall maintain the Federal Database Check results and any 

related forms or documents in a confidential file for five (5) years after 

termination of the Agreement. 

 

6.5.17 Fraud and Abuse.   

 

6.5.17.1 If the Qualified Vendor discovers, or is made aware, that an act of suspected fraud 

or abuse has occurred or been alleged, the Qualified Vendor shall immediately 

report the incident or allegation to the Division as well as to the AHCCCS, Office 

of the Inspector General.  The Qualified Vendor shall refer to the Division’s 

Provider Manual for guidance. 

 

 

 

6.6                 Agreement Changes 

http://oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/
https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-30                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

                        The Division may change the Agreement by posting a proposed amendment for 

thirty (30) days of review and comment.  The amendment then requires signature 

by both parties in order for the Agreement to continue; however, amendments 

reflecting changes in law or generally applicable policies and procedures shall 

become a part of this Agreement without signature by the parties.  If an 

amendment requires the signature of the Qualified Vendor, and the Qualified 

Vendor fails to sign and return the amendment in the form and within the 

timeframe specified by the Division, the Division may terminate the Agreement, 

in whole or in part.  The Qualified Vendor may request a change to its Application 

and, upon approval by the Division; the change will become part of the ongoing 

Agreement. 

 

6.6.1 Unauthorized Amendments.  

 

 Changes to the Agreement, including the addition of work or materials, the 

revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work or materials, directed by an 

unauthorized State employee or made unilaterally by the Qualified Vendor are 

violations of the Agreement and of applicable law.  Such changes, including 

unauthorized written Agreement amendments, shall be void and without effect, 

and the Qualified Vendor shall not be entitled to any claim under this Agreement 

based on those changes.   

 

6.6.1.1 The Division may withdraw a proposed amendment, in whole or in part, before it 

becomes effective, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the State. 

 

6.6.2 Updating Information and Amending a Qualified Vendor Application.  

 

6.6.2.1 The Qualified Vendor shall update in QVADS the general information section of 

the vendor contract information component, the assurances and submittal form 

and associated submittals, the program description section of the detail 

information component, and administrative and service sites as necessary to 

ensure that the information is current and accurate.  These changes are Vendor-

initiated Application amendments.  Application amendments that require approval 

by the Division are indicated in the electronic submittal process for QVADS and 

do not become effective unless approved.   

 

6.6.2.2  The Qualified Vendor shall update all other information in QVADS as necessary 

to ensure that the information is current and accurate.   

 

6.6.2.3 If the Division finds that the information provided in the original Application or 

as an update to the application is materially inaccurate, and the Qualified Vendor 

fails to correct such information within the time specified in a notice from the 

Division, such failure may be cause for termination of the Agreement, in whole or 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-31                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

in part.  The Division may delete the information from the directory until a 

correction is provided or the Agreement is terminated.   

 

6.6.2.4 A Qualified Vendor seeking to add a service to its Agreement shall submit a 

request to the Division and if approved, the new service becomes part of the 

vendor’s Agreement.   

 

6.6.3 Subcontracts.  

 

6.6.3.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not enter into any subcontract for direct services under 

this Agreement without advance notice to the Division.   

 

6.6.3.2 Prior to adding a subcontractor to the Agreement, the Qualified Vendor shall 

submit a formal, written statement to the Contracts Manager.  The statement shall: 

 

6.6.3.2.1 Be on the Qualified Vendor’s company letterhead; 

 

6.6.3.2.2 Be signed by an authorized signatory of the Qualified Vendor; and 

 

6.6.3.2.3 Contain the following information: 

 

a. The subcontractor’s name, address, phone number, e-mail address, and 

primary point of contact; 

 

 b.  The certifications required of the subcontractor (if any); 

 

 c.  The type of services to be provided by the subcontractor; 

 

d.  The amount of time or effort (as a percent of the total Agreement performance) 

that the subcontractor will perform in relation to total performance of the 

Agreement’s requirements; and 

 

e.  A description of the quality assurance measures that the Qualified Vendor 

shall use to monitor the subcontractor’s performance. 

 

6.6.3.3  The State reserves the right to request additional information deemed necessary 

about any proposed subcontractor, and the right to require the Qualified Vendor to 

delay performance of the subcontract until the State determines that the 

subcontracting relationship is consistent with the requirements of this Agreement 

 

6.6.3.4 The subcontract shall incorporate by reference the entirety of this Agreement and 

the AHCCCS Minimum Subcontract Provisions; for information regarding those 

provisions, see www.azahcccs.gov/commercial/default.aspx. 

 

http://www.azahcccs.gov/commercial/default.aspx


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-32                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.6.3.5 The Qualified Vendor shall provide copies of each subcontract with a 

subcontractor relating to the provision of Agreement services to the Division 

within five (5) business days of the request.   

 

6.6.3.6 The Qualified Vendor shall be legally responsible for Agreement performance 

whether or not subcontractors are used.   

 

6.6.3.7 No subcontract may operate to terminate or limit the legal responsibility of the 

Qualified Vendor to assure that all activities carried out by any subcontractor 

conform to the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

6.6.4 Assignment and Delegation.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall not assign any right nor delegate any duty under this 

Agreement.  

 

6.7 Risk and Liability  

 

6.7.1 General Indemnification. 

  

 The Qualified Vendor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the State 

of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its 

officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) 

from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or 

expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 

investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury 

or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible 

property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 

willful acts or omissions of Qualified Vendor or any of its owners, officers, 

directors, agents, employees or subcontractors. This indemnity includes any claim 

or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or 

arising out of the failure of such Qualified Vendor to conform to any federal, state 

or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific 

intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for 

Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 

Indemnitee, be indemnified by Qualified Vendor from and against any and all 

claims.  It is agreed that Qualified Vendor will be responsible for primary loss 

investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is 

applicable.  In consideration of the award of this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor 

agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the State of Arizona, its officers, 

officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the 

Qualified Vendor for the State of Arizona. 

 

6.7.1.1 This indemnity shall not apply if the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor(s) is/are 

an agency, board, commission or university of the State of Arizona. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-33                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.7.2 Indemnification - Patent and Copyright.  

 

 To the extent permitted by A.R.S. §§ 41-621 and 35-154, the Qualified Vendor 

shall indemnify and hold harmless the State against any liability, including costs 

and expenses, for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out 

of Agreement performance or use by the State of materials furnished or work 

performed under this Agreement. The State will notify the Qualified Vendor of 

any claim for which it may be liable under this section. 

 

6.7.3 Force Majeure. 

 

6.7.3.1 Except for payment of sums due for services rendered in accordance with the 

terms of the Agreement, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in 

default under this Agreement if and to the extent that such party’s performance of 

this Agreement is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force 

majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and 

occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without limiting the foregoing, force 

majeure includes acts of God, acts of the public enemy, war, riots, strikes, 

mobilization, labor disputes, civil disorders, fire, flood, lockouts, injunctions-

intervention-acts, failures or refusals to act by government authority and other 

similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force majeure which 

such party is unable to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence. 

 

6.7.3.2 Force majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 

 

6.7.3.2.1 Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s 

plant or elsewhere, or an oversold condition of the market; 

 

6.7.3.2.2 Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure 

occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition; or  

 

6.7.3.2.3 Inability of either the Qualified Vendor or any subcontractor to acquire or 

maintain any required insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 

 

6.7.3.3 If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, 

the delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is 

practicable and no later than the following business day, of the commencement 

thereof and shall specify the causes of such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall 

be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and shall make a specific reference 

to this section, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party shall cause 

such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in 

writing when it has done so.  The time of completion shall be extended by 

Agreement amendment for a period of time equal to the time that results or effects 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-34                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

of such delay prevent the delayed party from performing in accordance with this 

Agreement. 

 

6.7.3.4 Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute 

default hereunder or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated 

profits if, and to the extent that such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

 

6.7.4 Third Party Antitrust Violations.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor assigns to the State any claim for overcharges resulting 

from antitrust violations to the extent that those violations concern materials or 

services supplied by third parties to the Qualified Vendor toward fulfillment of 

this Agreement. 

 

6.7.5 Predecessor and Successor Agreements.   

 

 The execution or termination of this Agreement, in whole or in part shall not be 

considered a waiver by the Department of any rights it may have for damages 

suffered through a breach of this Agreement or a prior Agreement with the 

Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.7.6 Insurance.  

 

6.7.6.1 Insurance Requirements 

 

6.7.6.1.1 Qualified Vendor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 

obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this 

Agreement, are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage 

to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

work hereunder by the Qualified Vendor, his agents, representatives, employees or 

subcontractors.   

 

6.7.6.1.2 The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Agreement 

and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement.  The 

State of Arizona in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are 

sufficient to protect the Qualified Vendor from liabilities that might arise out of 

the performance of the work under this Agreement by the Qualified Vendor, its 

agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Qualified Vendor is free 

to purchase additional insurance.   

 

6.7.6.1.3 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Qualified Vendor shall provide 

coverage with limits of liability not less than those stated below: 

 

6.7.6.1.3.1 Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-35                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, personal and advertising 

injury and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 

a. For Qualified Vendors of Occupational, Physical or Speech Therapy services: 

 

 Coverage  Minimum Limits 

 General Aggregate        $2,000,000   

 Personal and Advertising Injury      $1,000,000 

 Blanket Contractual Liability – Written and Oral    $1,000,000 

 Fire Legal Liability (Damage to Rented Premises)      $   50,000 

 Each Occurrence        $1,000,000 
 

1. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 

language:  “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 

Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 

arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the Qualified 

Vendor”.  Such additional insured shall be covered to the full limits of 

liability purchased by the Qualified Vendor, even if those limits of liability 

are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 

 

2.  The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of 

the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor. 

 

3. Commercial General Liability may be satisfied if the Commercial General 

Liability policy is combined with the Professional Liability policy (item 

6.7.6.2.3.4 below), provided that the Commercial General Liability 

coverage is written on an occurrence basis, and certified with the required 

coverage, limits and endorsements required for Section 6.7.6.2.3.1.  If 

written with the Professional Liability policy, the Commercial General 

Liability section shall have separate limits from the Professional Liability. 

 

b.  For all other Qualified Vendors: 

 

  Coverage        Minimum Limits 

 General Aggregate         

$2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate     $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury       $1,000,000 

 Blanket Contractual Liability – Written and Oral     $1,000,000 

 Fire Legal Liability (Damage to Rented Premises)     $     50,000 

 Each Occurrence         $1,000,000 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-36                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

1.  The policy shall include coverage for Sexual Abuse and Molestation.  This 

coverage may be sub-limited to no less than $500,000.  The limits may be 

included within the General Liability limit or provided by separate 

endorsement with its own limits or provided as separate coverage included 

with the Professional Liability.   

 

2. The Qualified Vendor must provide the following statement on their 

certificate(s) of insurance: Sexual Abuse/Molestation Coverage in 

included. 

 

3.  The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 

language:  “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 

Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 

arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the Qualified 

Vendor”.  Such additional insured shall be covered to the full limits of 

liability purchased by the Qualified Vendor, even if those limits of liability 

are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 

 

4.  The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement if favor the 

State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.7.6.1.3.2 Business Automobile Liability 

 

 Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned 

vehicles used in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

 a. Combined Single Limit (CSL)  $1,000,000 

 

1.  The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 

language:  “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 

Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 

arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the Qualified 

Vendor, involving automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Qualified Vendor”.   Such additional insured shall be covered to the full 

limits of liability purchased by the contractor, even if those limits of 

liability are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 

 

2. The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of 

the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor.  

 

3. Policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-37                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

4. This section, Business Automobile Liability, shall not be applicable in 

the event the Qualified Vendor (or its Subcontractors) does not utilize a 

vehicle in any manner in the performance of the Agreement or if the 

utilization is only for commuting purposes.  The term “commuting 

purposes” means a vehicle is used to travel from the Qualified Vendor’s 

home to its principal place of business or to one designated location.  The 

Qualified Vendor electing to utilize their vehicle solely for commuting 

purposes shall submit a request to the Division for a Business Automobile 

Liability Waiver.  In the event the Qualified Vendor (or its Subcontractors) 

subsequently utilizes the vehicle in the performance of the Agreement or it 

utilizes it for other than commuting purposes under the Agreement, this 

paragraph, Business Automobile Liability, shall be fully applicable, 

effective the date the utilization changed.   

 

6.7.6.1.3.3 Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability 

 

 a. Worker’s Compensation  Statutory 

 

 b. Employer’s Liability   

 

  Coverage       Minimum Limits 

  Each Accident  $   500,000 

  Disease – Each Employee  $   500,000 

  Disease – Policy Limit  $1,000,000 

 

i.    Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of the 

State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor. 

 

ii.   This requirement shall not apply to the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor 

exempt from the provisions of A.R.S. § 23-901. To claim this exemption, 

the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor shall submit a request to the 

Division for the appropriate waiver (Sole Proprietor Waiver or 

Independent Contractor Agreement) form.  

 

6.7.6.1.3.4 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 

  Basis                  Minimum Limits 

  Each Claim     $1,000,000 

  Annual Aggregate     $2,000,000 

 

a.  In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this 

Agreement is written on a claims-made basis, the Qualified Vendor warrants 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-38                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede the effective date of 

this Agreement; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 

extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years 

beginning at the time work under this Agreement is completed. 

 

b.  The policy shall cover professional misconduct or wrongful acts for those 

positions defined in the Scope of Work of this Agreement.  

 

6.7.6.1.4 For assistance, a Qualified Vendor may contact the Department of Insurance 

Market Assist hotline at 602-364-3100.  The Qualified Vendor may obtain 

assistance with sources for Business Automobile Liability to comply with this 

Agreement and should specify the limit required as well as the Qualified Vendor’s 

status with the Division. 

 

6.7.6.1.5 Additional Insurance Requirements  

  

6.7.6.1.5.1 The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the following provisions:  

The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic Security wherever 

additional insured status is required such additional insured shall be covered to 

the full limits of liability purchased by the Qualified Vendor, even if those limits of 

liability are in excess of those required by this Agreement as provided by A.R.S. § 

41-621 (E). 

 

6.7.6.1.5.2 The Qualified Vendor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with 

respect to all other available sources. 

 

6.7.6.1.5.3 Coverage provided by the Qualified Vendor shall not be limited to the liability 

assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

 

6.7.6.1.6 Notice of Cancellation:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance 

provisions of this Agreement shall provide the required coverage and shall not be 

suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty 

(30) days prior written notice has been given to the State of Arizona.  Such notice 

shall be sent directly to Contract Management Unit, Business Operations, Site 

Code 791A, Division of Developmental Disabilities, Arizona Department of 

Economic Security, P.O. Box 6123, Phoenix, AZ, 85005-6123, and shall be sent 

by certified mail, return receipt requested.   

 

6.7.6.1.7 Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance shall be placed with duly licensed or 

approved non-admitted status on the Arizona Department of Insurance List of 

Qualified Unauthorized Insurers.   Insurers shall have an “A.M. Best” rating of not 

less than A-VII or dually authorized to transact insurance in the State of Arizona.  

The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer 

rating is sufficient to protect the Qualified Vendor from potential insurer 

insolvency.   



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-39                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

 If the social services program utilizes the Social Service Contractors Indemnity 

Pool (“SSCIP”) or other approved insurance pool for insurance coverage, SSCIP 

or the other approved insurance pool is exempt from the A.M. Best's rating 

requirements listed in this Agreement.  If the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor 

chooses to use SSCIP or another approved insurance pool as its insurance 

provider, the contract/subcontract would be considered in full compliance with 

insurance requirements relating to the A.M. Best rating requirements. 

 

6.7.6.1.8 Verification of Coverage  

 

6.7.6.1.8.1 The Qualified Vendor shall furnish the State of Arizona with certificates of 

insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) as 

required by this Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be 

signed by a person authorized by that insurer on its behalf. 

 

6.7.6.1.8.2  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the State of 

Arizona before work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement must be in effect at or prior to commencement of Agreement services 

under this Agreement and remain in effect for the duration of the Agreement.  

Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Agreement, or to 

provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach of the Agreement. 

 

6.7.6.1.8.3  All certificates required by this Agreement shall be sent directly to:  

 

   

  Contract Management Unit 

  Business Operations – Site Code 791A 

  Arizona Department of Economic Security  

  Division of Developmental Disabilities 

  P.O. Box 6123 

  Phoenix, Arizona 85007  

  

 The State of Arizona Project/Agreement number (the Qualified Vendor 

Application and Agreement Award Number) and Project Description (“RFQVA 

DDD 710000”) shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The State of 

Arizona reserves the right to require complete, copies of all insurance policies 

required by this Agreement at any time.  DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE TO THE STATE OF ARIZONA’S RISK MANAGEMENT 

SECTION OR TO THE DES OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT.  

 

6.7.6.1.9 Subcontractors:  Qualified Vendors’ certificate(s) shall submit a listing of all 

subcontractors performing member direct services and include all subcontractors 

as insured under its policies or Qualified Vendors shall furnish/submit to the State 

of Arizona separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-40                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

associated with the Agreement award.  All insurance coverage for subcontractors 

shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 

 

6.7.6.1.9.1  Qualified Vendors that utilize subcontractors to provide Developmental Home 

services will be exempt from providing separate certificates and endorsements if 

the Qualified Vendor enters into a separate Agreement between the Qualified 

Vendor, the Developmental Home subcontractor and the Division.  Such 

Agreement shall provide for the Developmental Home subcontractor to be 

covered under the Provider Indemnity Program (“PIP”).  A sample format for the 

Agreement may be found on the Division’s website at 

https://www.azdes.gov/ddd/. 

 

6.7.6.1.10 Approval:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this 

Agreement shall be made by the contracting agency in consultation with the 

Department of Administration, Risk Management Division.  Such action will not 

require a formal Agreement amendment, but may be made by administrative 

action. 

 

6.7.6.1.11 Exceptions:  In the event the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor(s) is/are a public 

entity, then the Insurance Requirements shall not apply.  Such public entity shall 

provide a Certificate of Self-Insurance.  If the Qualified Vendor or 

subcontractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, commission, or 

university, none of the above shall apply. 

 

 In the event that the Qualified Vendor determines that it may not be able to 

comply fully with the insurance requirements set forth above in Section 6.7.6 

above, the Qualified Vendor may request that the insurance requirements be 

modified pursuant to Section 6.7.6.1.10 provided that such request be delivered in 

writing to the Department as early as possible but in no event not less than ten 

(10) days prior to Agreement execution.  The Qualified Vendor shall include with 

such request Qualified Vendor’s justification for the modification with supporting 

documentation.   

 

 As provided in Section 6.7.6.1.10, the Department of Administration, Risk 

Management Section, shall decide whether such modification may be permitted.  

If the Department of Administration, Risk Management, decides to grant 

permission, the Department of Economic Security’s Chief Procurement Officer 

shall then decide whether to approve the modification.   

 

 Modifications that are approved are done so on a case-by-case basis and shall not 

affect the insurance requirements for other Qualified Vendors for whom the 

modifications have not been approved.  If a Qualified Vendor’s request has not 

been approved or the Qualified Vendor fails to deliver its request prior the 

applicable deadline, then the Qualified Vendor shall be required to comply fully 

with the insurance requirements set forth in Section 6.7.6 above. 

https://www.azdes.gov/ddd/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-41                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.8 Warranties  

 

6.8.1 Year 2000. 

 

6.8.1.1 Notwithstanding any other warranty or disclaimer of warranty in this Agreement, 

the Qualified Vendor warrants that all products delivered and all services rendered 

under this Agreement shall comply in all respects to performance and delivery 

requirements of the specifications and shall not be adversely affected by any date-

related data Year 2000 issues.  This warranty shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement.  In addition, the defense of force majeure shall not 

apply to the Qualified Vendor’s failure to perform specification requirements as a 

result of any date-related data Year 2000 issues. 

 

6.8.1.2 Additionally, notwithstanding any other warranty or disclaimer of warranty in this 

Agreement, the Qualified Vendor warrants that each hardware, software, and 

firmware product delivered under this Agreement shall be able to accurately 

process date/time data (including but not limited to calculation, comparing, and 

sequencing) from, into, and between the twentieth and twenty-first centuries, and 

the years 1999 and 2000 and leap year calculations, to the extent that other 

information technology utilized by the State in combination with the information 

technology being acquired under this Agreement properly exchanges date-time 

data with it.  If this Agreement requires that the information technology products 

being acquired perform as a system, or that the information technology products 

being acquired perform as a system in combination with other State information 

technology, then this warranty shall apply to the acquired products as a system.  

The remedies available to the State for breach of this warranty shall include, but 

shall not be limited to, repair and replacement of the information technology 

products delivered under this Agreement. In addition, the defense of force 

majeure shall not apply to the failure of the Qualified Vendor to perform any 

specification requirements as a result of any date-related data Year 2000 issues.  

 

6.8.1.3 The Qualified Vendor warrants that all services provided under this Agreement 

shall conform to the requirements stated herein and any amendments hereto.  The 

Department's acceptance of services provided by the Qualified Vendor shall not 

relieve the Qualified Vendor from its obligations under this warranty.  In addition 

to its other remedies, the Department Procurement Officer may, at the Qualified 

Vendor's expense, require prompt correction of any services failing to meet the 

Qualified Vendor’s warranty herein.  Services corrected by the Qualified Vendor 

shall be subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement in the manner and to the 

same extent as the services originally furnished. 

 

6.8.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws.   

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-42                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.8.2.1 The materials and services supplied under this Agreement shall comply with all 

applicable Federal, State and local laws, and the Qualified Vendor shall maintain 

all applicable licenses and permit requirements. 

 

6.8.2.2 In accordance with A.R.S. § 36-557 (Purchase of community developmental 

disabilities services; application; Agreements; limitation), as applicable, all 

members who receive Agreement services shall have all of the same specified 

rights as they would have if enrolled in a service program operated directly by the 

State.  

 

6.8.2.3 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements related to reporting to a 

peace officer or child protective services incidents of crimes against children as 

specified in A.R.S. §13-3620 (as may be amended).  

 

6.8.2.4 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements in A.R.S. § 46-454 

related to reporting to a peace office or to a protective services worker any reason 

to believe that abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult has occurred. 

 

6.8.2.5 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with P.L. 101-121, Section 319 (21 U.S.C. 

Section 1352) (as may be amended) and 29 C.F.R. Part 93 (as may be amended) 

which prohibit the use of Federal funds for lobbying and which state, in part: 

Except with the express authorization of Congress, the Qualified Vendor, its 

employees or agents, shall not utilize any Federal funds under the terms of this 

Agreement to solicit or influence, or to attempt to solicit or influence, directly or 

indirectly, any member of Congress regarding pending or prospective legislation. 

Indian tribes, tribal organizations and any other Indian organizations are exempt 

from these lobbying restrictions with respect to expenditures that are specifically 

permitted by other Federal law.  

 

6.8.2.6 The Qualified Vendor shall cooperate with all Division investigations, including 

investigations pursuant to A.R.S. § 36-557(G)(3) that involve danger to the health 

and safety of a Division member.  This includes notification to the Division of all 

complaints involving a member.   

 

6.8.2.7 The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall comply with all applicable 

Federal laws, rules, regulations and policies, including Title XIX of the Social 

Security Act, the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 (P.L. 97-35), Title 

42 of the C.F.R., and Title 45 C.F.R., Parts 74 and 96.  If the Qualified Vendor 

receives Title XX funds, the Qualified Vendor shall comply with The Arizona 

Title XX Social Services Plan and Section 2352, Title XX Block Grants, of the 

Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981.  

 

6.8.2.8 The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall comply with all applicable 

licensure, certification, and registration standards established by the Department, 

the Division, and AHCCCS.  The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-43                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

comply with all applicable Arizona law and applicable Department, Division, or 

AHCCCS administrative rules, policies, procedures, service standards and 

guidelines of their profession/occupation, including, but not limited to:  

 

6.8.2.8.1 Hiring of ex-offenders;  

 

6.8.2.8.2 Fingerprinting of Qualified Vendor’s and any subcontractor’s staff;  

 

6.8.2.8.3 Completing of Fire Risk Profile requirements; 

 

6.8.2.8.4 Reporting of unusual incidents involving children and/or adults;  

 

6.8.2.8.5 Implementing program audit implementation plans;  

 

6.8.2.8.6 Participating as a member of the planning (e.g., ISP) team;  

 

6.8.2.8.7 Complying with all policies, procedures and instructions regarding planning 

documents (e.g., ISPs);  

 

6.8.2.8.8 Submitting to the Division’s Support Coordinators copies of the planning 

document (e.g., ISP) strategies and other required documentation;  

 

6.8.2.8.9 Providing copies of member records, including evaluations and progress reports; 

and 

 

6.8.2.8.10 Ensuring that all movement of Division members, except in emergency need 

situations, is coordinated through the planning (e.g., ISP) team.  If a member is 

receiving Title XIX funded services, no member movement shall take place unless 

it is part of the member’s planning document (e.g., ISP).  

 

6.8.2.9 The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall comply with the Occupational 

Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) regulations regarding blood borne 

pathogens, 29 C.F.R. 1910.1030.  

 

6.8.2.10 The terms of this Agreement shall be subject to the terms of the intergovernmental 

Agreement between the Department and AHCCCS for the provision of services to 

ALTCS members.  The Qualified Vendor accepts and agrees to perform the duties 

and requirements applicable to a provider of services to ALTCS members, 

including but not limited to performance of the Provider Participation Agreement 

between AHCCCS and the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.8.2.11 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (P. L. 104-191) and all applicable 

implementing Federal regulations.  The Qualified Vendor shall notify the Division 

no later than one-hundred twenty (120) days prior to any required compliance date 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-44                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

if the Qualified Vendor is unwilling to or anticipates that it will be unable to 

comply with any of the requirements of this section.  Receipt by the Division of a 

notice of anticipated inability or unwillingness to comply as required by this 

section constitutes grounds for the termination of this Agreement.  

 

6.8.2.12 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with any changes to Federal laws, regulations, 

or policies, to Arizona law, to Department, Division, or AHCCCS administrative 

rules, policies, or procedures, or to the intergovernmental agreement between the 

Department and AHCCCS.    

 

6.8.2.13    By entering into this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor warrants compliance with 

the federal Immigration and Nationality Act (“INA”) and all other state and 

federal immigration laws and regulations related to the immigration status of its 

employees.  The Qualified Vendor shall obtain statements from its subcontractors 

certifying compliance and shall furnish the statements to the Division upon 

request.  These warranties shall remain in effect through the term of the 

Agreement.  The Qualified Vendor and its subcontractors shall also maintain 

Employment Eligibility Verification forms (“I-9”) as required by the U.S. 

Department of Labor's Immigration and Control Act, for all employees performing 

work under the Agreement.  I-9 forms are available for download at 

www.uscis.gov.  The Division may request verification of compliance for any 

Qualified Vendor or subcontractor performing work under the Agreement.  

Should the Division suspect or find that the Qualified Vendor or any of its 

subcontractors are not in compliance, the Division may pursue any and all 

remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to: suspension of work, 

termination of the Agreement for default, and suspension and/or debarment of the 

Qualified Vendor. All costs necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility 

of the Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.8.2.14 By entering into this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor warrants compliance with 

the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (P.L. 109-171).  Any Qualified Vendor that 

receives at least $5,000,000 (five million dollars) in Medicaid payments annually 

shall establish written policies for all employees (including management), and for 

all employees of any Qualified Vendor or agent of the Qualified Vendor, 

providing detailed information about false claims, false statements, and 

whistleblower protections under applicable Federal and State fraud and abuse 

laws.  These written policies must include a specific discussion of the foregoing 

laws and detailed information regarding the Qualified Vendor’s policies and 

procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, waste and abuse, as well as the 

rights of employees to be protected as whistleblowers.  In addition, the Qualified 

Vendor must establish a process for training, and train, existing staff and new 

hires on false claims, false statements, and whistleblower protections under 

applicable Federal and State fraud and abuse laws and the Qualified Vendor’s 

policies and procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, waste and abuse, and 

http://www.uscis.gov/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-45                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

the rights of employees to be protected as whistleblowers.  All training must be 

conducted in such a manner that can be verified by the Division. 

 

6.8.2.15 The Qualified Vendor warrants compliance with all Federal immigration laws and 

regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with A.R.S. § 23-

214, subsection A.  (That subsection reads:  “After December 31, 2007, every 

employer, after hiring an employee, shall verify the employment eligibility of the 

employee through the E-Verify program.”)  A breach of a warrant regarding 

compliance with immigration laws and regulations shall be deemed a material 

breach of the Agreement and the Qualified Vendor may be subject to penalties up 

to and including termination of the Agreement.  Failure to comply with a State 

audit process to randomly verify the employment records of Qualified Vendors 

and subcontractors shall be deemed a material breach of the contract and the 

Qualified Vendor may be subject to penalties up to and including termination of 

the Agreement.  The Department retains the legal right to inspect the papers of 

any employee who works on the Agreement to ensure that the Qualified Vendor or 

subcontractor is complying with the warranty under this paragraph. 

 

6.8.2.16 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with all applicable state and federal statutes 

and regulations.  This shall include A.R.S. § 23-722.01 (as may be amended) 

relating to new hire reporting, A.R.S. § 23-722.02 (as may be amended) relating to 

wage assignment orders to provide child support, and A.R.S. § 25-535 (as may be 

amended) relating to administrative or court-ordered health insurance coverage for 

children. 

 

6.8.3 Advance Directives.  

 

 As appropriate, the Qualified Vendor shall comply with Federal and State law on 

advance directives for adult members.  Requirements include:  

 

6.8.3.1 Maintaining written policies for adult individuals receiving care through the 

Qualified Vendor regarding the member’s right to make decisions about medical 

care, including the right to accept or refuse medical care and the right to execute 

an advance directive.  If the Qualified Vendor has a conscientious objection to 

carrying out an advance directive, it must be explained in policies.  [A Qualified 

Vendor is not prohibited from making objection when made pursuant to A.R.S. § 

36-3205(C)(1).] 

 

6.8.3.2 Providing written information to adult members regarding a member’s right under 

State law to make decisions regarding medical care and the Qualified Vendor’s 

written policies concerning advance directives (including any conscientious 

objections). 

 

6.8.3.3 Documenting in the member’s medical record as to whether the adult member has 

been provided the information and whether an advance directive has been created. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-46                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.8.3.4 Not discriminating against a member because of his or her decision to execute or 

not execute an advance directive, and not making it a condition for the provision 

of care. 

 

6.8.3.5 Provide education for staff on issues concerning advance directives including 

notification of direct care providers of services of any advanced directives 

executed by members to whom they are assigned to provide care. 

 

6.8.4 Advising or Advocating on Behalf of a Member.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements under 42 C.F.R. § 

438.102 and the intergovernmental Agreement between the Division and 

AHCCCS.  The Division may not prohibit, or otherwise restrict, a provider acting 

within the lawful scope of practice, from advising or advocating on behalf of a 

member who is authorized to receive services from the provider for the following: 

•  The member’s health status, medical care, or treatment options including any 

alternative treatment that may be self-administered.  

•  Any information the member needs in order to decide among all relevant 

treatment options.  

•  The risks, benefits, and consequences of treatment or no treatment.  

•  The member’s right to participate in decisions regarding his or her health care, 

including the right to refuse treatment, and to express preferences about future 

treatment decisions. 

 

6.8.4.1 A Qualified Vendor may provide a member with factual information, but is 

prohibited from recommending or steering a member in the member’s selection of 

a Qualified Vendor agency or Independent Provider. 

 

6.8.5 Limited English Proficiency. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall ensure that all services provided are culturally 

relevant and linguistically appropriate to the population to be served following 

Department Policy, Limited English Proficiency, DES 1-01-34 and any 

subsequent revisions. 

 

6.8.6 Service Process for Wards of the State.  

 

 In the event that an individual calls or appears at a physical location of the 

Qualified Vendor seeking to render service of process (summons and complaint, 

petition or subpoena, etc.) upon a minor who is in the physical custody of the 

Qualified Vendor but is a ward of the State of Arizona, Department of Economic 

Security, Qualified Vendor agrees not to accept service of that/those document(s) 

and to refer the individual to the child’s Support Coordinator.  If, by error, 

Qualified Vendor or its agent accepts any service of process, a copy shall 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-47                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

immediately be forwarded to the child’s Support Coordinator and shall also 

contain a transmittal memorandum that indicates the date the legal document was 

received, the person receiving it and the place of service, as well as the child to 

whom it refers.  

 

6.8.7 Suspension or Debarment.   

 

6.8.7.1 The State may, by written notice to the Qualified Vendor, immediately terminate 

this Agreement if the State determines that the Qualified Vendor has been 

debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any 

public procurement activity, including but not limited to, being disapproved as a 

subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.  This 

prohibition extends to any entity which employs, consults, subcontracts with or 

otherwise reimburses for services any person substantially involved in the 

management of another entity which is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded 

from Federal procurement activity. Submittal of an offer or execution of an 

Agreement shall attest that the Qualified Vendor is not currently suspended or 

debarred.  If the Qualified Vendor becomes suspended or debarred, the Qualified 

Vendor shall immediately notify the State.    

 

6.8.7.2 The Qualified Vendor shall not be debarred, suspended, or otherwise lawfully 

prohibited from participating in any public procurement activity.   

 

6.8.7.3 The Qualified Vendor shall not employ, consult, subcontract or otherwise 

reimburse for services any person or entity that is debarred, suspended or 

otherwise excluded from public procurement activity.  This prohibition extends to 

any person or entity that employs, consults, subcontracts with or otherwise 

reimburses for services any person or entity substantially involved in the 

management of another entity that is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded 

from public procurement activity. 

 

6.8.7.4 The Qualified Vendor shall not retain as a director, officer, partner or owner of 

five (5) percent or more of the Qualified Vendor, any person, or affiliate of such a 

person, who is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded from public 

procurement activity.  

 

6.8.8 Survival of Rights and Obligations after Agreement Expiration or Termination. 

 

 All representations and warranties made by the Qualified Vendor under this 

Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination hereof.  In addition, the 

parties hereto acknowledge that pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-510 (as may be amended) 

except as provided in A.R.S. § 12-529 (as may be amended), the State is not 

subject to or barred by any limitations of actions prescribed in A.R.S., Title 12, 

Chapter 5 (as may be amended). 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-48                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.8.9 Certification of Compliance – Anti-Kickback. 

 

 By signing this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor certifies that it has not engaged 

in any violation of the Medicare Anti-Kickback statute (42 U.S.C. §§ 1320a-7b) 

or the “Stark I” and “Stark II” laws governing related-entity referrals (P.L. 101-

239 and P.L. 101-432) and compensation there from. 

 

6.8.10 Warranty of Services. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor, by execution of this Agreement, warrants that it has the 

ability, authority, skill, expertise, and capacity to perform the services specified in 

the Agreement. 

 

6.8.11 Certification of Truthfulness of Representation. 

 

 By signing this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor certifies the following: 

 

6.8.11.1 That all representations set forth herein are true to the best of its knowledge; and 

 

6.8.11.2 That it will maintain all representations, comply with all covenants, and perform 

all duties throughout the term of the Agreement.  

 

6.9                  State’s Contractual Remedies 

 

6.9.1 Right to Assurance.  

 

 The Procurement Officer may, at any time, demand in writing that the Qualified 

Vendor give a written assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Qualified 

Vendor to provide written assurance within the number of days specified in the 

demand may, at the State’s option, be the basis for terminating the Agreement 

under these Terms and Conditions or other rights and remedies available by law or 

provided by the Agreement.  If the Qualified Vendor, at any time believes that it 

may potentially no longer be able to perform under this Agreement in the 

immediate future or at any time up to six (6) months into the future, the Qualified 

Vendor shall provide written notice to the Division informing the Division of the 

Qualified Vendor’s potential inability to perform under this Agreement along with 

a detailed explanation as to why the Qualified Vendor believes it may not be able 

to complete performance. 

 

6.9.2 Stop Work Order.  

 

6.9.2.1 The State may, at any time, by written order to the Qualified Vendor, require the 

Qualified Vendor to stop all or any part of the work called for by this Agreement 

for a period(s) of days indicated by the State after the order is delivered to the 

Qualified Vendor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree.  The 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-49                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued under this clause.  

Upon receipt of the order, the Qualified Vendor shall immediately comply with its 

terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable 

to the work covered by the order during the period of work stoppage. 

 

6.9.2.2 If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period of the order 

or any extension expires, the Qualified Vendor shall resume work.  The 

Procurement Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the authorization 

schedule or Agreement price, or both, and the Agreement shall be amended in 

writing accordingly. 

 

6.9.3 Non-Exclusive Remedies.  

 

 The rights and the remedies of the State set out in this Agreement are not 

exclusive. 

 

6.9.4 Nonconforming Tender.  

 

 Reports or other documents supplied under this Agreement shall fully comply 

with the Agreement and all applicable law.  The delivery of reports or other 

documents or a portion of the reports or other documents in an installment that do 

not fully comply with the Agreement and all applicable law constitutes a breach of 

Agreement.  On delivery of nonconforming reports or other documents, the State 

may terminate the Agreement for default as defined in Section 6.10.6, 

Termination for Default, exercise any of its rights and remedies under the 

Uniform Commercial Code, or pursue any other right or remedy available to it. 

 

6.9.5 Right of Offset.  

 

 The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the Qualified Vendor, 

any expenses or costs incurred by the State, or damages assessed by the State 

concerning the Qualified Vendor’s non-conforming performance or failure to 

perform the Agreement, including expenses, costs and damages described in the 

Agreement Terms and Conditions. 

 

6.9.6 Provisions for Default.  

 

6.9.6.1 In addition to any other remedies available to the Division, if the Qualified 

Vendor fails to comply with any term of the Agreement, the Division may take 

one (1) or more of the following actions:  

 

6.9.6.1.1 Withhold payment, in whole or in part;  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-50                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.9.6.1.2 Suspend enrollment, which includes (i) suspending new members from 

enrollment in any services provided by the Qualified Vendor, and (ii) suspending 

any new services for members currently served by the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.9.6.1.3 Suspend the Agreement, in whole or in part, by (i) suspending the authority to 

request addition of new services to the Agreement; (ii) suspending the authority to 

request modification to current services, (iii) deleting the Qualified Vendor from 

the Qualified Vendor List; or (iv) enrolling members with another provider. 

 

6.10 Agreement Termination  

 

6.10.1 Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  

 

 Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel this Agreement within three (3) 

years after Agreement execution without penalty or further obligation if any 

person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or 

creating the Agreement on behalf of the State is or becomes at any time while the 

Agreement or an extension of the Agreement is in effect an employee of or a 

consultant to any other party to this Agreement with respect to the subject matter 

of the Agreement.  The cancellation shall be effective when the Qualified Vendor 

receives written notice of the cancellation unless the notice specifies a later time.  

If the Qualified Vendor is a political subdivision of the State, it may also cancel 

this Agreement as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 

6.10.2 Gratuities.  

 

 The State may, by written notice, terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, if 

the State determines that employment or a gratuity was offered or made by the 

Qualified Vendor or a representative of the Qualified Vendor to any officer or 

employee of the State for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the 

procurement or securing the Agreement, an amendment to the Agreement, or 

favorable treatment concerning the Agreement, including the making of any 

determination or decision about Agreement performance. The State, in addition to 

any other rights or remedies, shall be entitled to recover exemplary damages in the 

amount of three (3) times the value of the gratuity offered by the Qualified 

Vendor. 

 

6.10.3 Termination for Convenience.  

 

 The State reserves the right, with written notice, to terminate the Agreement, in 

whole or in part at any time, when in the best interests of the State without penalty 

or recourse.  Upon receipt of the written notice, the Qualified Vendor shall 

immediately stop all work, as directed in the notice, notify all subcontractors of 

the effective date of the termination and minimize all further costs to the State.  In 

the event of termination under this paragraph, all documents, data and reports 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-51                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

prepared by the Qualified Vendor under the Agreement shall become the property 

of and be delivered to the State.  The Qualified Vendor shall be entitled to receive 

just and equitable compensation for work in progress, work completed and 

materials accepted before the effective date of the termination.  

 

6.10.4 Termination upon Request of the Qualified Vendor.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor may request termination of the Agreement, in whole or in 

part, at any time.  The Qualified Vendor shall not terminate performance of this 

Agreement without the prior written consent of the Division.  The Qualified 

Vendor shall provide at least sixty (60) days written notice to the Division setting 

forth the reasons for requesting termination.  Upon determination that termination 

is appropriate, the Division shall provide written notice of acceptance of such 

termination and the termination date.  Upon termination, all goods, materials, 

documents, data and reports prepared by the Qualified Vendor under the 

Agreement shall become the property of and be delivered to the State on demand.  

The State may, upon termination, procure, on terms and in the manner that it 

deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under this Agreement.  

The Qualified Vendor shall be liable to the State for any excess costs incurred by 

the State in procuring materials or services in substitution for those due from the 

Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.10.5 Termination for Default.   

 

6.10.5.1 In addition to the rights reserved in the Agreement, the State may terminate the 

Agreement, in whole or in part, due to the failure of the Qualified Vendor to 

comply with any term or condition of the Agreement, to acquire and maintain all 

required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory 

progress in performing the Agreement.  The Procurement Officer shall provide 

written notice of the termination and the reasons for it to the Qualified Vendor.  

The Department may immediately terminate this Agreement if the Department 

determines that the health or welfare or safety of service recipients is endangered. 

 

6.10.5.2 The State reserves the right to terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part, when 

a Qualified Vendor no longer meets the criteria defined in the RFQVA; for non-

compliance with the Agreement requirements; or for failure to maintain a valid 

license, AHCCCS registration or Division certification, as appropriate.  The 

Division shall provide written notice of the termination and the reasons for it to 

the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.10.5.3 Upon termination under this section, all goods, materials, documents, data and 

reports prepared by the Qualified Vendor under the Agreement shall become the 

property of and be delivered to the State on demand. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-52                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.10.5.4 The State may, upon termination of this Agreement, procure, on terms and in the 

manner that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under this 

Agreement.  The Qualified Vendor shall be liable to the State for any excess costs 

incurred by the State in procuring materials or services in substitution for those 

due from the Qualified Vendor unless the Agreement is terminated solely for the 

convenience of the State. 

 

6.10.5.5 This Agreement may immediately be terminated if the Department determines that 

the health or welfare or safety of members is endangered.  

 

6.10.6 Continuation of Performance through Termination.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall continue to perform, in accordance with the 

requirements of the Agreement, up to or beyond the date of termination, in whole 

or in part, as directed in the termination notice or as provided in Section 6.10.7.3 

below. 

 

6.10.7 Termination for Any Reason.  

 

6.10.7.1 In the event of termination or suspension of the Agreement by the Department, in 

whole or in part, such termination or suspension shall not affect the obligation of 

the Qualified Vendor to indemnify the Department and the State for any claim by 

any other party against the Department and/or the State arising from the Qualified 

Vendor’s performance of this Agreement and for which the Qualified Vendor 

would otherwise be liable under this Agreement.  To the extent such 

indemnification is excluded by A.R.S. § 41-621 et seq. or an obligation is 

unauthorized under A.R.S. § 35-154 (as may be amended), the provisions of this 

paragraph shall not apply.  

 

6.10.7.2 In the event of early termination, any funds advanced to the Qualified Vendor 

shall be returned to the Department within ten (10) days after the date of 

termination or upon receipt of notice of termination of the Agreement, whichever 

is earlier.  

 

6.10.7.3 In the event the Agreement is terminated, in whole or in part, with or without 

cause, or expires, the Qualified Vendor shall assist the Division in the transition of 

members to other Qualified Vendors in accordance with applicable rules and 

policies. Such assistance and coordination shall include but shall not be limited to: 

 

6.10.7.3.1 Forwarding program and other records as may be necessary to assure the 

smoothest possible transition and continuity of services.  The cost of reproducing 

and forwarding such records shall be borne by the Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.10.7.3.2 Notifying of subcontractors and members.   

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-53                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.10.7.3.3 Facilitating and scheduling medically necessary appointments for care and 

services. 

 

6.10.7.3.4 Providing all reports set forth in this Agreement. 

 

6.10.7.3.5 Making provisions for continuing all management/administrative services until 

the transition of members is completed and all other requirements of this 

Agreement are satisfied. 

 

6.10.7.3.6 If required by the Division, extending performance until suitable arrangements are 

made by the Division for a replacement Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.10.7.3.7 If required by the Division, at the Qualified Vendor’s own expense, assisting in 

the training of personnel. 

 

6.10.7.3.8 Paying all outstanding obligations for care rendered to members. 

 

6.10.7.3.9 Providing the following financial reports to the Division until the Division is 

satisfied that the Qualified Vendor has paid all such obligations: (a) a monthly 

claims aging report by provider/creditor including Incurred But Not Reported 

(IBNR) amounts; (b) a monthly summary of cash disbursements; and (c) copies of 

all bank statements received by the Qualified Vendor in the preceding month for 

Qualified Vendor’s bank accounts.  All reports in this section shall be due on the 

fifteenth (15
th

) day of each succeeding month for the prior month.    

 

6.10.7.4 In the event the Agreement is terminated in part, the Qualified Vendor shall 

continue the performance of the Agreement to the extent not terminated.  

 

6.10.8 Voidability of Agreement.   

 

This Agreement is voidable and may be immediately terminated by the 

Department upon the Qualified Vendor becoming insolvent or filing proceedings 

in bankruptcy or reorganization, or upon assignment or delegation of the 

Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.   

 

 6.11                Agreement Claims and Controversies 
 

 Other than protests and claims covered by A.A.C. R6-6-2115 and R6-6-2116, any 

other claims or controversies under this Agreement shall be resolved according to 

A.A.C. R6-6-2117.  

 

6.12 Contingency Planning 

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall have a contingency plan that addresses the 

requirements of (1) a Business Continuity Plan (“BCP”), and (2) a Pandemic 

Performance Plan, as stipulated in Section 6.12.1 and 6.12.2.  The Contingency 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-54                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

Plan is subject to the approval of the Division.  The Qualified Vendor shall submit 

any amendment to the plan to the Division within ten (10) business days.  The 

State may require a copy of the plan at any time prior to or post award of an 

Agreement. 

 

6.12.1 Business Continuity. 

 

6.12.1.1 Each Qualified Vendor shall establish a written BCP that illustrates how the 

Qualified Vendor shall provide contracted service(s) pursuant to the Agreement in 

the event of a natural or man-made disaster (e.g., earthquake, flood, catastrophic 

accident, fire, explosion, gas leak) or any other emergency event which may 

disrupt routine service delivery (e.g., power outage, disruption of essential 

utilities, evacuation by authorities).  The BCP shall, at a minimum, include the 

following: 

a.   Internal emergency notification call-trees, organizational chart, and orders of 

succession. 

b.   Checklists to contact and coordinate with police, fire, medical, and other 

community emergency responders. 

c.   The Qualified Vendor’s emergency points of contact(s) information, 

communication and reporting protocols with the Division. 

d.   Plans to respond, restore, and resume business operations as soon as practical 

and also protecting the life, health, and safety of members and the Qualified 

Vendor’s staff.   

 

6.12.1.2          In addition, the Qualified Vendor shall have contingencies for: 

a. The loss of facilities/sites. 

b. Electronic/telephone failure at primary place of business. 

c. Loss of computer systems/records. 

d. A facility evacuation plan that assures the successful evacuation of members 

and staff. 

e. A self-sheltering (i.e., shelter in place) plan which maintains adequate staffing 

levels, food, water, prescribed medications and equipment that meet the needs 

of members for the duration of the emergency/disaster event. 

 

6.12.1.3 The BCP shall be specific for each of its Arizona facilities and reference 

community emergency resources as described in Section 6.12.1.1.  

 

6.12.1.4 The Qualified Vendor shall provide annual BCP training for all staff members. 

 

6.12.1.5 The Qualified Vendor shall conduct BCP exercises, annually. 

 

6.12.1.6       The Qualified Vendor shall review its BCP(s) as needed, amend the plan as 

required, and train all staff members on any changes to the plan.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-55                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.12.1.7 In the event of a local disaster declaration, an emergency declared by the 

Governor of Arizona, the President of the United States, or the World Health 

Organization which makes the performance of any term of this Agreement 

impossible or impracticable, the Division shall have the authority to: 

a. Temporarily void the Agreement(s), in whole or in part, if the Qualified 

Vendor cannot perform to the standards agreed upon in the initial terms. 

b. Implement emergency procurements as authorized by the Director of the 

Arizona Department of Administration pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-2537 of the 

Arizona Procurement Code.  

c. Reinstate the voided Agreement(s) if the Qualified Vendor can demonstrate 

ability to resume performance of the Agreement(s).  

 

6.12.1.8        As a result of the provisions contained in Section 6.12.1.7 and subsections (a), (b), 

or (c) the Division shall not incur any liability with a Qualified Vendor during a 

disaster or emergency event. 

 

6.12.2 Pandemic Contractual Performance. 

 

6.12.2.1      The State shall require a written Pandemic Performance Plan that illustrates how 

the Qualified Vendor shall perform up to the Agreement standards in the event of 

a pandemic (e.g., influenza).  At a minimum, the Pandemic Performance Plan 

shall include: 

a. Key succession and performance planning if there is a sudden significant 

decrease in Qualified Vendor’s workforce. 

b. Alternative methods to ensure there are services or products in the supply 

chain. 

c. An up to date list of company contacts and organizational chart. 

 

6.12.2.2       The Qualified Vendor shall provide annual training on the Pandemic Performance 

Plan for all staff members. 

 

6.12.2.3 The Qualified Vendor shall review its Pandemic Performance Plan as needed, 

amend the plan as required, and train all staff members on any changes to the 

plan. 

     

6.12.2.4 In the event of a pandemic, as declared by the Governor of Arizona, U.S. 

Government or the World Health Organization, which makes performance of any 

term under this Agreement impossible or impracticable, the State shall have the 

following rights: 

a.   After the official declaration of a pandemic, the State may temporally void the 

Agreement(s) in whole or specific sections if the Qualifies Vendor cannot 

perform to the standards agreed upon.  

b.  The State shall not incur any liability if a pandemic is declared and emergency 

procurements are authorized by the Director of the Arizona Department of 

Administration per A.R.S. § 41-2537 of the Arizona Procurement Code.  



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-56                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

c.  Once the pandemic is officially declared over and/or the Qualified Vendor can 

demonstrate the ability to perform, the State, at its sole discretion may 

reinstate the temporarily voided Agreement(s). 

 

6.13                Certifications 

 

6.13.1              Lobbying. 

 

        The Qualified Vendor shall submit the Certification Regarding Lobbying form, 

and by so doing, agrees to compliance with 49 C.F.R. Part 20.  The Certification 

Regarding Lobbying form may be found in Section 9 as “Attachment C”. 

 

6.13.2             Suspension or Debarment. 

 

          In addition to the terms and conditions in Section 6, the Qualified Vendor shall 

submit the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Voluntary 

Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions form, which may be found in Section 

9 as “Attachment D”. 

 

6.13.3             Inclusive Qualified Vendor. 

 

        The Qualified Vendor is encouraged to make every effort to utilize subcontractors 

that are small, women-owned and/or minority owned business enterprises.  This 

could include subcontractors for a percentage of the administrative or direct 

service being proposed.  The Qualified Vendor who is committing a portion of its 

work to such subcontractors shall do so by identifying the type of service and 

work to be performed by providing detail concerning the Qualified Vendor’s 

utilization of small, women-owned and/or minority business enterprises.  

Emphasis should be placed on specific areas that are subcontracted and percentage 

of Agreement utilization and how this effort will be administered and managed, 

including reporting requirements. 

 

 

 

6.13.4 Data Sharing. 

 

 When determined by the Department that sharing of confidential data will occur 

with the Qualified Vendor, the Qualified Vendor shall complete the ADES Data 

Sharing Request Agreement and submit the completed Agreement to the DES 

Program Designated Staff prior to any work commencing or data shared.  A 

separate Data Sharing Request Agreement shall be required between the Qualified 

Vendor and each DES Program sharing confidential data.   The Data Sharing 

Request Agreement form may be found in Section 9 as “Attachment E”. 

 



   
ARF-5072   Consent Agenda Item     5. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board Appointments

Background Information
A.R.S. §3-124-County agricultural extension board; members;
appointment; term; qualifications; office space states, “The board of
supervisors shall appoint 7 persons, who are residents of the county,
to a county agricultural extension board, 4 of whom have as their
principal business the production of agricultural commodities, and the
other 3 of whom shall be representative of organizations or persons
who utilize the county agricultural extension services.”

Each member shall be appointed for a term of two years.

At the Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board meeting of June
5, 2018, it was announced that Board members Fred Jimenez and Twila
Cassadore agreed to serve another two-year term of office retroactive
from January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2019.  At that meeting,
David Cook, Diana Hemovich and Albert Hunt submitted their
resignations due to time constraints and new priorities.  Since the Board
of Supervisors will not need to take any action to reappoint Mr. Cook, Ms.
Hemovich and Mr. Hunt for the two-year term that began on January 1,
2018, there are currently 3 vacancies.  The following individuals have
agreed to serve a two-year term of office that began on January 1, 2018,
through December 31, 2019.  Their term will begin on the day they are
appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  

Ben Dalmolin and Dorine Prine will represent "principal business" and
Mike Henderson will represent "utilizes County agriculture extension
services."  If approved by the Board of Supervisors, their terms of office
will begin on September 11, 2018, through December 31, 2019.

Evaluation



It would be beneficial to the County to retroactively reappoint Mr. Jimenez
and Ms. Cassadore for another two-year term of office which began on
January 1, 2018, and ends on December 31, 2019.  It would also be
beneficial to appoint Mr. Dalmolin, Ms. Prine and Mr. Henderson to the
Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board for a term beginning
on September 11, 2018, through December 31, 2019.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to consider re-appointing Fred Jiminez
and Twila Cassadore for another two-year term, and appointing Ben
Dalmolin, Dorine Prine and Mike Henderson for an initial term on
the Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board of Directors.

Recommendation
The Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board recommends
that the Board of Supervisors appoint the individuals as listed above.

Suggested Motion
Approval to reappoint or appoint the following individuals to the Gila
County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board of Directors:  Fred Jimenez
and Twila Cassador-reappointment for the term that began on January 1,
2018, through December 31, 2019; and Ben Dalmolin, Dorine Prine and
Mike Henderson-appointment to fill 3 vacancies for the term that ends
on December 31, 2019.

Attachments
Cooperative Ext. Adv. Board List



 

GILA COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION ADVISORY BOARD 

 (Proposed to BOS on 9-11-18) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Clark Richins  
(Principal Business) 

B C (02/21/17) 16 years 01/01/17-12/31/18 01/01/17-12/31/18 

Fred Jimenez (Utilizes County 
Ag. Extension Services) 

B C (09/11/18) 
 

5 years, 10 months 01/01/18-12/31/19 01/01/18-12/31/19 
 

Ben Dalmolin 
(Principal Business) 

B A (09/11/18) - 09/11/18-12/31/19 01/01/18-12/31/19 

Mike Burket  
(Youth Programs - 4-H) 

B C (02/21/17) 1 year, 7 months 01/01/17-12/31/18 01/01/17-12/31/18 

Dorine Prine  
(Principal Business) 

B A (09/11/18) - 09/11/18-12/31/19 01/01/18-12/31/19 

Mike Henderson (Utilizes 
County Ag. Extension 
Services) 

B A (09/11/18) 
 

- 09/11/18-12/31/19 01/01/18-12/31/19 

Twila Cassadore  
(Principal Business) 

B C (09/11/18) 1 year, 2 months 01/01/18-12/31/19 01/01/18-12/31/19 

 
1  Appointment Information: 

A. A.R.S. §3-124-County agricultural extension board; members; appointment; term; qualifications; office space states, “The board of supervisors shall appoint 7 persons, who are residents of 
the county, to a county agricultural extension board, 4 of whom have as their principal business the production of agricultural commodities, and the other 3 of whom shall be 
representative of organizations or persons who utilize the county agricultural extension services.” 

B. Each member shall be appointed for a term of 2 years. 
C. The University of Arizona, College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, administers all cooperative extension programs throughout the state.   

 
2  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



   
ARF-5080   Consent Agenda Item     5. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Mogollon Valley Pit Program Special Event Liquor License Application
for September 14 and 15, 2018.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a
special event for up to 10 days per year. The Arizona Department of
Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) approves all liquor-related
applications; however, part of the DLLC's process requires that the local
governing body review the application and submit a recommendation for
approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment located within
the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the application and
has determined that it has been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This non-profit organization has properly completed the application and if
the Board of Supervisors approves the application, the Mogollon Valley Pit
Program will have used 2 days of the allowable 10 days to serve liquor at
a special event in 2018. 

Recommendation
The Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
application.  Upon approval, the applicant has the responsibility to
submit the application to the DLLC for its final approval.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by the
Mogollon Valley Pit Program for a fundraising event to be held
on September 14-15, 2018, at the Mary Ellen Randall Horse Arena in Pine.



Attachments
Mogollon Valley Pit Program - Application













   
ARF-5076   Consent Agenda Item     5. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Reporting
Period:

July 2018

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for July 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgement of the July 2018 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
July 2018 reports













   
ARF-5065   Consent Agenda Item     5. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office monthly report for July 2018

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office monthly report for July 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2018 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
July





















   
ARF-5039   Consent Agenda Item     5. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Reporting
Period:

July 2018

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Esther Canez, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for July 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2018 monthly activity report submitted by
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  

Attachments
Clerk's Report July 2018



IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF GILA 

CLERK'S REPORT 

FOR 

JULY 2018 



TO THE HONORABLE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

I herewith present the annexed report as and for a true and correct account 
of all fees earned and collected by me as Clerk of the Superior Court. 

�� 
ANITA ESCOBEDO 
Clerk of the Superior Court 
of Gila County, Arizona 















   
ARF-5049   Consent Agenda Item     5. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
July 2018

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2018

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2018 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office

Attachments
July 2018

























   
ARF-5059   Consent Agenda Item     5. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
July 2018

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michael Sellars, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the July 2018 Monthly Activity Report submitted by
the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
July 2018

































   
ARF-5079   Consent Agenda Item     5. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Reporting
Period:

August 20, 2018, and August 28, 2018, Meeting Notes

Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
August 20, 2018, and August 28, 2018, Board of Supervisors' Meeting
Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the August 20, 2018, and August 28, 2018, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
08-20-18 Meeting Notes
08-28-18 Meeting Notes



Page 1 of 9 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 20, 2018 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY                                              MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE   By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                            Clerk 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                               Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tim R. Humphrey; Chairman; Woody Cline, Vice-Chairman; 
Tommie C. Martin, Member (via ITV); Jacque Sanders, Deputy County 

Manager, District Librarian; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, 
Civil Bureau Chief; Charles Shire, Deputy Gila County Attorney (via ITV); 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk of 

the Board. 
 
ABSENT:  W. James Menlove, County Manager 

 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 

 
Chairman Humphrey called the regular session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date 
in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Michael O’Driscoll led the Pledge of 

Allegiance and Pastor Carl Peterson of the United Methodist Church in Payson 
delivered the invocation. 
 

Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 

A.  Presentation of the Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality's Voluntary Environmental Stewardship Program recognizing Gila 
County for the outstanding environmental compliance history of 

Buckhead Mesa Landfill in Payson.   
 

Byron James, Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) 
Community Liaison for Gila County, advised that, on behalf of the ADEQ, he 
was pleased to present a Certificate of Recognition to Gila County and to 

welcome the County to the Voluntary Environmental Stewardship Program 
(Program).  The Program was established by the legislature and signed into law 
in 2012.  It provides incentives and recognition for organizations to go above 

and beyond environmental law requirements.  Mr. James explained that this 
Program contains various levels of recognition; today’s recognition is at the 



Page 2 of 9 

 

bronze level and it goes up to the platinum level.  He encouraged the County to 
consider applying for higher levels of recognition in the Program.  The 

Buckhead Mesa Landfill has not had any state environmental violations for the 
past 3 years, which shows Gila County’s commitment to assuring 

environmental compliance. Mr. James read aloud the language contained on 
the certificate and it was then presented to Sharon Winters, Recycling and 
Landfill Manager, and Mark Gann, Operations Supervisor at Buckhead Mesa 

Landfill. 
 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A.  Convene a public hearing to hear citizens who may wish to comment 

on the Gila County Subdivision Regulations; and adopt Resolution No. 18-
08-04, which allows the adoption of the Gila County Subdivision 
Regulations (by reference) and repeals previously adopted Gila County 

Subdivision Regulations No. 81502; related Resolutions Nos. 02-09-09, 09-
03-09 and 09-05-03; and all subsequent amendments to the Subdivision 

Regulations.   
 
Scott Buzan, Community Development Division Director, explained that 

subdivision regulations are instruction manuals for developing subdivisions.  
After a 10-year hiatus, Mr. Buzan advised that the County is seeing an interest 
in developing subdivisions in Gila County.  He reviewed two major changes that 

are being made to the Gila County Subdivision Regulations which are: 1) the 
ability to allow 1 access point for a subdivision with fewer than 25 lots; and 2) 

the elimination of the small division section in the Regulations.  Mr. Buzan 
commented that the County mirrors the International Fire Code, which states 
fewer than 30 lots; however, the County decided to be less conservative by 

allowing fewer than 25 lots.  He also added that the County would prefer 2 
access points to a subdivision but has decided to allow just 1.  Supervisor 
Martin commented that the County seeks 2 access points and she is glad that 

a developer will not be penalized if they can only provide 1 access point.  
Chairman Humphrey opened the public hearing; there were no comments, so 

he closed the public hearing and asked for a Board motion.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution No. 18-08-04.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 

on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

B.  Convene a hearing for a liquor license application (County No. LL-18-
03) submitted by James Aldo Bruzzi for a new Series 12 Restaurant 
License at the Bruzzi Vineyard, 47209 N. Highway 288, Young; and issue a 

recommendation to the State Liquor Board on whether or not the State 
Liquor Board should grant or deny the license.  
 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that the purpose of this hearing 
is to hear from those individuals who live within a one-mile radius of the 



Page 3 of 9 

 

proposed location for the liquor license.  She reviewed the County’s internal 
review process and advised there are no issues with the applicant.  Ms. 

Sheppard stated that she has not received written objections from anyone 
living within a one-mile radius of the proposed business and she asked the 

Chairman to proceed with the public hearing.  Chairman Humphrey opened 
the public hearing and there being no comments, he closed the public hearing 
and asked for a Board motion. Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded 

by Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously voted to recommend that the 
State Liquor Board approve this license.   
 

Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary property 
tax rates for 2018 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and 
convey tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer; and adopt 

Resolution No. 18-08-01 providing for the collection of taxes for all 
jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for FY 2019.   

 
Mary Springer, Finance Director, advised that the resolution being presented 
for Board adoption has two attachments; Schedule A outlines the tax levies and 

tax rates for all taxing jurisdictions in Gila County to include cities, towns, Gila 
County Provisional Community College District and all special taxing districts, 
and Schedule B outlines the tax levies and tax rates for the school districts.  

She advised that today is the last day allowed per statute to set primary and 
secondary property tax rates for the current fiscal year.  Upon motion by 

Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution No. 18-08-01.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize joining pending Class 
Action Lawsuit, Kane County, Utah v. United States, to recover underpaid 

2015-2017 PILT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) payments and to submit a 
Class Action Opt-In Notice.   

 
Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian, advised that the 
Court of Federal Claims, in the case of Kane County, Utah v. United States, 

Case Nos. 17-739C and 17-1991C, has directed sending an opt-in notice to a 
Class made up of “all units of general local government,” as defined in 31 U. S. 

C. § 6901(2), that received payment under 31 U. S. C. § 6902(a) of the PILT Act 
in fiscal years 2015, 2016, and or 2017.  Gila County was underpaid $91,000 
in PILT funding.  If the Board authorizes joining this lawsuit, Ms. Sanders 

advised that one-third of the money received will go toward attorney’s fees.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 

Board unanimously authorized joining pending Class Action Lawsuit, Kane 
County, Utah v. United States, to recover underpaid 2015-2017 PILT payments 

and to submit a Class Action Opt-In Notice.   



Page 4 of 9 

 

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-08-06; and 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the U.S. Department of Justice 
Certification and Assurances of which the Resolution and Certification 

and Assurances are a component of the Gila County Drug, Gang, and 
Violent Crimes Control Grant Agreement No. DC-19-004.  
 

Travis Baxley, Sheriff’s Office Task Force Commander, advised that on July 10, 
2018, the Board of Supervisors approved Grant Agreement No. DC-19-004.  
New grant requirements were put in place in FY 2019 whereby a resolution 

needs to be adopted by the Board of Supervisors as well as the U.S. 
Department of Justice Certification and Assurances need to be signed by the 

Board Chairman.  Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 18-08-06 and 
authorized the Chairman's signature on the U.S. Department of Justice 

Certification and Assurances of which the Resolution and Certification and 
Assurances are a component of the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent 

Crimes Control Grant Agreement No. DC-19-004.  (A copy of the Resolution 
is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-08-05 
authorizing the Gila County Community Services Division, Housing 
Services, to submit an application to the Arizona Department of Housing 

for HOME Investment Partnership Program funds and State Housing Fund 
(SHF) funds in the amount of $242,000 to be utilized for housing 

rehabilitation for fiscal year 2018-2019.  
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, advised that if Gila 

County is awarded the requested grant funds, the money will be used to repair 
and or improve 4 owner-occupied dwelling units.  She added that there may be 
enough money to do 6 units.  Vice-Chairman Cline inquired if the units have 

been selected to which Ms. Buzan affirmed that 4 units have been chosen for 
repairs and or improvements.  She added that her staff does a limited title 

search and income verification on all applicants before selecting the units.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 18-08-05.  (A copy of the 

Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-08-02 for 
the installation of regulatory signage at the intersection of Bradshaw 
Drive and Old County Road in Gila County.  

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that the subject roads 
are in Pine.  Public Works has received numerous requests from homeowners 

in the area for the County to assess the signage at the intersection to 
determine if anything can be done to improve the safety of the intersection.  



Page 5 of 9 

 

The County Engineer and Engineering Department staff assessed the 
intersection for safety.  Due to limited sight visibility of the intersection, staff 

feels it is necessary to stop all traffic at the intersection.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously 

adopted Resolution No. 18-08-02.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   
 

F.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-08-03 for 
the installation of regulatory signage at the intersection of Randall Place 
and Pine Creek Drive in Gila County.   

 
Mr. Sanders advised that the subject roads are in Pine.  This intersection is 

near an elementary school and a public library and there is a lot of pedestrian 
traffic in the area.  The Sheriff’s Office requested that the Public Works Division 
assess the intersection because of safety concerns.  It was determined that an 

appropriate safety feature would be to stop all traffic at the intersection.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board 

unanimously adopted Resolution No. 18-08-03.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   
 

G.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bids No. 080118-Purchase Two New Belly Dump Trailers; 
and declare the existing trailers (C-48T and C-60T) as surplus property so 

they can be sold at an auction.  
 

Mr. Sanders advised that the belly dump trailers currently being used are worn 
out and unsafe, so this request is to purchase two new belly dump trailers and 
sell the older trailers at auction. Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded 

by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously authorized the advertisement 
of Invitation for Bids No. 080118. 
 

H.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bids No. 080218-1-Purchase One New 1 Ton, Full Size, 4x4 

Regular Cab, SRW, Cab and Chassis and Utility Service Body with 60" 
Cab to Axle Dimension for assignment to Engineering Services.  
 

Mr. Sanders stated that this Invitation for Bids is to purchase a sign truck that 
will be utilized in southern Gila County, the Copper Region.  Last year a similar 

vehicle was purchased that is used in northern Gila County, the Timber 
Region.  Mr. Sanders assured the Board that there wouldn’t be an increase in 
the number of fleet vehicles with this purchase.  Upon motion by Vice-

Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously 
authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 080218-1. 
 

I.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bids No. 080818-Gisela Road Improvements Project.  



Page 6 of 9 

 

 
Mr. Sanders stated that the County is continually trying to improve Gisela 

Roads.  The proposed project would improve approximately 0.63 miles of the 
existing roadway west of the summit area.  The proposed work consists of 

pulverizing the existing pavement surface and base material where applicable 
followed by the installation of new aggregate base material and asphaltic 
concrete pavement.  The construction of a new asphalt section on Gisela road 

will eliminate the current need for routine maintenance by County forces and 
will provide a safer roadway for the traveling public.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously  

authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 080818. 
 

J.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the 1GPA 
Cooperative in accordance with the 1GPA Contract No. 17-16P-05 with 
Sunland Asphalt to provide the necessary pavement preservation 

measures and pavement replacement in the amount of $368,266.92.   
 

Mr. Sanders advised that Stagecoach Trail in the Roosevelt Resort area and 
Roosevelt Estates Road in Roosevelt Estates need pavement replacement and or 
preservation.  Gila County is a member of the 1Government Alliance (1GPA) 

cooperative purchasing agreement.  He stated that if approved, Sunland 
Asphalt is ready to begin working on these road within the next 2-3 weeks.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 

Board unanimously approved the use of the 1GPA Cooperative in accordance 
with the 1GPA Contract No. 17-16P-05 with Sunland Asphalt to provide the 

necessary pavement preservation measures and pavement replacement in 
the amount of $368,266.92.  
 

Item 5 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 

Board of Supervisors.)  
 

A.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to the S.A.V.E. Cooperative IFB #M16-
13-21 with Sunland Asphalt for Copper Region pavement preservation to 
extend contract to November 15, 2018.    

 
B.  Approval to appoint Charles Proudfoot to fulfill Lynn Canning's 

unexpired term of office on the Community Action Program (CAP) 
Advisory Board through 12/31/19; acknowledge the re-elections of Annie 
Hinojos and Nolberto Waddell to serve on the CAP Advisory Board for the 

term 1/1/18 to 12/31/21; and acknowledge the re-appointments of Vicky 
Quesada and Michael Black to serve on the CAP Advisory Board for the 
term of 1/1/18 to 12/31/21.  

 



Page 7 of 9 

 

C.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
the Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction for a fundraising event to be held 

on September 14-15, 2018, at the Mary Ellen Randall Horse Arena in Pine.  
 

D.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
the Rim Country Friends of Tonto Natural Bridge State Park 
for a fundraising event to be held on September 15, 2018, at the Tonto 

Natural Bridge State Park located 10 miles north of Payson.  
 
E.  Approval of the July 10, 2018, July 24, 2018, and August 7, 2018, 

Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 

F.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager beginning 07-01-18 through 07-31-18.  

 

G.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting 
period of June 6, 2018, through July 31, 2018. 

 
Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 290486 through 290587, 290589 through 290633, 290635 through 

290903, 290905 through 291088, 291090 through 291116, 291118 through 

291177, 291179 through 291431, and 291433 through 291559, totaling 

$8,309,847.81 for the period 06-06-18 through 07-31-18.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants are permanently attached 

to these minutes.) 

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the 

Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5A-5G. 
 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 



Page 8 of 9 

 

matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 

 
There was no public comment. 

 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 
 

Each Board member and the County Manager presented a summary of current 
events.  

 
Chairman Humphrey read aloud agenda items 8A and 8B and he asked the 
Board for a motion to go into executive session to address these items.  Upon 

motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board 
voted unanimously to go into executive session to address agenda items 8A and 

8B.  Chairman Humphrey recessed the meeting at 10:55 a.m. and reconvened 
the meeting at 12:40 p.m. 
 

Item 8 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive 

session pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4) to discuss and 
consult with the attorneys and the Board of Supervisors regarding the 

2005 Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) that is between Gila County 
Community College District (Provisional); Gila County; and Graham 
County Community College District d/b/a Eastern Arizona College in 

order to receive legal advice, consider its position and instruct its 
attorneys regarding negotiations of the IGA and after the regular meeting 
has been reconvened, move to direct its attorneys to proceed as directed 

in the executive session regarding this agenda item.  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 
Board unanimously directed the County Attorney’s Office to proceed as 
discussed in the executive session. 

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider voting to go into executive 

session for the purpose of discussion or consultation with its attorney or 
attorneys in order to consider its position regarding the liquor license 
application of Robert K. Mitchell, Jr., agent for Below the Rim Meadery, 

the site development plan proposal for the winery, the lawsuit for 
injunctive relief, and the complaint for declaratory relief and instruct its 
attorneys regarding its position regarding pending or contemplated 

litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to avoid or 



Page 9 of 9 

 

resolve litigation and for discussion or consultation for legal advice with 
its attorneys under A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(3) and (4).   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the 

Board unanimously directed the County Attorney’s Office to proceed as 
discussed in the executive session. 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Humphrey adjourned the meeting 12:41 p.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 
 

 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 4 

 

  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 28, 2018 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Member        Clerk of the Board 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY  By: Marian Sheppard 
Chairman                                                            Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE                                                  Gila County Courthouse 

Vice-Chairman        Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman; Woody Cline, Vice-Chairman; 
Tommie C. Martin, Member (via ITV); W. James Menlove, County Manager; 

Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian; Jefferson R. Dalton, 
Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Charles Shire, Deputy 
County Attorney Senior-Civil; Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and 

Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk. 
  
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Chairman Humphrey called the work session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date 

in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room and he asked James Menlove to lead 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.  Presentation to the Board by Janeen Rohovit, Salt River 

Project Government Relations Representative for rural counties.  
 

Ms. Rohovit advised that Gila County has the largest piece of infrastructure in 
the state, the Roosevelt Dam, and other infrastructure, so it is important for 
Salt River Project (SRP) and Gila County government to have a strong 

relationship moving forward.  She has worked with Supervisor Martin in the 
past when SRP rededicated Roosevelt Dam in 2011; however, she wanted to 

meet Supervisors Humphrey and Cline.  Ms. Rohovit stated, “I’m grateful for 
the warm reception and I look forward to getting to know you better.” 
 

B.  Information/Discussion regarding an evaluation of the permitting 
process and the on-going and proposed improvements to the Gila County 
building permit process.   

 



Page 2 of 4 

 

James Menlove, County Manager, advised that in preparing this year’s County 
budget all departments were reviewed to determine efficiencies and identify 

those areas in need of improvement. The Community Development Division is 
the first department that was chosen to review their permitting process 

because in the recent past, contractors and other permit applicants expressed 
dissatisfaction with the permit process and the time frame for getting permits 
approved.  Mr. Menlove introduced Homero Vela, who has been working with 

the County for several months reviewing the permitting process.  Mr. Vela 
stated that he has been working on this project with Scott Buzan, Community 
Development Division Director, and Steve Sanders, Public Works Division 

Director.  He proceeded to provide a PowerPoint presentation.  The permitting 
process was evaluated using available data from the permit tracking software 

(TRAKiT), staff interviews, contractor meetings and joint meetings between 
Public Works and Community Development and, as a result, areas of 
improvement have been identified.  Improvement opportunities include 

eliminating unneeded and or redundant activities, working in parallel wherever 
possible, utilizing GIS mapping to drive decision making to the permit counter, 

and better utilization of TRAKiT to expedite workflow. A Permit Team was 
formed consisting of those involved in floodplain administration, grading and 
drainage, wastewater, and building safety to include the building safety official, 

permit technicians, building inspectors and code enforcement officers.   
Capitalizing on improvement opportunities, the Permit Team has established 
performance metrics for each type of permit type – PDI (Pre-Development 

Information), Flood, Grading and Drainage, Wastewater, and Plan Review.  In 
2017, the end-to-end permitting process was measured in months.  The 2018 

metrics is currently measuring the permitting process in weeks.  The most 
current data shows that significant improvements have been realized over 
2017.  Some of the process improvements have been implemented in recent 

weeks and even though not all of the metrics have been attained, Mr. Vela 
believes the targets remain realistic.  He stated that the work is on-going, and 
the Permit Team is committed to achieving excellent service in the permitting 

process. Throughout the presentation, the Supervisors, Mr. Buzan, Mr. 
Sanders and Mr. Menlove provided comments and suggestions such as having 

the County provide once a month training to owner builders; consider 
purchasing and implementing E-TRAKiT hopefully within the next 3 months, 
but no longer than within the next year, so the TRAKiT software can be used to 

its full capacity; utilize the Supervisors and County management to encourage 
“spontaneous communication” so it will become the culture of this 

organization; consider implementing a “fast track” permitting process whereby 
a fee would be charged; encourage contractors, etc. to attend public hearings 
for proposed changes to ordinances or other County regulations or schedule 

meetings with contractors every 6 months to inform them of upcoming 
changes; develop a very concise permitting checklist to avoid second or third 
submittals; and consider requiring contractors to do the soils test or have the 

County do them.  Mr. Vela was concerned about the County’s liability if the 
County approved the soils test, so he offered to contact other counties 



Page 3 of 4 

 

regarding their processes and get back to the Board, which was agreed by all.  
Mr. Vela advised that fillable forms are being used for permitting until E-

TRAKiT can be implemented. He added that permitting activity and 
performance will be shared and discussed amongst Community Development 

and Public Works staff on a monthly basis.  Each Board member thanked Mr. 
Vela, Mr. Buzan and Mr. Sanders for the presentation and their work on this 
project.  

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Special Event Liquor 
License Application submitted by the Gila County Fair to serve liquor at 

the County Fair in Globe on September 20, 2018, through September 23, 
2018.   

 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that typically a Special Event 
Liquor License Application would be presented to the Board as a Regular 

Meeting Consent Agenda item; however, a special request was made by the Fair 
Committee to have this application approved as soon as possible so that it can 

be submitted to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for final 
approval.  She added that the Fair Committee is comprised of volunteers who 
have many responsibilities, so she understands the need to ensure that this 

application is approved by the Board and ultimately by the State.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board 
unanimously approved the Special Event Liquor License Application submitted 

by the Gila County Fair to serve liquor at the County Fair in Globe 
on September 20, 2018, through September 23, 2018.   

 
Item 3 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 

conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 

 
No comments were offered by the public. 

 
Item 4 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 
 

Each Supervisor and the County Manager presented a summary of current 
events.  



Page 4 of 4 

 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Humphrey adjourned the meeting at 12:09 p.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 

Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-4776   Consent Agenda Item     5. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/11/2018  
Reporting
Period:

08/07/18, 08/14/18, 08/21/18, and 08/28/18

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 7, 2018, August 14,
2018, August 21, 2018, and August 28, 2018. 

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of August
7, 2018, August 14, 2018, August 21, 2018, and August 28, 2018. 

Attachments
HR Summary Report
08/07/18 Human Resources Report
08/14/18 Human Resources Report
08/21/18 Human Resources Report
08/28/18 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐18 Feb‐18 Mar‐18 Apr‐18 May‐18 Jun‐18 Jul‐18 Aug‐18 Sep‐18 Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18

Human	Resources	Action	Items

DEPARTURES 79 13 6 18 5 8 7 16 6

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 73 9 7 14 10 4 7 11 11

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 20 0 0 0 1 0 14 1 4

END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD 69 10 8 5 13 12 2 9 10

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 37 6 4 7 8 3 3 4 2

OTHER ACTIONS 117 11 15 9 10 10 14 18 30

REQUEST TO POST 61 13 4 12 4 6 12 7 3

  Total Transactions 456 62 44 65 51 43 59 66 66 0 0 0 0
 
   

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 7, 2018 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Dorinda Nasewytewa – Clerk of Superior Court – Summer Youth Participant – 07/13/18 – General Fund 
– DOH 06/04/18 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Cody Schcolnick – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/13/18 – General Fund – Replacing Brandi 
Kriley 

3. Arthur Decker – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer(.48) – To Detention Officer – 08/13/18 – 
General Fund – Replacing Patricia Henderson 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Christopher Jenkins – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Equipment Operator Senior – 08/12/18 – 
Recycling and Landfill Management Fund 

5. Michele Maupin – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 08/12/18 – Public Works Fund 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

6. Leona Bowman – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 07/09/18 – GEST Fund – 
Change in fund code 

7. Elaine Votruba – Library District – Public Services Librarian – 08/06/18 – Library District 
Grants(.16)/Library Assistance(.84) Funds – Change in FLSA status 

8. John Gonzales Jr. – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/13/18 – General Fund – Special 
assignment  

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 14, 2018 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Sarah Chavez – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk – 08/31/18 – Various Funds – 
DOH 07/25/11 

2. Darin Guerena – Public Works – Temporary Employee – 07/26/18 – Public Works Fund – DOH 
06/11/18 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Jessen Gillespie – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/20/18 – General Fund – Replacing Nicholas 
Sedlachek 

4. David Dumler – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 08/27/18 – Facilities Management 
Fund – Replacing Chris Romiti 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

5. Jerrilee Antunes – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 08/15/18 – General Fund 
6. Kimberly Hare – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 08/13/18 – Library 

District Grants Fund 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Keith Conway – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/02/18 – General Fund  
8. Chris Romiti – Public Works – Assistant Facilities Manager – 08/21/18 – Facilities Management Fund 
9. Terrel Links – Board of Supervisors – Executive Administrative Assistant – 08/20/18 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

10. Marylyn Lee – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Detention Officer – 08/20/18 – General 
Fund – Replacing Kassandra Charles 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

11. Brittney Griego – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/10/18 – General Fund – Special assignment  
12. Phillip Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/13/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
13. Dustin Burdess – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/27/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
14. John Gonzales Jr. – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/26/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment  
15. Brittney Griego – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/23/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment 
16. Phillip Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/31/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment 
17. Dustin Burdess – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/09/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 21, 2018 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Daniel Ducharme – Sheriff’s Office – Summer Youth Participant – 08/10/18 – General Fund – DOH 
06/04/18 

2. Deeadra Ursin-Zachary – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – 08/31/18 – 
WIC Fund – DOH 11/12/13 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Robert Bulloch – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/27/18 – General Fund – Replacing Matthew 
Binney 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

4. Kiley Sturgill – Public Works – Temporary Landfill Laborer – 08/27/18 – Recycling and Landfill 
Management Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Josephine Goode – Elections – Voter Outreach Coordinator – 08/26/18 – General Fund 
6. Amy O’Connor – Public Works – GIS Technician – 09/12/18 – General Fund 
7. Lisa Wilckens – Community Services – Fiscal Services Manager – 09/26/18 – Various Funds 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

8. Robert Keefe – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer 1 – To Deputy Probation Officer 4 – 
08/27/18 – From Diversion Intake(.50)/Juvenile Intensive Probation Supervision(.50) Funds – To JPSF 
Fund - Replacing Erika Pisano 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

9. Jonica Flores – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/13/18 – General Fund – Special assignment  
10. Thor Nudson – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/03/18 – Sheriff BLESF 

Program(.99)/General(.01) Funds – Special assignment 
11. Jonica Flores – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/26/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment 
12. Thor Nudson – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 10/14/18 – Sheriff BLESF 

Program(.99)/General(.01) Funds – End of special assignment 
13. Lisa Foster – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer 1 – To Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 08/01/18 

– Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – Obtained level 2 certification 
14. Judy Alexander – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/31/18 – Court Appointed Special 

Advocate(.50)/Court Improvement Project(.50) Funds - Revision 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

15. Superior Court – Part-Time Bailiff – FY19 Position 
16. Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – Vacated by Deeadra Ursin-Zachary 
17. Public Works – Custodian – Vacated by Rochelle Madrid and Rebecca Taylor 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 28, 2018 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Lauren Lopez – Health and Emergency Services – Summer Youth Participant – 08/17/18 – Teen 
Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund – DOH 06/04/18 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Clayton Johnson – Public Works – Construction Project Manager – 08/27/18 – Public Works Fund – 
Replacing Dennis Kroeger 

3. Dan Rodriguez – Globe Constable’s Office – Deputy Constable(.50) – 09/04/18 – General Fund – 
Replacing Richard Taylor 

4. Crystal Singleton – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/03/18 – General Fund – Replacing Vanessa 
Bryce 

5. Keturah McCleave – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 09/04/18 – Public Works Fund – 
Replacing Karen Brake 

6. Bianca Melford – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 09/04/18 – Health 
Service Fund – Replacing Lorna Livernois 

7. Stacey Espinoza – Library District/Finance – Administrative Assistant – 09/04/18 – Various Funds – 
Replacing Candy Bell 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

8. Alyssa Griffin – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 09/04/18 – Library 
District Grants Fund  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

9. Christina Hext – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser II – 09/04/18 – General Fund 
10. Dylan Mojica – Assessor’s Office – Mapping Technician – 09/04/18 – General Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

11. Mark Guerena – Public Works – County Engineer – 08/27/18 – Public Works Fund – Reclassification 
12. Matthew Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/27/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
13. Phillip Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/11/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
14. Brian Dirks – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/19/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
15. Tucker Kilbourne – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 10/08/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
16. Jessica Cruz – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/03/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
17. Stephanie Casillas – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/27/18 – General Fund – Special assignment 
18. Matthew Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 10/04/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment 
19. Tucker Kilbourne – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/02/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment  
20. Jessica Cruz – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/23/18 – General Fund – End of special assignment 
21. Stephanie Casillas – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/23/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment 
22. Phillips Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/16/18 – General Fund – End of special 

assignment 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 28, 2018 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 
23. Brian Dirks – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/30/18 – General Fund – End of special assignment 
24. Thor Nudson – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 08/24/18 – Sheriff 

BLESF Program(.99)/General(.01) Funds – Special assignment 
 


	Agenda
	September 2018 _Spotlight on Employees_ Program
	Att1_Andrea Hamm
	Att2_Debra Blevins
	Gila County Sheriff's Office 2017 Annual Report 
	Att1_2017 Annual Report
	Community Development Block Grant Application for FFY 2018 Regional Account Funding
	Att1_FFY 2018 CDBG Application
	Att2_Resolution No. 18-09-02
	Att3_Resolution No. 18-09-03
	Att4_Public Hearing Display Ad P-2
	Att5_Affidavit of Publication P-2
	Att6_Public Hearing Display Ad P-4
	Att7_Affidavit of Publication for P-4
	License and Services Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc. for Eagle Software Conversion
	Att1_Gila County AZ_License and Services Agreement
	Certification of Superior Court Collections for FY 17-18
	Att1_Court Collection
	Authorization to Publish a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous Surplus Material
	Amendment to the Bylaws of the Gila County Community Action Program Advisory Board
	Att1_Proposed Amended CAP Advisory Board Bylaws
	Att2_CAP Advisory Board Minutes 8_16_18
	Authorization to Advertise Request for Proposals No. 080318-Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_RFP NO. 080318
	CC-RFA-TP18-1802 Cooperative Agreement for Emergency Response_  Public Health Crisis Response Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services
	Att1_Proposal
	Amendment No. 5 to ADHS Request for Qualified Vendor Agreement No. DDD 710000
	Att1_Amendment No. 5 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	Att2_Amendment No. 4 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	Att3_Amendment No. 3 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	Att4_Amendment No. 2 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	Att5_Amendment No. 1 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	Att6_RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board Appointments
	Att1_Cooperative Ext. Adv. Board List
	Mogollon Valley Pit Program Special Event Liquor License Application
	Att1_Mogollon Valley Pit Program - Application
	July 2018
	Att1_July 2018 reports
	2018 july tres.pdf
	jp0404 2018 july.pdf

	Recorder's Office monthly report for July 2018
	Att1_July
	July 2018
	Att1_Clerk's Report July 2018
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2018
	Att1_July 2018
	Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for July 2018
	Att1_July 2018
	August 20, 2018, and August 28, 2018, Meeting Notes
	Att1_08-20-18 Meeting Notes
	Att2_08-28-18 Meeting Notes
	08_07_18, 08_14_18, 08_21_18, and 08_28_18
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_08_07_18 Human Resources Report
	Att3_08_14_18 Human Resources Report
	Att4_08_21_18 Human Resources Report
	Att5_08_28_18 Human Resources Report

